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          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: Good morning,

          3  everyone.  This is the Subcommittee on Landmarks,

          4  Public Siting and Maritime Uses of the City Council

          5  Land Use Committee.

          6                 I'm Council Member John Sabini from

          7  Queens, I'm the Chairman.  I'm joined by the Chair

          8  of the full Land Use Committee, June Eisland, from

          9  the Bronx.  We're also joined by Subcommittee

         10  Members Michael J. Abel from Queens, on my left,

         11  Bill Perkins, all the way on the right, from

         12  Manhattan.   We have other Council members here, as

         13  well, Council Member Thomas White, who has an

         14  application in his district before us, Council

         15  Member Lloyd Henry, Council Member Karen Koslowitz,

         16  as well as staff.

         17                 We have two items on the agenda

         18  today, we're going to take the first one.  The first

         19  one is relatively non-controversial and we will do

         20  that to get it out of the way.  The calendar today

         21  consists of items Land Use 445 in Manhattan

         22  Community Board #1, which is a designation by the

         23  Landmarks Commission of the former New York Times

         24  Building, in Council Member Kathryn Freed's

         25  District, and then Land Use Numbers 447 and 448 in
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          2  Queens Community Board #9, 10, and 12, application

          3  submitted by the Department of Citywide

          4  Administrative Services pursuant to Section 197- C

          5  of the New York City Charter, for the disposition of

          6  properties to the Port of Authority of New York and

          7  New Jersey, and subsequent acquisition and

          8  disposition to the Port of Authority of New York and

          9  New Jersey of various properties generally located

         10  between the MTA, Long Island Rail Road, Jamaica

         11  Station, and the John F. Kennedy International

         12  Airport, and between John F. Kennedy International

         13  Airport and the MTA New York City Transit Howard

         14  Beach Station to facilitate the construction of a

         15  Light Rail Transit.  We will hear those two items

         16  today.

         17                 Let me just caution the crowd, in the

         18  beginning we will be, we will have, to facilitate

         19  the fact that a lot of witnesses here have other

         20  jobs, we will have people on early and presentations

         21  to answer questions late.  The Subcommittee and the

         22  Land Use Committee has had numerous briefings on

         23  this matter, has visited the site on a couple of

         24  occasions and we want to give folks in the community

         25  an opportunity to be heard as early as possible.
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          2  Additionally, we will move on panels so that we can

          3  move quickly and we don't have to cost everyone a

          4  day or two of work, and at the end we will hear from

          5  the applicants, who are the Port of Authority

          6  regarding anything that they have to say, regarding

          7  issues that were raised here or raised by members of

          8  the public or the Council. We will be trying to

          9  adhere to a three- minute limit where reasonable.

         10  And regarding questions, we're hoping that the

         11  members are as concise as possible.

         12                 We're here to talk about planes,

         13  trains, and automobiles, and not the movie with

         14  Steve Martin and John Candy, but rather our own

         15  transit system and whether or not the application is

         16  one that is going to make life better for New York

         17  and New York's business community and the community

         18  at large, and at what cost.

         19                 We will hear the Landmarks item

         20  first, since it should take a relatively short

         21  period of time.  I'm going to ask Jane Cowan to come

         22  to the table and identify herself, please?

         23                 MS. COWAN:  Good morning, Council

         24  members.  My name is Jane Cowan, Community Liaison

         25  for the Landmarks Preservation Commission, and I am
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          2  here today to testify on the Commission's

          3  designation of the former New York Times Building,

          4  41 Park Row, in Manhattan.

          5                 On December 15th, 1998, the

          6  Commission held a public hearing on the designation

          7  of the former New York Times Building. Three

          8  witnesses representing the New York Landmarks

          9  Conservancy, the Municipal Arts Society, and the

         10  Historic District's Council, spoke in favor of the

         11  designation.  On February 23rd, 1999, the hearing

         12  was reopened for additional testimony from Pace

         13  University, the current owner, two representatives

         14  of Pace spoke, and they indicated that the

         15  University was not opposed to designation and looked

         16  forward to working with the Commission staff

         17  regarding future plans for the building.

         18  Additionally, the Commission has received letters in

         19  support of designation from Dr. Sara Bradford Landow

         20  and Robert Anstern (phonetic) noted architectural

         21  historian.

         22                 The 16- story office building

         23  constructed as the home of the New York Times is one

         24  of the last survivors of newspaper row.  The center

         25  of newspaper publishing in New York City from the
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          2  1830s to 1920s.  Built in 1888 to '89, and enlarged

          3  in 1903 to '05, the present building was the paper's

          4  second on the site, and was so identified with the

          5  Times that it was described in Kings Handbook of New

          6  York from 1892 as the Times expressed in stone.  The

          7  former Times Building is the sole remaining office

          8  building in the Downtown area by the pioneering

          9  skyscraper designer, George B. Post.

         10                 Post, the country's preeminent

         11  architect engineer, achieved a major technological

         12  feat with this Commission, which required him to

         13  incorporate the floor framing from the Times five

         14  story 1857 building, so newspaper operations could

         15  continue on site while the new building was under

         16  construction.  The Times Building, Post's first, was

         17  considered a masterpiece of the Romanesque style.

         18  Faced with rusticated, Indiana limestone blocks,

         19  above a grey main granite base, the facades are

         20  articulated in a complex composition. With its three

         21  highly visible facades on Park Row, Nassau Street,

         22  and Spruce Street, the former New York Times

         23  Building remains a significant presence in New

         24  York's Civic Center, and the Commission urges you to

         25  affirm the designation.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Any

          4  questions from the panel?  Seeing or hearing none,

          5  thank you, Ms. Cowan.

          6                 I ask the Sergeant- At- Arms in

          7  preparation for other members, if we can get another

          8  cable up here and chairs for members to sit in?

          9  Okay.

         10                 Members of the public should be aware

         11  of one thing, this is our equivalent of the

         12  Christmas rush, we're in the middle of budget time,

         13  so that there are members who will be running off to

         14  other meetings, there are other Committee meetings

         15  going on, we have Home Rules we have to pass while

         16  Albany is in session, and people are on sort of a

         17  tough time table.  So if you see members wondering

         18  in and out, it's not so much that they don't care or

         19  that they don't want to hear you, but there are

         20  other things going on in the building right now, and

         21  the budget is a very critical matter as well as this

         22  being a critical matter.  So that be aware that

         23  there is other things going on.  And if we can get

         24  the table set up so we don't interrupt the

         25  testimony, that would be very helpful.
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          2                 In the meantime, let me call up,

          3  we're going to call up panels in favor and opposed,

          4  trying to keep it as even as possible.  I'm going to

          5  call up the first panel, three witnesses in favor,

          6  Francis X. McArdle, Sal Mancini, Thomas Maguire,

          7  please, come on up?  And if we can get a third chair

          8  at the witness table, please?

          9                 Mr. McArdle, do you want to start,

         10  identify yourself for the record and who you

         11  represent?

         12                 MR. MCARDLE:  Yes, good morning, Mr.

         13  Chairman.  My name is Frank McArdle.  I'm the

         14  Managing Director of the General Contractors

         15  Association of New York, a trade association that

         16  represents the heavy construction industry in New

         17  York City

         18                 I want to thank you for giving me the

         19  opportunity to speak today in support of the Port of

         20  Authority's ULURP applications for the connections

         21  from JFK Airport to Jamaica Station for the Long

         22  Island Rail Road and the New York City Transit

         23  facilities, and to the Howard Beach Station of the

         24  New York City Transit Authority.

         25                 The Association firmly believes that

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            16

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  the future of JFK is critically linked to your

          3  actions on the applications before you.  At the

          4  airport we have now major investments planned by

          5  American Airlines, United Airlines, TransWorld

          6  Airlines, Delta Airlines.  We have underway the

          7  international arrivals terminal reconstruction, and

          8  we have just opened Terminal One.  Internally, JFK

          9  is going through a complete rehabilitation,

         10  reconstruction, and reconfiguration.  As part of the

         11  investments that the airlines are making in these

         12  new terminals, they are building connections to the

         13  Port of Authority's investment in the internal

         14  connector.  But that internal connector will not in

         15  itself solve the problems that we all know exist at

         16  JFK.

         17                 JFK is simply a hard airport to get

         18  to when people are trying to reach and take

         19  international flights and long distance domestic

         20  flights.  There is no question that something must

         21  be done if JFK is to maintain its competitive

         22  position both with respect to competition in the

         23  region, between Newark Airport and JFK for

         24  international connections, and for other airports in

         25  the United States where airlines now can over fly
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          2  JFK and find passengers.

          3                 The AirTrain's external connections

          4  can be built now.  The money is there now, it's

          5  there in the PFC funding and the Port of Authority's

          6  contribution.  If the applications before you are

          7  denied, we wait another 30 years before new

          8  proposals will come forward to connect JFK with the

          9  rest of our transportation network, and I don't

         10  think we can afford to wait that long.  This project

         11  is critical to the construction industry in New York

         12  City, it furnishes over 4,000 direct and indirect

         13  jobs, at its peak it will employ 25 percent of the

         14  heavy construction labor in New York, but this is

         15  not just about construction jobs, this is about the

         16  economic future of New York City and its position as

         17  a world capital.

         18                 We need you to act today.  This is

         19  not the one- seat ride, perhaps, that everyone would

         20  want, it is not the proposal before you to do

         21  everything that people would want.  This is

         22  something that works, that provides us in New York

         23  with a competitive position to a similar system

         24  being created for Newark Airport, - -

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  We ask that you
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          2  sum up now.

          3                 MR. MCARDLE: - -  we need it now, and

          4  we urge you to vote yes.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

          7  Mancini.  If the button is off, you're on.

          8                 MR. MANCINI:  Yes, my name is Sal

          9  Mancini.  I'm the President of Slattery Skanska.  My

         10  company is the lead member of the AirRail Transit

         11  Consortium that was formed to build a light rail

         12  system at JFK.  We're the General Contractor lead in

         13  the construction effort for this project.

         14                 Slattery was formed 70 years ago,

         15  it's located in Whitestone, Queens.  I have

         16  personally been employed by Slattery for over 30

         17  years.  We employ over 1,000 people in New York City

         18  and many of our employees live in the five boroughs.

         19                 Slattery Skanska has a reputation for

         20  quality construction.  We have successfully

         21  completed many major projects in Queens and New York

         22  City.  We are presently working on the 63rd Street

         23  rail connection, we have worked on the Van Wyck

         24  Expressway, Long Island Expressway, Grand Central,

         25  Clearview Expressway, and many other projects in New
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          2  York City.

          3                 We take great pride in the work that

          4  we do at Slattery, we build with focused attention

          5  to detail, with a goal of completing our job as fast

          6  as possible without disruption to the surrounding

          7  community.  We know that some people are concerned

          8  about how the construction of the air rail link

          9  could impact their homes.  I want you to know that

         10  it is our intent and commitment to minimize the

         11  inconvenience and be a good neighbor during the

         12  building phase.  We have a lot of experience with

         13  the major projects of this kind, and we will use

         14  only construction methods that have proven safe.

         15  Also, please remember that we, too, are an integral

         16  part of the community in Queens, our company has a

         17  reputation to uphold and live up to if we want to

         18  keep working in New York City.  We take our

         19  responsibility very seriously to supervise our

         20  workforce and ensure the safety and well being of

         21  the people and homes in the neighborhoods.  You have

         22  my personal commitment that we will do this in a

         23  professional and efficient manner.  I will quickly

         24  and responsibly address any problems or issues that

         25  are brought to my attention.
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          2                 We are deeply committed to maximizing

          3  job and contracting opportunities to Southeast

          4  Queens.  Workers from apprenticeship programs are

          5  getting chances to support their families at a

          6  decent wage thanks to this construction.  Keep in

          7  mind that a major percentage of the registered union

          8  apprentices in New York City are members of minority

          9  groups and even greater number live in the five

         10  boroughs.

         11                 Mr. Chairman, this proposal deserves

         12  your backing as well as the support of the full Land

         13  Use Committee.

         14                 Again, I thank you for convening this

         15  hearing.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

         17  Maguire.

         18                 MR. MAGUIRE:  Good morning.  I will

         19  read part of this and submit the entire text in the

         20  interest of time.  My name is Thomas P. Maguire.  In

         21  addition to being the President and Business Manager

         22  of the International Union of Operating Engineers,

         23  Local 15, A, B, C, and D, I'm General Vice-

         24  President of our International in Washington with

         25  400,000 members, and President of the 35,000 member
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          2  New York State Conference of Operating Engineers.

          3                 Local 15 is comprised of over 4,500

          4  highly skilled operators, mechanics, welders and

          5  survey engineers, and also City titles, all of whom

          6  work in the five boroughs and live in the New York

          7  City area.  We maintain and operate the heavy

          8  construction equipment used in large scale

          9  construction projects in the region.

         10  Our testimony today is in support of the ULURP

         11  application for the JFK Airport Light Rail Link to

         12  Jamaica Station.

         13                 It has been decades since the New

         14  York City airports were developed without

         15  connections to our mass transit system. This has

         16  become a growing issue as it has become increasingly

         17  difficult to get to JFK as the years have gone by.

         18  Nobody wants to sit in the traffic on the Van Wyck

         19  at rush hour hoping that his or her flight has not

         20  left.  Yet, proposal for airport access have all

         21  been allowed to die because of poor planning,

         22  indifference, or community opposition.

         23                 The development of the light rail

         24  system will lead to new employment opportunities for

         25  thousands of New York City residents.  The Port of
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          2  Authority estimates that over 4,000 jobs will be

          3  required and created for the construction alone.

          4  These union jobs are important for our industry and

          5  to the economic vitality of the area.  The fact is

          6  that nearly three out of every four construction

          7  jobs in the five boroughs is filled by residents of

          8  New York City.  This means that union wages earned

          9  on this project will be largely spent locally.

         10                 Many Local 15 members live in Queens

         11  and a growing number are members of minority groups.

         12    We have a very successful apprenticeship program

         13  that is headquartered at the JFK Airport. This is

         14  part of our commitment to provide opportunities to

         15  all people, including women and minorities, who want

         16  to pursue on- the job training and careers in the

         17  heavy construction trades.

         18                 Please be aware that Local 15 has a

         19  safety record that is unmatched. In fact, our number

         20  one priority on the job is safety for our members

         21  and the other construction union members, motorists,

         22  and neighborhood residents.  Our union will only use

         23  construction techniques that have been proven to be

         24  safe on projects around the world.  Our highly

         25  skilled, well- trained members will do this job with
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          2  an unsurpassed degree of competence and

          3  professionalism.

          4                 Union labor is on board the AirTrain.

          5    A new Jamaica Station and an improved JFK Airport,

          6  and a reconstructed Van Wyck Expressway are all good

          7  for Queens and New York City as a whole. We ask that

          8  the Council's Subcommittee support this project has

          9  to have all the local Community Boards, the Borough

         10  President, and the City Planning Commission, so that

         11  we can begin work on the Jamaica Link as soon as

         12  possible.

         13                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         14  speak here today.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you very

         16  much.  Before we have questions, just let me

         17  introduce Council Member Adolfo Carrion, Jr., of the

         18  Bronx, a member of the Subcommittee, and my Queens

         19  colleagues who have joined us since we started,

         20  Council Member Karen Koslowitz, Council Member Morty

         21  Povman, and Council Member Archie Spigner.

         22                 I believe we have a question from

         23  Council Member Juanita Watkins from Queens.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS:  Mr. McArdle,

         25  as I understand it there are three distinct portions
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          2  of the Light Rail proposal on airport, the Howard

          3  Beach, so- to- speak, segment, and the Van Wyck

          4  Expressway portion.  Is it possible that there can

          5  be a separate consideration of one, two, or all

          6  three, or must all three of these be considered as

          7  one?

          8                 MR. MCARDLE:  From a practical point

          9  of external connection, you really must consider

         10  this as a system, meaning all three pieces.  The

         11  Port of Authority is committed, it is already

         12  planning and building and integrating into the air

         13  terminal designs on- airport, the internal loop

         14  connector.  It is also proceeding with the planning,

         15  and pending your approval, the execution of the

         16  connection to Jamaica Station and to Howard Beach.

         17                 We have seen through the Newark

         18  experience that the internal connector has its own

         19  value.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS:  Without

         21  being rude, just let me get the heart of my

         22  question.  If there are members who are quite

         23  supportive of the on- airport portion, and possibly

         24  even the Howard Beach portion, but still have grave

         25  reservations about the Van Wyck Expressway portion,
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          2  are you saying that even if members may support two

          3  out of the three portions, unless they vote for all

          4  three, they must than vote it down, if they are?

          5                 MR. MCARDLE:  No, not from the way

          6  you have structured the applications before you, but

          7  from the point of view of project benefit - -

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS:  I want to

          9  know very specifically if there are members who

         10  approve of one portion, let's say, on- airport, I

         11  have not heard anyone who disapproves of the on

         12  airport portion?

         13                 MR. MCARDLE:  I do not believe you

         14  have anything for the on airport portion before you

         15  to consider, that is not part of the applications.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Commissioner

         17  McArdle, if I could, because really this is, Council

         18  Member Watkins I think the question really should go

         19  to our Land Use staff or to the applicant which is

         20  DCAS.  The on- airport portion is already under

         21  construction, there are two pieces of this

         22  application today, one of which deals, I believe,

         23  technically with access to the train station at

         24  Howard Beach, and one of which deals with access

         25  over the Van Wyck Expressway.  So there are three
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          2  portions, on- airport is already started, and we

          3  don't have control over that land now.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS:  So we're

          5  talking about two?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Right, on the

          7  Land Use calendar that we will be voting on, there

          8  is two applications.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS:  Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Any

         12  other questions from the Committee or other members?

         13    Thank you, panel, for your testimony.  I'm going

         14  to call up now a panel in opposition, JoAnn Shapiro

         15  representing Assemblywoman Audrey Pheffer,

         16  Democratic District Leader Lew Simon, please, come

         17  on up?  Please state your name and who you represent

         18  for the record?

         19                 MS. SHAPIRO:  Good morning, my name

         20  is JoAnn Shapiro.  I'm Chief of Staff for New York

         21  State Assembly Member Audrey Pheffer.

         22                 Good morning, distinguished Chairman

         23  and members of the Committee.  The Assemblywoman

         24  regrets that she could not be here personally but

         25  her legislative duties require that she remain in
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          2  Albany.  She asked that I read this testimony on her

          3  behalf.

          4                  "I would like to express my vehement

          5  opposition to the proposed Light Rail System, Van

          6  Wyck Expressway Rial Link. This project is ill

          7  conceived and fiscally irresponsible.

          8                 As a 45- year resident of Rockaway, I

          9  am uniquely aware of the acute need for better

         10  transportation to and from our airports and the

         11  surrounding communities.  However, the plan set

         12  forth by the Port of Authority does not adequately

         13  meet the needs of the ridership of New York City nor

         14  the mission to provide a one seat ride.  Many years

         15  ago, we had a train to the plane.  The name was

         16  inaccurate, it was the train to the bus to the

         17  plane.  By the MTA's own admission, this type of

         18  service does not work, and it was canceled.  Once

         19  again, the Port of Authority is proposing a plan

         20  that is destined to fail.  Study after study has

         21  proven that cities offering one- seat rides have

         22  successful programs.

         23                 Additionally, it is a travesty that

         24  the LRS is not compatible with any present rail

         25  transportation.  The Port of Authority has refused
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          2  to design track links to the LIRR or New York City

          3  Transit A- Train service.  Instead, it has chosen to

          4  use an automated system that is not only

          5  incompatible with our current rail transportation,

          6  but there is no rail system in place anywhere that

          7  is compatible with the Port of Authority's plan.

          8                 The rail link is a train to nowhere.

          9  All it is capable of doing is making a loop around

         10  the airport.  It is not an airport access system.

         11  It is an airport terminal access system. Spending

         12  $600 million to improve terminal access at JFK

         13  Airport is clearly a fiscally irresponsible act.

         14                 The Apple Corridor Plan is one that

         15  better serves the needs of New York City riders.  It

         16  would successfully fulfill the mission to provide a

         17  one- seat ride from Manhattan to JFK; and the most

         18  important, it is a more cost- effective way to

         19  improve airport access for all New Yorkers.

         20                 I implore you to vote against the

         21  Light Rail system, Van Wyck Link.  It is a plan to

         22  nowhere."

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Mr. Simon.

         25                 MR. SIMON:  Good morning.  I am
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          2  Democratic District Leader, Lew M. Simon.  I

          3  represent the 23 AD Part B, which includes the

          4  Rockaways, Broad Channel, Howard Beach, Ozone Park,

          5  and part of Woodhaven.

          6                 The Port of Authority is trying to

          7  force the people of Queens to accept an unnecessary,

          8  wasteful rail system above the Van Wyck Expressway.

          9                 The Port of Authority has offered us

         10  something we do not want, and wants us to accept

         11  something no one needs.

         12                 The light rail system over the Van

         13  Wyck will not benefit anyone who lives in Queens.

         14  It will virtually stop the traffic on the Van Wyck

         15  for a minimum of five years.

         16                 The plan will waste $600 million.

         17                 The Van Wyck light rail will create a

         18  major traffic jam through all of southern Queens,

         19  and I want to speak specifically of some of the

         20  areas that I represent.

         21                 The heavy traffic will be diverted

         22  from the Van Wyck including trucks and tractor

         23  trailers will overflow onto Cross Bay Boulevard,

         24  Woodhaven Boulevard, Rockaway Boulevard, Liberty

         25  Avenue, Atlantic Avenue, Jamaica Avenue, 101st
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          2  Avenue, 95th Avenue, 97th Avenue, Park Lane South,

          3  Metropolitan Avenue, Union Turnpike, North and South

          4  Conduit and most of all service roads on the Van

          5  Wyck Expressway.

          6                 Emergency vehicles will not be able

          7  to get through in a timely fashion.  How many deaths

          8  will occur unnecessarily?

          9                 Would you buy a $600 million train

         10  from the Port of Authority?  I think not.

         11                 We welcome the loop around the

         12  airport and the connection to the Howard Beach

         13  Station.  We are 100 percent in support of the new

         14  station for Howard Beach.

         15                 We urge you to split the ULURP

         16  proposal.  You can do this.

         17                 We ask your support for the Howard

         18  Beach link, the Kennedy Airport link doesn't need

         19  our support, but to vote down the Van Wyck

         20  Expressway.

         21                 We quote the Daily News, "two parts

         22  sane, one part folly."

         23                 If they tell you that the community

         24  wants the light rail up above the Van Wyck this is

         25  not true.  The Community Boards were told that they
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          2  had to vote yes or no, like you heard here a little

          3  while ago, on the entire project.  The members at

          4  each Board tried to stop the Van Wyck link.  Board

          5  10 voted that they required the Port of Authority to

          6  check all options before letting contracts for the

          7  Van Wyck link go further.

          8                 To quote Ann Grossberg, former

          9  District Manager of Community Board #10, now a

         10  member of Community Board #10, "How can they ask us

         11  to vote on a portion that does not come into our

         12  area?" Meaning Community Board #10 has nothing to do

         13  with the Van Wyck part.

         14                 If the Van Wyck link is defeated, we

         15  can expect the Port of Authority to get some sense

         16  and make use of the old Rockaway Beach line, which

         17  we support, meaning all the people that I represent,

         18  there will be enough jobs in the union for everyone.

         19                 Approximately eight weeks ago, I was

         20  on the Van Wyck Expressway only to be held up by a

         21  pot hole crew, you know, those amazing guys that

         22  were out there, it was reduced from four lanes to

         23  one, an additional one hour from one exit to

         24  another, talk about four- letter words.  Imagine

         25  this for five years?  Are we outraged? Yes.  If you
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          2  agree with me, which I hope you will, please vote

          3  this plan down.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Any

          6  questions? We're going to hear from a panel in favor

          7  now, Marc Shaw, Executive Director of the MTA and

          8  former Council staff member.  Tom Prendergast,

          9  President of the Long Island Rail Road.

         10                 MR. SHAW:  Good morning.  I'm Marc

         11  Shaw, Executive Director of the MTA, with me is Tom

         12  Prendergast, the President of the Long Island Rail

         13  Road.  We have just prepared one testimony, we're

         14  both here to answer any questions you might have.

         15                 I would like to take this opportunity

         16  to express the MTA's support of the Port of

         17  Authority's effort to construct and operate a Light

         18  Rail link from JFK Airport to the MTA Long Island

         19  Rail Road and MTA New York City Transit Station at

         20  Jamaica, and the MTA New York City Transit Station

         21  at Howard Beach.  In both cases this intermodal

         22  transportation interface will provide a positive

         23  alternative to the existing congested highway system

         24  that presently serves the area.

         25                 As you know, the Jamaica Station
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          2  complex is a regional intermodal center served by

          3  New York City Transit's E, J, and Z trains, numerous

          4  City bus routes, and 10 of the 11 Long Island Rail

          5  Road branches.  It is a location that has both the

          6  additional passenger handling capacity and the route

          7  linkages that make it an effective portal to the

          8  airport.  Train, subway and bus service to Jamaica

          9  is a comprehensive, frequent, cost- effective and

         10  user- friendly service.  In addition, the customers

         11  who choose to forego the use of their vehicles take

         12  mass transit to the airport can easily be

         13  accommodated within the existing capacity of our

         14  transportation system.

         15                 I should also point out that the

         16  timing for this project could not be better from a

         17  construction and logistical interface standpoint.

         18  The MTA Long Island Rail Road is in the process of

         19  planning the reconstruction of its platforms at

         20  Jamaica. Now with the potential construction of the

         21  AirTrain connection in the next few years, the two

         22  projects are being designed coincidentally to ensure

         23  a uniformed look and functionality.  We're working

         24  closely with the Port of Authority to ensure the

         25  best possible project design, thus providing a
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          2  tremendous benefit to the Long Island Rail Road

          3  customer, the AirTrain customer, and the local

          4  community.

          5                 The newly constructed facilities,

          6  both Port of Authority and MTA, will enhance the

          7  Downtown Jamaica area and provide the impetus of

          8  further development and growth.  We have worked very

          9  closely with the Greater Jamaica Development

         10  Corporation over the past few years to plan for the

         11  economic revitalization of the area and believe this

         12  project will be the economic engine for that

         13  revitalization effort.

         14                 We at the MTA are also cognizant of

         15  the long- term desire for a one- seat ride from the

         16  Manhattan Central Business District to the Airport

         17  Light Rail System.  We're presently studying the

         18  alternatives that will make this possible, while

         19  ensuring that our long- term plans do not preclude

         20  this possibility, but rather increase its success.

         21                 Our plans for the MTA Long Island

         22  Rail Road to access the East Side of Manhattan via a

         23  direct connection into Grand Central Station will,

         24  in fact, provide the terminal capacity to make this

         25  one- seat ride feasible.
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          2                 Thank you for providing the MTA an

          3  opportunity to be heard on this important issue.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

          5  Okay, questions from the panel?  Okay, let me ask

          6  your indulgence on something, gentlemen, we're going

          7  to hear from the Port of Authority at the end of

          8  people raising concerns, but since this is an

          9  essentially intermodal item, even though technically

         10  the application isn't so intermodal, we would like

         11  to hear, or have you here at the end to either

         12  answer questions from both your agencies to see if

         13  it ties in with what they say, so that the members

         14  have a degree of confidence that everyone is on the

         15  same page either for or against. Is that agreeable

         16  to you, can you either hang out or have someone here

         17  at the end of, toward the end of the hearing?

         18                 MR. SHAW:  Depending on the schedule,

         19  either we or some staff members will be with the

         20  fore guard.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Council Member

         22  Carrion, well, you can ask them questions now, if

         23  you like, it's up to you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Mr.

         25  Chairman, thank you. I just, I want to understand

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            36

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  something from the MTA, because I'm, I think one of

          3  the big issues for us and for all of New York has

          4  been, how do we get to that one- seat ride?  And I

          5  think that the trepidation that the Port of

          6  Authority demonstrated initially, when they came and

          7  presented before us, and we have had these

          8  discussions with them, I think part of it had to do

          9  with, well, where does that one- seat ride go, and

         10  we are now talking about other jurisdictions?  If

         11  we're really committed to a one- seat ride there is

         12  matters of Federal money that come into question,

         13  when does that Federal money become available,

         14  Federal transportation money, and all that stuff,

         15  and there is so many layers to this? What I want to

         16  hear for the record and for the City of New York and

         17  for the permanent record of our history is, does the

         18  MTA see itself as a real, meaningful, long- term,

         19  physical partner in this one- seat ride?

         20                 In other words, when we get, if we

         21  get to the point where we develop the technology to

         22  provide this one- seat ride, do you see yourself

         23  there with literally a train going through your

         24  system sharing in this public initiative?

         25                 MR. SHAW:  The short answer is yes,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            37

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  and it's truly the reason why we are supportive of

          3  the Port of Authority on this project.  From the

          4  beginning of this project, the MTA has coordinated

          5  with and worked very closely with the Port of

          6  Authority and vice- a- versa, for people that watch

          7  government, it is not an easy task for the Port of

          8  Authority and the MTA to work together like this,

          9  it's actually a reflection of the foresight of the

         10  Governor of the State of New York to make sure from

         11  Day 1 that these projects were working, that these

         12  authorities were working together on this product.

         13                 The reality is that the view we have,

         14  is that the Port of Authority has designed project

         15  that is the first step toward an eventual one- seat

         16  ride.  And what we have done by working with them on

         17  this project from Day 1, is to make sure, as much as

         18  possible is being done so that all the options are

         19  open as we go down that road.

         20                 As you know, if you have followed

         21  this issue, it's actually a very complicated problem

         22  to figure out how to best integrate the mass transit

         23  system, given that the airports were built without

         24  it.  What we view this is an opportunity to move in

         25  that direction.  From Day 1 the planning has been
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          2  done so that the infrastructure that is being built

          3  for the Port of Authority AirTrain is compatible

          4  with our system, that that system is designed so

          5  that with some flyovers you can change the system

          6  eventually to hook up directly into the MTA system

          7  either at Howard Beach or in Jamaica.

          8                 The work that we're doing on the Long

          9  Island Rail Road for East Side access into Grand

         10  Central is going to provide the capacity through the

         11  East River Tunnels that will allow us to be doing

         12  that down the road.  There are other issues both at

         13  the Federal level, as well as additional capacity

         14  between Jamaica and the East River Tunnels that need

         15  to be done to get the eventual one- seat ride.  But

         16  the point is, all of the work that is being done

         17  right now, is being done with that as a potential

         18  end result, and at the same time, the Port of

         19  Authority is building a system that will serve the

         20  functions they have right now of improving airport

         21  access and hooking up to the mass transit system

         22  that currently exists.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  And that was

         24  the short answer.

         25                 MR. SHAW:  The short answer was yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  No, I know,

          3  I know, I'm just kidding.  I'm an urban planner by

          4  profession, I know you have a planning division, a

          5  large planning division, and in your planning,

          6  thinking, and sort of musing with the future, when

          7  do you see this happen?  Given all the

          8  considerations, and we're smart people, we're

          9  capable of dreaming with you a little bit, what is a

         10  date in the future, what are we telling New York

         11  City residents that in a year what?  Because, you

         12  know, that is the fear that we may be kidding

         13  ourselves, and I understand the trepidation on the

         14  part of local communities.

         15                 MR. SHAW:  The reality at that level

         16  is probably in the 15 to 20 year range, and the

         17  reason why I'm saying that is, as from a planning

         18  prospective that is how long it would take to both

         19  build the rest of the infrastructure that needs to

         20  be done to give us those choices.  It sounds like a

         21  long time, in planning terms it's not that long of

         22  time.  The East Side access project, which we view

         23  as the first piece of this will be done around 2009,

         24  you know, that is just how long these kind of

         25  projects take, while at the same time delivering
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          2  services to the people that are currently using the

          3  system.  It's not like you're dealing with a blank

          4  slate.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Understood.

          6  Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

          8  Okay, next panel, Queens Civic Congress, Patricia

          9  Dolan, Sean Walsh, come on down. Okay, as the panel

         10  is coming up, Council Member White, for the record.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE:  Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chairman.  I just wanted to respond to the previous

         13  testimony by the representative of Assemblywoman

         14  Audrey Pheffer.  I take strong exception, not to the

         15  fact that the Assembly person does have an opinion

         16  as everybody does and should have, but the

         17  characterization at the end of that position I want

         18  to take strong exception to, and that is, to implore

         19  people to vote against the rail system because it is

         20  a plan to nowhere, and I take strong exception to my

         21  district that I represent as being called nowhere.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:   Okay, we're

         24  going to keep the audience reaction down to a

         25  minimum, if we could, since it will facilitate
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          2  everyone's day moving along.  If the panel will

          3  start, please?  Identify yourself for the record,

          4  who you represent?

          5                 MR. WALSH:  Thank you for the

          6  opportunity to address you today on the Port of

          7  Authority's AirTrain proposal.  My name is Sean

          8  Walsh.  I'm President of the Queens Civic Congress.

          9  The Queens Civic Congress, representing over 90

         10  civic associations throughout Queens, opposes the

         11  Van Wyck portion of the Port's proposal.

         12                 Let's begin with a premise, on which

         13  I believe everyone can agree, this City needs a

         14  modern, high speed, one- seat ride from Manhattan

         15  from its two airports, not in the next 20, 30 years.

         16    Now let's ask ourselves what does the Port's

         17  proposal accomplish?

         18                 First, they abdicated their role with

         19  respect to LaGuardia Airport to the MTA who to date

         20  has failed to use any imagination in its scooping

         21  plan, which is doomed to failure.

         22                 Second, the Port substantially scaled

         23  back its original proposal to JFK to Manhattan

         24  because it didn't have sufficient funding.

         25                 Third, the Port is now in serious

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            42

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  jeopardy of losing the PFC funding for the Van Wyck

          3  portion of the project, and the Port has no

          4  alternative source of funding.  Now the Port will

          5  have to justify to the FAA the efficacy of this

          6  project with the current numbers projected riders of

          7  less than 4,000, as opposed to the original numbers

          8  of the plan when the proposal was submitted to the

          9  FAA for the link from JFK to Manhattan.

         10                 Fourth, the Port admits its original

         11  goals of removing cars from the Van Wyck and other

         12  highways will not occur.           Fifth, the Port

         13  is now selling this ride to Jamaica as ideal for

         14  Nassau and Suffolk, not residents of Manhattan or

         15  other parts of the City.

         16                 Sixth, there is no plan, funding, or

         17  real technical possibility linking the Port's Light

         18  Rail System from Jamaica to Manhattan.  This quoted

         19  is from a meeting we had with them last year.  So

         20  any discussion of some MTA plan to build a train to

         21  travel on the Port's Light Rail System is pure

         22  fiction, 20, 30 years is not reality.

         23                 Seventh, the Light Rail System will

         24  be an economic boom to Jamaica.  How, you might ask?

         25    Will the passengers who will not pay $30 for a

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            43

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  one- seat ride to Manhattan in a cable now stop in

          3  Jamaica for a sandwich while transferring their bags

          4  to E train from the Light Rail System?  The only

          5  economic benefit to Jamaica is the Port's promise of

          6  $40 million of community upgrades.  If you believe

          7  that Jamaica will ever see one dime of this money,

          8  then you can safely park on the top level of JFK's

          9  multi- story parking garage, or use its central

         10  baggage center, or one of its beautiful chapels.

         11  The Port's track record speaks for itself, total

         12  failure.

         13                 Many of us say this is the best deal

         14  we can get, so let's just go along, we're not paying

         15  for it.  Wrong, we are paying for it.

         16                 First, the community of Southeast

         17  Queens will suffer pain and economic loss.  For what

         18  end?

         19                 Second, the Van Wyck, the only major

         20  truck route to the important air cargo industry will

         21  come to a complete stop during the years of

         22  construction.  Shall we loose more jobs to Newark?

         23                 Third, the Port's own prediction of

         24  increased flights into JFK over the next ten years

         25  cries out for some real transportation alternatives
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          2  to move more people in and out of Midtown.

          3                 Why can other cities build high speed

          4  rail links to their airports?  Are their city

          5  fathers any smarter than ours or do they have more

          6  political courage than ours?  I believe it is a bit

          7  of both and we are here today to call you on that.

          8  We will not accept this as the best we can get,

          9  because the Port's plan is a disaster for the

         10  neighboring community, the airline and cargo

         11  industry at JFK, and will condemned our airports to

         12  an international third class status well into the

         13  next millennium.

         14                 The burden is on the Port to prove

         15  its case to you. Yet important evidence is still out

         16  there.  The MTA study of the Rockaway line; the

         17  federal circuit court mandate for a new FAA review

         18  are a few vital pieces of information that need to

         19  render an intelligent decision.  Therefore, you

         20  should not grant any right of way over City property

         21  before these matters are resolved.

         22                 Some people see things the way they

         23  are and ask why, and we see things the way they

         24  should be and ask why not.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 MS. DOLAN:  Good afternoon. I'm

          3  Patricia Dolan.  I'm the Vice- President of the

          4  Queens Civic Congress.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Pat, if you put

          6  the microphone a little closer to you, so we can all

          7  hear you.

          8                 MS. DOLAN:  Thank you.  Good

          9  afternoon.  I'm Patricia Dolan, Vice- President of

         10  the Queens Civic Congress, a Coalition of more than

         11  90 community and neighborhood organizations in the

         12  Borough of Queens.  I am also the President of the

         13  Kew Garden Hills Civic Association, an affiliated of

         14  the Congress, which represent more than 3,000

         15  central Queens residents.

         16                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         17  comment on the Port of Authority's proposal.  We

         18  support a public transit solution to the congested

         19  roadways to our airports.  Those of us living in

         20  Central Queens, as I do, and in South Queens, know

         21  the price of the overburdened Van Wyck Expressway

         22  that spills onto our local streets.  Any one of us,

         23  on the occasion of a major accident or a

         24  construction project on the Van Wyck knows that we

         25  will have traffic on Main Street, Hillside Avenue,
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          2  and as far north as the Long Island Expressway.

          3                 For the past half decade, we have

          4  urged the FAA, the Port of Authority and our elected

          5  officials to establish a transit link to Kennedy

          6  that will work.  The present plan will not work and

          7  will indeed sow chaos in its path.

          8                 The City Council's report confirms

          9  our contention that the project fails by not

         10  providing a one- seat ride to the City's central

         11  business district, Manhattan, by providing service

         12  to only a negligible number of air travelers, 7,000

         13  at most by the Port's own estimate, and the airport

         14  employees, by not providing any discernible benefits

         15  to residents of the community that passes through or

         16  over, by imposing severe hardships on nearby Queens

         17  communities during construction by displacing

         18  traffic onto local streets, and providing no

         19  reliable economic benefit to the Jamaica Business

         20  Center.

         21                 Elevated systems, whether for cars or

         22  trains, are neighborhood killers.  Transportation

         23  agencies at this very time are considering a billion

         24  dollar tunnel to replace the Gowanus Expressway in

         25  Brooklyn that cuts the communities of southwest
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          2  Brooklyn from the waterfront in that Borough.  In

          3  Boston, a billion dollar tunnel is under, a $10

          4  billion is under construction to replace an elevated

          5  roadway.  The South Bronx and all of the problems

          6  are, therefore, in great degree created by the Cross

          7  Bronx Expressway.  Permitting the Port of Authority

          8  to build this project will saddle future New Yorkers

          9  with the burden of paying billions of dollars to

         10  replace the train that simply doesn't go where it is

         11  supposed to go.

         12                 We urge you to reject this billion

         13  dollar boondoggle that will defer for another

         14  generation the goal of a direct transit link from

         15  Manhattan to Kennedy.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         18  Questions from the panel or others?  Okay, thank

         19  you.  We're joined by Committee member, Council

         20  Member Priscilla Wooten of Brooklyn.  Also, by

         21  Council Member Kathryn Freed of Manhattan.

         22                 I will now call a panel in favor,

         23  Richard Anderson, Edward Malloy, Ed Malloy, here?

         24  Someone for Ed Malloy is here. Before you start, as

         25  we said at the outset that we are in the middle of
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          2  budget, the budget negotiating team and Chairs are

          3  meeting as we speak, and so there are people going

          4  in and out.  As of now, I would like the panel to

          5  start, Mr. Anderson, why don't you start it off?

          6                 MR. ANDERSON:  Mr. Chairman, I'm

          7  Richard T. Anderson, President of New York Building

          8  Congress, a coalition of the design, construction,

          9  and real estate community here in the City.

         10                 The City Council has a critical role

         11  to play in considering the merits of the Port of

         12  Authority's AirTrain proposal.  Never before has the

         13  Council been asked to approve a single project of

         14  this scale, and the thorough review being undertaken

         15  by this Committee and the entire Council is both

         16  justified and warranted by the importance of the

         17  proposed public investment.  The Building Congress

         18  applauds your close attention to every possible

         19  implication of this project.

         20                 In our judgement, there are few

         21  public improvements that will benefit this City

         22  more.  The AirTrain is long overdue and will

         23  substantially enhance airport transportation access

         24  and circulation.  It will create both immediate

         25  construction employment and long- term economic
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          2  opportunity and development.  It is highly

          3  significant that affected local community boards in

          4  Queens, the Borough Board, and the City Planning

          5  Commission all have endorsed the AirTrain.

          6                 This is because there is an

          7  exceptionally strong case for a rail connection

          8  between Kennedy Airport and the public

          9  transportation system.  The AirTrain is critically

         10  essential to effective utilization of the more than

         11  $7 billion in new construction at Kennedy, which

         12  already is the largest center of development in New

         13  York City and the surrounding Tri- State

         14  metropolitan region.  These new projects simply will

         15  not function together without transportation

         16  improvements, especially the AirTrain.

         17                 Every possible aspect of this

         18  proposal should be weighed by the Council before

         19  approval.  But approval must be forthcoming, if New

         20  York City and the Borough of Queens are to take full

         21  advantage of the benefits of Kennedy Airport's

         22  resurgence. Without the new rail link, the overall

         23  rebuilding program at the airport simply will not

         24  work.  We do not have the luxury of starting over,

         25  not when Newark Airport is so far ahead of us.  The
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          2  AirTrain is not only a well- conceived project, it

          3  is also a solid basis, as you have heard this

          4  morning, for future enhancements to create the best

          5  possible transportation system between Manhattan,

          6  LaGuardia, and the entire transportation system.

          7  And I should add that this is so important for this

          8  project, it's not a preoccupation with a one- seat

          9  ride, New York is not a one- seat town.  It's

         10  creating a totally integrated system that will serve

         11  particularly the people of Queens, who are the

         12  overwhelming users of Kennedy Airport.  Manhattan

         13  does not provide the larger user base for Kennedy.

         14                 In previous correspondence with

         15  members of the Council, the Building Congress

         16  addressed a number of common misperceptions about

         17  the AirTrain proposal.  We are convinced that it

         18  will be a much more effective linkage with the

         19  public transportation system than commonly

         20  acknowledged.  Certainly more effective than the

         21  system for Newark Airport.  It will provide a rapid

         22  connection with Manhattan and serve a wide variety

         23  of travel demands, it is not a second best solution,

         24  but a first class service in every possible way.

         25                 The Building Congress and our 1,200
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          2  members urge the Land Use Committee to recommend

          3  approval by the full City Council. By linking

          4  Kennedy Airport with the regional transportation

          5  system at Howard Beach and Jamaica, AirTrain will

          6  provide New York City with a 21st Century solution

          7  to a decades- old problem.  It will be a most-

          8  impressive greeting to passengers from around the

          9  world.

         10                 I thank you, and I would like to add,

         11  Mr. Chairman, that the AIA, the American Institute

         12  of Architects, New York Chapter, also endorses the

         13  project, they're one of our members, they couldn't

         14  be with us today, after a thorough review by their

         15  Transportation Committee.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         17                 MR. FERNANDEZ:  Good morning, Mr.

         18  Chairman.  My name is Paul Fernandez.  I'm here on

         19  behalf of Ed Malloy, who is the President of the

         20  Building and Construction Trades Council of Greater

         21  New York.  As you know, our organization consists of

         22  60 affiliated unions representing more than 100,000

         23  working men and women in the five boroughs.  And

         24  we're here to urge your support of the AirTrain to

         25  provide a rail link to John F. Kennedy International
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          2  Airport to New York City's mass transit system.  We

          3  believe that doing this will begin a very important

          4  and long over due effort to make our two major

          5  airports accessible without having to endure the

          6  frustrating delays of highway travel.

          7                 Although labor and management in our

          8  industry are obviously concerned with this project

          9  because of the 4,000 construction jobs it will

         10  create, we are quite frankly more concerned about

         11  what this project means in terms of future job

         12  creation and economic growth in New York City as a

         13  whole.

         14                 Will we make the difficult decisions

         15  to keep ourselves competitive and attractive for

         16  business and tourism?  Or will we allow other cities

         17  along the eastern seaboard and across the country to

         18  pass us by with more modern and efficient public

         19  infrastructure systems?  The answers to these

         20  questions will not only affect construction job

         21  creation and the airline industry, but tens of

         22  thousands of other jobs in this City as well.

         23                 We ought to acknowledge that in a

         24  City with a century of development behind it and

         25  densely populated communities, perfect solutions to
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          2  transportation problems are not likely.  We must,

          3  however, support imperfect solutions when they are

          4  reasonable and will yield significant improvements.

          5  The Air Train clearly passes this test.

          6                 One only need look a few miles across

          7  the Hudson River to Newark International Airport in

          8  New Jersey to see how close and real the competition

          9  is.  There, elevated tracks have already been

         10  completed linking its terminals.  Work is moving

         11  forward to connect this loop to the tracks utilized

         12  by Amtrak and New Jersey Transit, which are only a

         13  half hour ride to Penn Station in Manhattan.

         14                 It is worth noting, incidentally,

         15  that the claim we are short- changed by the Port of

         16  Authority of New York and New Jersey becomes very

         17  weak when our neighbors to the west clear the way

         18  for critical inprovements like those made at Newark

         19  Airport, while some in New York are opposing

         20  critical investments here. Opponents of the projects

         21  like the AirTrain are arguably a contributing cause

         22  of these alleged inequalities in such investments

         23  and, as such, have very little credibility pointing

         24  elsewhere, when we may be the source of the problem

         25  ourselves.
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          2                 Mr. Chairman, the AirTrain represents

          3  the best available option to upgrade Kennedy

          4  Airport, put on a solid footing for the next

          5  century.  It has cleared local hurdles that are

          6  often the most difficult.  And, we, therefore again,

          7  urge you and the entire City Council to support this

          8  project and look forward to working with you and

          9  others to assure it proceeds as smoothly as possible

         10  and with as little inconvenience to the surrounding

         11  community.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         13  Questions from the panel?  Thank you very much.

         14                 MR. FERNANDEZ:  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  It's with great

         16  irony that I call the next panel, those of us that

         17  have followed mass transit for years will enjoy the

         18  teaming.  Antoanela Ciomo from the Automobile Club,

         19  and George Haikalis from the Committee for Better

         20  Transit.  I can't resist.  It's one of the few times

         21  you are going to have fun up here, is by doing this.

         22    Please, state your name for the record and who you

         23  represent?

         24                 MS. CIOMO:  Good morning.  I am

         25  Antoanela Ciomo of the Government Affairs Department
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          2  of the Automobile Club of New York.  We are the

          3  local AAA affiliate which serves the membership of

          4  over one million motorists in the New York City,

          5  Long Island, and seven other suburban counties.

          6                 It is our position that the AirTrain

          7  segment proposed should not be built because of the

          8  following reasons:

          9                 First, it cannot be justified from a

         10  cross benefit perspective.  Traffic congestion will

         11  be a serious problem during construction.  Traffic

         12  congestion will be worse after the project is

         13  completed than it is today.  It does nothing for

         14  commuters, truckers, and other travelers not headed

         15  to JFK Airport.

         16                 First of all, there is a poor cost

         17  benefit.  The AirTrain cost of $600 million is

         18  extraordinarily high for a three mile rail link that

         19  will serve only 300 passengers in its peak hour.

         20  Three hundred persons per hour is minuscule by

         21  comparison. A typical lane of highway traffic will

         22  carry over 2,000 persons per hour.  The LIE HOV Lane

         23  in Suffolk carries about 3,000 persons per hour, 10

         24  times the AirTrain.  The six lanes of the Van Wyck

         25  together now carry over 10,000 vehicles per hour.
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          2                 Traffic congestion on the Van Wyck is

          3  already the stuff of legend.  The AirTrain will make

          4  an even bigger message of the Van Wyck during its

          5  four- year construction period.  To understand this,

          6  recognize that:

          7                 Losing one of three lanes, as will

          8  happen off- peak, results in a 50 percent decrease

          9  in capacity, not the 33 percent as might be

         10  expected.

         11                 The proposed narrowing of lanes will

         12  further reduce capacity, especially given the

         13  substantial truck volumes on the Van Wyck.

         14                 The loss of shoulders will magnify

         15  the impact of breakdown, crashes and other

         16  incidents, creating major traffic jams.

         17                 Once peak period traffic flow is lost

         18  on the Van Wyck, it doesn't recover until the after

         19  the peak period is over.

         20                 Furthermore, there are strong

         21  community oppositions to detouring traffic,

         22  especially trucks onto service roads or local

         23  streets.

         24                 Traffic congestion after

         25  construction, to us, is the scariest part.  In four
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          2  years, the Van Wyck will be worse, in terms of

          3  traffic congestion than it is today.  The Port of

          4  Authority itself projects an increase in the number

          5  of hours each day operating at Level of Service F.

          6  All you need to know about this technical label is

          7  that it corresponds to a failing grade of bumper-

          8  to- bumper traffic.

          9                 The problem, simply put, is that

         10  while the Van Wyck's highway capacity will be the

         11  same, or marginally higher due to ramp and shoulder

         12  improvements, airport passenger volumes will grow

         13  from 32 million now to about 45 million in the 2013.

         14    Since AirTrain, under the best of projections,

         15  will only handle a smidgen of them, vehicular

         16  volumes will grow.  This doesn't include any

         17  increases in commuters, trucks and other travelers

         18  not headed to JFK Airport.

         19                 This congestion will stifle economic

         20  and passenger growth at JFK, increase air pollution,

         21  and negatively impact surrounding neighborhoods.

         22                 And lastly, the reason why we are

         23  here is because of our motorists viewpoint.  Our

         24  position is this:  Forget about building this

         25  AirTrain down the center of the Van Wyck.  Instead,
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          2  we suggest investing in added highway capacity on

          3  the Van Wyck, and investing in one of the other

          4  transit options to improve transit access to JFK.

          5                 Why widen the Van Wyck?  Because it

          6  is a three- mile bottleneck that, if widened, would

          7  provide far greater person throughput than the

          8  AirTrain ever will.  This will translate into

          9  benefits, such as a far greater number of passengers

         10  and workers having access to JFK, far better access

         11  for commuters and others not heading to or from JFK,

         12  and far better access for commercial vehicles

         13  delivering goods to JFK, for whom there is no

         14  alternate highway.

         15                 Transit advocates tell us that there

         16  are more cost effective ways to provide train access

         17  to JFK, such as reviving the abandoned LIRR Rockaway

         18  line, which has right- of- way which runs right up

         19  to the airport, and decreasing train headway on the

         20  Howard Beach line, to make travel time to Manhattan

         21  more comparable with the AirTrain.

         22                 It is just important to note that

         23  while everybody talks about the Newark's growth,

         24  what they don't realize is that Newark's growth is

         25  due large impact to the superior highway network
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          2  that Newark enjoys, not because of an air link.  So,

          3  I thank you for your time.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.  Mr.

          5  Haikalis, you're for widening the JFK, I mean, the

          6  Van Wyck, right?

          7                 MR. HAIKALIS:  We agree with a lot of

          8  what the -               CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  But

          9  not that part I don't think.

         10                 MR. HAIKALIS:  My name is George

         11  Haikalis.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I suspect some

         13  of the folks in the audience wouldn't agree with

         14  that part either.

         15                 MR. HAIKALIS:  I'm a civil engineer

         16  and transportation planner, and, in fact, I'm a

         17  member of the Institute for Transportation

         18  Engineers, where my colleague, Mark Coolowitz was

         19  the President last year, and he works at the

         20  Automobile Club of New York, and we have had a long-

         21  standing relationship where we find many things that

         22  we do share in common, and one is the belief that

         23  this is a terrible mistake to build the Van Wyck

         24  elevated railway.

         25                 You can see what it would look like
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          2  on the back page of our handout here.  This is a

          3  monumental construction project in the middle of an

          4  incredibly busy highway, and it really, you have

          5  heard a lot of the negatives, I won't go into them.

          6                 We believe there is a better way,

          7  which we call the Apple Corridor Plan, which is

          8  shown on Figures I and II in the handout.  This

          9  would provide a one- seat ride from Kennedy to

         10  Manhattan using the Rockaway cutoff.  We would also

         11  include completing access to Grand Central Terminal

         12  for the Long Island Rail Road, but we proposed a

         13  streamline way to do it, cutting the cost by two-

         14  thirds and completion time in half, which would put

         15  at about 2005 or 2006.  You can see in the handout

         16  the specifics of the streamlining element.

         17                 We think this is something of great,

         18  it should be of some great interest to the City

         19  Council as well.  The result would be a high speed

         20  ride, 21 minutes from Grand Central Terminal which

         21  is a magnificent place to greet our visitors from

         22  overseas.  It would produce a world class airport

         23  access system comparable to those recently put into

         24  place in Hong Kong and London, which are our

         25  financial competitors.  We also believe that there
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          2  should be a one- seat ride from Kennedy to Jamaica

          3  we don't believe Jamaica is nowhere and you can see

          4  that on our plan as well, but the connection would

          5  be at Woodhaven Junction.  Restoring the Rockaway

          6  cutoff would save a half an hour of travel time for

          7  people commuting from the Rockaway and the Ozone

          8  Park area to Midtown Manhattan.   That is an hour

          9  round trip that they must now use as a route through

         10  Downtown Brooklyn and Lower Manhattan.

         11                 The MTA as you heard before is

         12  actually exploring the one- seat ride in their

         13  study.  That study, which has not been made

         14  available to us in the Transit Advocacy Community,

         15  has not been made available to you folks in the City

         16  Council, you don't know what their study

         17  alternatives are.  In fact, from sources that we

         18  have, we understand the Rockaway cutoff is one of

         19  the key alternatives being studied at this time, and

         20  if that route were chosen, some 80 percent of the

         21  travelers on the Van Wyck El, air passengers would

         22  be on the one- seat ride using the Rockaway.  The El

         23  which is proposed to have 7,000 passengers, which is

         24  a pathetically small number for $598 million.  Can

         25  you imagine 7,000 people going to this gigantic
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          2  station, it would look like an abandoned museum or

          3  mausoleum, this just doesn't make any sense.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

          6  We're joined by Council Member Walter L. McCaffrey

          7  of Queens, and Council Member Koslowitz has a

          8  question.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ:  It's not

         10  really a question, I would just like to make a

         11  statement for the record. Everybody is saying that

         12  if this doesn't, if the JFK rail link doesn't go,

         13  the Apple Corridor.  Well, I am absolutely opposed

         14  to the Apple Corridor because it would have a

         15  tremendous impact on a residential area that has

         16  come out when the Apple Corridor was talked about.

         17  Anyone that lives on the Apple Corridor, up until

         18  probably pass South Ozone Park, from Rego Park, is

         19  totally against it because it will have an impact on

         20  the residential area.

         21                 So I don't believe that if you feel

         22  that this is not the answer, to dump it on a

         23  community that feels that that is not the answer to

         24  them, and it would have their homes destroyed by

         25  creating the Apple Corridor.
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          2                 MR. HAIKALIS:  We don't disagree with

          3  you that any project should have a community

          4  outreach, should have a planning effort.  There is

          5  no planning effort for the Van Wyck El, it was just

          6  foisted on people.  The planning efforts that are

          7  going on for LaGuardia involve an examination of

          8  alternate routes, a debate.  If a particular route

          9  is not going to work, it should not be built.

         10                 We're not saying that you should go

         11  immediately to start to construct this, we're saying

         12  that it is very, very unfair not to look at a range

         13  of alternatives, an open public forum, and instead

         14  push for one that will carry very few people and

         15  will be enormously disruptive.  While we're offering

         16  up what we think is a good idea, we're not saying

         17  that should be done, we're saying that should be

         18  subjected to a careful, public community review, if

         19  that review finds that it doesn't work, so be it,

         20  but right now that hasn't happened.  What we have is

         21  only one option and that is it, and that is not the

         22  way to do planning in this City.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ:  Well, I

         24  have been sitting here for the last hour, and I just

         25  keep hearing the Apple Corridor, and I think that
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          2  was discussed, and it has nothing to do with taking

          3  it from one neighborhood and putting it into

          4  another.  If it's not good for one neighborhood,

          5  then it certainly, another alternative won't be good

          6  for another neighborhood.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  To avoid further

          9  colloquy here, we should remember that we're voting

         10  on a Land Use application here.  This is not a

         11  meeting of the Transportation Committee, this is an

         12  application for a very specific project, and if we

         13  want to talk some method stuff, we can do that

         14  another time, that is not for here.

         15                 I just want to note for the record,

         16  Mr. Haikalis, that in the Daily News you were quoted

         17  as saying that Council wouldn't review this.  I

         18  think I can demonstrate to you that we will be here,

         19  I don't know what times the cows get home, I have

         20  never been home with cows, but we will be here until

         21  the cows come home, if we have to be, to hear people

         22  talk about this.  So before you judge the Council

         23  make sure that you understand we take this job

         24  pretty seriously.

         25                 MR. HAIKALIS:  We're very happy that
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          2  you are having this hearing.   Thank you, Sir.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Great, thank

          4  you.  Next panel will be a panel in favor, Jeffrey

          5  Zupan, James Harris, hand those to the Sergeant- At-

          6  Arms, please, and Sergeant, you should take the

          7  testimony?

          8                 Queens Delegation will be meeting at

          9  two o'clock in the Red Room, which means I will

         10  probably lose all my projects because I will be up

         11  here, but the Queens Delegation will be meeting at

         12  two o'clock in the Red Room.  Okay.  I'm sure you

         13  will have all my interest of heart down there.

         14                 Mr. Zupan, state your name and tell

         15  us who you represent and so on?

         16                 MR. ZUPAN:  My name is Jeffrey Zupan,

         17  Senior Fellow for Transportation for Regional Plan

         18  Association.  RPA has long been a supporter of

         19  direct rail service to the New York region's

         20  airports.  We are here today to address how AirTrain

         21  relates to that goal.

         22                 One of the longstanding frustrations

         23  in the New York Region has been the inability to

         24  find and construct an acceptable one- seat ride to

         25  our airports.  At Newark Airport the decision has
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          2  been made to construct a high- quality, two- seat

          3  solution.  This project includes the construction of

          4  a new station on the New Jersey Transit Northeast

          5  Corridor line, which will be connected to the

          6  airport by a one- mile extension of the on- airport

          7  circulatory. This will make it possible for air

          8  passengers to reach the airport from Penn Station,

          9  New York via a 20- minute trip and a transfer to the

         10  frequently operated circulatory to the three

         11  terminals on the airport.

         12                 We are fortunate that for Kennedy

         13  Airport the AirTrain offers not only a good two-

         14  seat solution, even better than Newark's, in the

         15  short- term but also the potential for a one- seat

         16  alternative in the future.  AirTrain creates this

         17  one- seat potential because it has been designed to

         18  be compatible with either a rapid transit or

         19  commuter rail, unlike what some of the previous

         20  speakers have said, either of which could operate

         21  onto the airport, and because it is located so that

         22  it can be physically connected to either to the

         23  subways or the Long Island Rail Road.

         24                 Like the Newark Airport project,

         25  AirTrain in the short- term will connect air
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          2  passengers and employees to a commuter rail station

          3  with frequent service into Manhattan at Penn

          4  Station, and after 2010 to Grand Central Terminal.

          5  The connection at the Jamaica Center station of the

          6  Long Island Rail Road, with the station improvements

          7  that will be done for AirTrain will be an easy one,

          8  requiring only an escalator ride and a short walk,

          9  as you can see from the model here.  AirTrain will

         10  actually provide more transportation service than

         11  the Newark project for it will also connect the

         12  three subway lines and serve Jamaica Center, one of

         13  the preeminent centers of commercial activity in the

         14  City.  AirTrain will also serve many Long Islanders

         15  who would ride the Long Island Rail Road to Jamaica

         16  and transfer to the airport link.  With these

         17  excellent connections, AirTrain will take 7,000 auto

         18  users off the road each day.

         19                 A good example of how AirTrain's one-

         20  seat potential could be realized is the RPA's

         21  MetroLink proposal, a new four borough subway

         22  service.  MetroLink would build a connection between

         23  the Long Island Rail Road's Atlantic Branch and

         24  AirTrain's Van Wyck Expressway alignment, convert

         25  the Atlantic Branch to subway service and connect
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          2  that service to the new Second Avenue subway at the

          3  Atlantic Terminal in Downtown Brooklyn.  Doing so

          4  would create a one- seat ride from Kennedy to

          5  Downtown Brooklyn taking less than 20 minutes, to

          6  Lower Manhattan taking less than 25 minutes, and to

          7  Grand Central Terminal taking less than 35 minutes.

          8  It would run every ten minutes and charge a low

          9  fare.  It would be the best airport connection of

         10  any international airport in the world.

         11                 Community impacts have become an

         12  issue for AirTrain. If the proposal was for an

         13  elevated subway line, or a new elevated road, or

         14  were it over a normal City street, it would not be

         15  supportable.  But it is a Light Rail project over an

         16  existing and congested Van Wyck Expressway that will

         17  lessen the impact of the existing Expressway on the

         18  community by removing automobiles, over 5,000 per

         19  day initially and more over time from the roadways

         20  in Southeast Queens, and I might indicate

         21  parenthetically if the Auto Club of New York had its

         22  way and we widened the Van Wyck Expressway, we would

         23  have more automobiles in that corridor, not less.

         24                 Were community voices united in their

         25  conclusions about its impacts and in their
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          2  opposition, that too would be a grave concern.  But

          3  the three local Community Boards have each approved

          4  the project.

          5                 RPA believes that modern

          6  infrastructure projects must be creative and

          7  innovative in minimizing community impacts using

          8  community benefit programs, processes of local

          9  outreach and partnership, and anticipating problems

         10  before they occur.  The City Council has the

         11  opportunity and the authority to work with the Port

         12  of Authority to make sure the project will undertake

         13  effective mitigation of project impacts, as the Port

         14  of Authority has pledged.

         15                 We commend the City Council for its

         16  deliberation on this matter, and we hope that our

         17  perspective assists you in your deliberations.

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 MR. HARRIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         20    My name is Jim Harris.  I'm the Executive Director

         21  of the New York Metropolitan Transportation Council.

         22

         23                 The New York Metropolitan

         24  Transportation Council is an association of

         25  governments and transportation providers which
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          2  serves as the federally designated Metropolitan

          3  Planning Organization for New York City, Long

          4  Island, and the lower Hudson Valley.  In this role,

          5  the Council is responsible for a continuing,

          6  coordinated, and comprehensive transportation

          7  planning process in order to maintain the region's

          8  eligibility for Federal transportation funding under

          9  the Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century.

         10  On behalf of the Council's member agencies,  I

         11  appreciate this opportunity to offer our assessment

         12  of the Port of Authority of New York and New

         13  Jersey's proposed Light Rail System serving John F.

         14  Kennedy International Airport.

         15                 As part of this regional

         16  transportation planning process, the Council is

         17  required to establish and regularly update a

         18  Regional Transportation Plan to serve as a basis for

         19  Federal transportation investment decisions.  The

         20  Council's current Plan, which was adopted in 1994

         21  and partially updated in 1998, is expected to be

         22  fully updated this year.  The Plan is built around

         23  nine regional issue areas and related goals and

         24  objectives.  One of these regional goals adopted by

         25  the Council is to provide improved access to the
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          2  region's airports by developing an integrated,

          3  modally- balanced plan for airport users and

          4  employees and for the transport of air freight.

          5                 We have examined the Port of

          6  Authority's proposed project within that context.

          7  Although improving airport access requires a number

          8  of actions and investment decisions, the Council

          9  agrees that the Port of Authority's proposed Light

         10  Rail System project at Kennedy Airport is an

         11  important first step towards that goal for one of

         12  the region's major airports.  This project conforms

         13  with the key principles of the regional goal in the

         14  following ways:

         15                 First, the Council recognizes that

         16  the concept of rail service to Kennedy Airport fills

         17  a missing link to a modally balanced approach for

         18  this transportation hub.  An efficient rail

         19  connection to the regional rail system can produce a

         20  more attractive, time- saving travel option that

         21  bypasses the congested roadways that serve Kennedy

         22  Airport and the surrounding area. Currently, the

         23  principal method of getting to this international

         24  gateway involves using the roadway network via

         25  private auto, taxi, limousine, express bus, or local
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          2  bus.  In terms of mass transit alternatives, express

          3  and local bus users vie with other vehicles for the

          4  same congested space onto he roadway network, while

          5  rail access is only possible through a connection

          6  with local bus service which is not a timely travel

          7  alternative for customers and employees.  The Light

          8  Rail System will create a convenient rail connection

          9  to Manhattan and the nation's busiest intercity rail

         10  passenger terminal, Jamaica, and most communities

         11  served by the Long Island Rail Road.

         12                 The other key principle of improved

         13  airport access stated in the regional goal is

         14  integration.  Access improvements planned for the

         15  airports must, to the greatest extent possible,

         16  offer a seamless connection to and from the regional

         17  transportation system.  With regards to the Light

         18  Rail System project, the Council recognizes the

         19  coordination of efforts among the transportation

         20  agencies collaborating on the proposed project as a

         21  step towards the seamless service called for in the

         22  Regional Transportation Plan goal.  The Port of

         23  Authority and the Metropolitan Transportation

         24  Authority are working cooperatively on transfer

         25  arrangements and physical modifications to link the
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          2  LRS project and the regional rail network as

          3  seamlessly as possible.  In addition, the Port of

          4  Authority and the New York State Department of

          5  Transportation are coordinating the LRS project with

          6  the infrastructure work along the Van Wyck

          7  Expressway to minimize disruption.  These two

          8  agencies along with the New York City Department of

          9  Transportation are working together to handle issues

         10  such as traffic mitigation.  With this level of

         11  agency coordination taking place at an early stage,

         12  this airport exclusive service will be compatible

         13  with the transit system and the shared highway

         14  right- of- way.

         15                 The Light Rail System is also

         16  consistent with parts of other regional goals, those

         17  dealing with mobility and quality of life.  I won't

         18  go into the details of those, but they are in my

         19  prepared testimony, and you can look at them at your

         20  convenience.

         21                 Once again, I would like to thank you

         22  for the opportunity to testify before the Committee,

         23  and I will answer any questions you may have.

         24  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  I
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          2  have a couple of questions for both of you, because

          3  it is someone who was a student of Urban Planning,

          4  much what you say means a lot.  First of all, Mr.

          5  Zupan, in your testimony you correctly point out,

          6  one witness incorrectly pointed out, I believe, that

          7  globally we don't like to bifurcate communities

          8  anymore, that we recognize that as a mistake of past

          9  Urban Planning, yet, the Van Wyck is there, we're

         10  not doing anything about it by putting this thing

         11  down the middle of it, it's already bifurcated, and

         12  you correctly point that out in your testimony.

         13                 But there is something else in your

         14  testimony that I wanted to explore, and that is that

         15  you talked in the testimony about the intermodal

         16  aspect of this and how, I'm sorry, it was Mr.

         17  Harris, in your testimony, you talked about how the

         18  Port of Authority and the MTA are working

         19  cooperatively on transfer arrangements and physical

         20  modifications to the Light Rail project to make the

         21  Regional Rail Network as seamless as possible.  Now,

         22  Jamaica, as Council Member White says, is not

         23  nowhere.  I mean, there are trains that run from

         24  Brooklyn, Manhattan, and all parts of Long Island to

         25  get there as well as subway lines, so it really is
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          2  an intermodal regional hub, and most of us have been

          3  through there and certainly commuters from Long

          4  Island have been through there, ad nauseam, they

          5  here change at Jamaica more than they hear some of

          6  their kids.  What are they doing, because we got

          7  testimony from Mr. Shaw that talks about some

          8  lengthy period down the line, and I would like to

          9  hear your thoughts since, you know, you are involved

         10  in this, as a planner?

         11                 MR. HARRIS:  What the MTA is doing in

         12  terms of coordinating it with the Port of Authority?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  In terms of

         14  making this ultimately a seamless?

         15                 MR. HARRIS:  Well, the MTA is

         16  undertaking a study. I think there has been

         17  testimony before you today that they are undertaking

         18  a study which is looking at the potential for the

         19  one seat ride.  The won't occur, as Mr. Shaw pointed

         20  out, for a number of years, but in terms of the

         21  coordination between the Port of Authority and the

         22  Metropolitan Transportation Authority on this

         23  particular project, the station is undergoing a

         24  planning and a design for reconfiguration of the

         25  Jamaica Intermodal Station, and the Port of
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          2  Authority and the MTA are working together to

          3  minimize the connection time and the inconvenience

          4  between the Light Rail and the Long Island Rail Road

          5  platforms so that the transfer will be as seamless

          6  as possible.  Clearly, it won't be as seamless as

          7  not having to make any transfer, but to the extent

          8  possible that that connection will be made as

          9  invisible as possible to the people who will be

         10  going to and from JFK.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, any other

         12  questions? Thank you.  I'm going to call up a panel

         13  in opposition now, Reverend Charles Norris, Bishop

         14  Norbi Acharya, are you here?  Okay, Bishop, are you

         15  here?  No.  Bishop Acharya, going once, twice?

         16  Reverend Norris, come on up.  Reverend Norris, state

         17  your name and who you represent for the record?

         18                 REV. NORRIS:  Okay, my name is

         19  Reverend Charles L. Norris, Sr.  I'm the Pastor of

         20  the Bethesda Missionary Baptist Church of Jamaica,

         21  New York, - -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Hold on,

         23  Reverend Norris.  If we can get, it's not the crowd

         24  in the room, it's the crowd in the back of the room

         25  now that is causing a little problem, so if you guys

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            77

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  could take the conversation outside?  Thank you.

          3                 REV. NORRIS:  Thank you, Sir.  I'm

          4  the Pastor of the Bethesda Missionary Baptist Church

          5  of Jamaica, New York, and also, the Executive

          6  Secretary for Southeast Queens Clergy for Community

          7  Empowerment.  We claim to talk to almost one-

          8  quarter of a million people every Sunday morning at

          9  the 11:00 a.m. Service in our churches.  I also

         10  serve and work with the Southeast Queens Concerned

         11  Neighbors, which is a Coalition of organizations of

         12  the Southeast Queens area.

         13                 And I'm here primarily to say that

         14  we're not favor, I'm not favor, nor is my

         15  organization favor of the Light Rail, because we

         16  think it is going to be detrimental to our

         17  community, and would also harm those houses, those

         18  persons who are living there, and it will not be

         19  beneficial to those persons who work in the airport.

         20    If it is only going to serve, as we have been

         21  reading about, 7,000 people per day and 2,000 of

         22  them are supposed to be workers in the airport, we

         23  seem to feel that the people who work in the airport

         24  will continue to go to the airport to their jobs as

         25  they have been doing before, and that is, either by
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          2  bus or by driving their cars and parking them in the

          3  airport.  We can't understand why they would have to

          4  schlep whatever they would carry with them all the

          5  way to Jamaica Rail Road Station, get on the Light

          6  Rail, and then ride into the airport where they

          7  work.  So we think that is one bad thing.

          8                 There are other ways of doing what

          9  you really need to do and what we need in our

         10  community to get to the airport, but I don't think

         11  this is the way to do it.

         12                 The other thing that bothers us,

         13  bothers me tremendously is the arrogance of the Port

         14  of Authority, that they would apply for a right to

         15  examine the water under Van Wyck Express, if that is

         16  correct, and also for the negligence of the City to,

         17  I think, supposedly grant them that right to do that

         18  when this City Council has not passed upon the fact

         19  that they're going to have the Light Rail, that is

         20  arrogance personified, and we certainly disagree

         21  with that.

         22                 We also sort of feel betrayed by some

         23  of the people whom we elected and how they have gone

         24  in the direction in which they have gone, and we

         25  know that term limits is going to term them out, but
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          2  we trust that, I guess, they will decide to retire

          3  after that, but if they decide to run for some other

          4  office, I doubt if we will forget as easy as we have

          5  been forgetting about those people whom we elect, so

          6  we need to have them be reminded that we are not in

          7  favor of this Light Rail.  I know some say,

          8  Reverend, you're fighting a losing battle, and they

          9  said, get on the right side.  I think I'm on the

         10  right side, and this may be the same side that Joe

         11  Louis said he was on when he had God on his side,

         12  and we have God on our side.  So we hope that we can

         13  use this final dimension, this final step up and get

         14  to those of you who can see why we are not in favor

         15  and trust that the Council will vote in opposition

         16  and vote negatively in favor or vote against the

         17  Light Rail.

         18                 That is it, thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you,

         20  Reverend Norris. Any questions?  Reverend Floyd

         21  Flake, former Congressman.

         22                 REV. FLAKE:  Thank you very much, and

         23  good morning.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  You're not here

         25  in your role of press credentials, you're here as a
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          2  witness today.

          3                 REV. FLAKE:  I'm here as a witness, I

          4  don't know, I forget what I am half of the time.

          5  But thank you for the opportunity to come and

          6  testify.

          7                 The question of the JFK AirTrain has

          8  been of great concern for me, even during my time in

          9  Congress when we had to vote for the fee that would

         10  allow the airports to collect it in order to develop

         11  a means by which this might become, hopefully, a

         12  reality.

         13                 I did not come to support easily, my

         14  support came in an analysis, not only of JFK, but an

         15  analysis of the Newark Airport as well.  From the

         16  perspective of competitiveness, what I discovered

         17  was that, for the most part, the Newark Airport has

         18  been growing tremendously based on its ability to

         19  attract traffic from New York City.  As I looked at

         20  what happened in Newark and its expansion, lack of

         21  expansion at Kennedy Airport, the reality is that

         22  you cannot hope to be able to develop the kind of

         23  competitive structure without developing access to

         24  the airport that is more convenient to those who are

         25  its users.  Furthermore, you cannot expect to be
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          2  able to develop Jamaica as a community and as its

          3  Downtown, in particular, without having a means of

          4  providing access to the persons who work there.

          5                 During the years of my Congressional

          6  and Pastoral reign in the community, I found often

          7  that it is not always been a community base of

          8  support that has allowed for many of the other

          9  projects that have developed, but with the only

         10  Congressional District in the City of New York where

         11  you have three Federal facilities being built at

         12  this very moment, there is a reality that I think I

         13  have a pretty good understanding of what it takes

         14  for the economy of a community to survive and to be

         15  sustained.  I see the Rail Link as merely another

         16  step in a process of bringing a community to that

         17  place where it ought to be, and that is a community

         18  that is stable, that is viable, and that is

         19  economically sound enough to attract others to

         20  become participants in it.

         21                 Its future in not, based on the fact

         22  that there will be, I understand that there would be

         23  momentary inconvenience, but I think the long- term

         24  good of trying to develop the Downtown segment of

         25  Jamaica, to be able to maintain competitiveness with
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          2  Newark, outweighs this momentary inconvenience for

          3  me and for many others who are citizens of the

          4  community.

          5                 In the final analysis, we must raise

          6  questions.  The questions we must raise are about

          7  whether we are going to be economically viable

          8  players in the overall regional economy of New York,

          9  or whether we will sit in a community with a

         10  potential of losing an airport, and as business

         11  ceases to come to that airport, begin to cry later

         12  on about the opportunity that passed us by.

         13                 This is a great opportunity, I think

         14  we should take full advantage of it, I think it is

         15  in our best interest, and I dared to suggest that I

         16  don't want to be sitting 10 years from now, once

         17  again, looking at an opportunity that was offered to

         18  Jamaica, and then we look back and talk about what

         19  we don't have.  This is an opportunity to move

         20  forward and to be competitive and to stop losing our

         21  clientele to Newark, which already has its Rail

         22  Link, and will soon connect to Penn Station through

         23  the Newark Station, and when that happens, it will

         24  be even more difficult to convince people that they

         25  ought to come to Kennedy.  And I would hope that
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          2  this Council will vote in support of the Rail Link.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you very

          4  much.  Let's keep it quiet, I asked you to keep it

          5  down, let's keep it moving. Thank you, Reverend

          6  Flake.  Could you just come back, we might have

          7  questions, Reverend Flake, anybody?  Okay.  All

          8  right, please, it is easier for everyone if we sort

          9  of keep the loudness down and move along quickly.

         10  We have a bunch of witnesses from the Southeast

         11  Queens Concerned Neighbors, and what I will do is I

         12  will try to bring them up in groups, I guess.  I

         13  guess there are no questions, I thought there might

         14  be, but no.  Okay, thank you.

         15                 REV. FLAKE:  Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  I'm

         17  going to call up Ruth DuBerry, Ruth Bryam, and Ruby

         18  Ward, please, come up.  Okay, you can start in

         19  whatever order.

         20                 MS. WARD:  Okay, first of all, let me

         21  say thank you for allowing us to come before you.

         22  For those Council persons --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Identify

         24  yourself for the record, please?

         25                 MS. WARD:  My name is Ruby Ward, and
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          2  I'm President of the Concerned Neighbors of

          3  Southeast Queens.  For those Chairpersons who seek

          4  to justify voting in favor of the AirTrain because

          5  it views as a Queens project, or because they think

          6  that the Councilman Archie Spigner, or Gregory

          7  Meeks, or Rev. Floyd Flake's baby, they are

          8  mistaken.  This is a very important region project

          9  and will determine for a long time to its

         10  completion.  How conveniently will traveling to and

         11  from JFK Airport, consequently it will have a

         12  significant, economic impact for better or worse on

         13  this metropolitan area.  It has a lot to do with you

         14  and your constituents, and this is why it is so

         15  critical that wisdom and vision, and not

         16  misperception govern your vote.

         17                 Now I heard them say it has been

         18  going on for 30 years, and I know that is probably

         19  what the Port of Authority looks at, for 30 years

         20  this thing has been going on, they have been trying

         21  to fix this plane to the train, and this time they

         22  have decided we got the money, I don't care who it

         23  hurts, or where it go, we're going to destroy those

         24  people and build this train, they have made up their

         25  mind, and this is wrong.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            85

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 You're talking about jobs, you have

          3  got the union people here thinking, we are going to

          4  cut their jobs out.  We don't want to take your

          5  jobs, we know that you have to work, but we are

          6  talking about that small, little part of the El on

          7  Van Wyck we don't want there, because it is going to

          8  cause too much chaos, too much trouble for our

          9  families, for our homes, for our community, that

         10  little 3.1 mile, we're talking about, the El.  Where

         11  asking them to go back to the drawing board.  They

         12  said they were in good with the MTA, well they need

         13  some instruction from them because they know how to

         14  treat people.  I want you to know the Port of

         15  Authority came into our community and they came into

         16  our community and brought their project already made

         17  up and shoved it down our throat.  Now this is not

         18  what it is to be.  Now as far as them working with

         19  PA, they need some lessons from them to know how to

         20  work together.

         21                 And I would just like to say to those

         22  who are here, I'm here today to say to you, I live

         23  there, my home is there, it may not look like much

         24  to you, but that is our home, and we ask you today,

         25  let them go back to the board, let them go back to
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          2  the joined table, Rev. Floyd has never been in the

          3  area where he is up here talking about, he has not

          4  been there.  Archie Spigner, walking around, he has

          5  never been to a meeting that we called over there.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  We're not going

          7  to allow personal attacks here.

          8                 MS. WARD:  Okay, all right, all

          9  right, okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Everyone is

         11  going to get a hearing, but this isn't about my

         12  colleagues or other elected officials.

         13                 MS. WARD:  All right, but to say

         14  that, they're just not doing the right thing about

         15  us over there, and we're saying to you, please, we

         16  beg you, Councilman, Councilwoman, please, go back

         17  and sit down with them.   We don't want to stop

         18  progress, progress we know must go on.  We asking

         19  about that little El that is down the middle of the

         20  Van Wyck, that is what we're asking you to consider,

         21  this is a life- long thing for us.

         22                 And I want to say thank you for

         23  letting me speak.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         25  State your name for the record, please?
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          2                 MS. BRYAM:  My name is Ruth Bryam.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I saw you on TV

          4  yesterday.

          5                 MS. BRYAM:  You did.  I'm a member of

          6  the Southeast Concerned Neighbors, and also, the

          7  United Neighbors Civic Association, and we are

          8  definitely opposed to the construction of this

          9  AirTrain, which is being proposed by the Port of

         10  Authority along the middle of the Van Wyck, which is

         11  going to be 50 feet up in the air.  It is ill

         12  conceived, illogical waste of money.

         13                 Who does it serve?  It is not a one-

         14  seat ride from Manhattan to JFK, and it will not

         15  remove traffic off the Van Wyck Expressway.  It does

         16  not provide transportation for Southeast Queens

         17  residents, and they are the ones who will suffer the

         18  chaos that constructing this train will bring.  It

         19  will remove 7,000 riders off the Expressway.  There

         20  are other vehicles traveling on the roadway not

         21  going to the airport, air cargo trucks will still

         22  have to use the route to go to the airport.  If the

         23  cars and the trucks can't get on the Expressway,

         24  they will use our residential streets.  Our streets

         25  are not capable of handling such heavy traffic.  The
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          2  noise and air pollution that will result from the

          3  digging and pile driving will only add to the

          4  disturbance of the residents and increase the

          5  problem of asthma and respiratory infections in our

          6  community.  Jamaica is known as one of the highest

          7  for asthma in children, and certainly, this will

          8  only add to the situation.

          9                 The trucks and all that will be

         10  coming through the streets is an unsafe situation as

         11  a result of those long, heavy trucks that will be

         12  trying to turn on our narrow streets. There is also

         13  another problem that we have, our streets are old

         14  and the pipes underneath them are easily broken, and

         15  when they break nowadays, the residents who live in

         16  front of those places will have to pay to have them

         17  fixed.  This is because now the City has taken over

         18  since Jamaica Water is no longer who would pay for

         19  these things.  So that we have an added burden that

         20  will be upon us.

         21                 As far as providing jobs, there will

         22  be few jobs after the construction, and during the

         23  construction period, I must tell you, that contracts

         24  have already been let out to other states. I have an

         25  example of one, in Bayshore Concrete Products in
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          2  Cape Charles, Virginia, they have already had a

          3  contract let out to them.

          4                 Now the construction industry is

          5  talking so much about jobs for New York,  and yet

          6  they are letting them out, out of New York.  There

          7  is something wrong there, I don't quite understand

          8  what is going on, but certainly we are the ones who

          9  will suffer, this will be something that we will

         10  have to endure, and yet, we will not be riding it,

         11  and we will not get any benefit from it, and they

         12  talk about the Van Wyck El bringing economic

         13  development to the Southeast Queens, no one is going

         14  to get off that train and stop on Jamaica Avenue to

         15  shop, you can tell me as much as you want to they

         16  are going to do a whole lot of improvement, but it

         17  is going to take a long time for them to do it.

         18  They already have good bus service, they have good

         19  trains coming into there, so who is going to get off

         20  an AirTrain that they're on their way to the airport

         21  and they are going to stop on Jamaica Avenue to

         22  shop.  No way is that possible.

         23                 So that what we really want to say to

         24  you is that this is supposed to be a transportation

         25  issue, it's not supposed to be an economic
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          2  development issue.  So what is happening, why is

          3  this being played into at this point?  The Board of

          4  the Port of Authority of New York and New Jersey has

          5  also, they have to sign off on all the promises that

          6  are being made to many of our organizations, that

          7  are being made to the business establishment, to the

          8  community organizations and to some of the

          9  residents.  Who is to say that those Port of

         10  Authority people will sign off on these things,

         11  because they really haven't been a good neighbor to

         12  Queens in the past, and we don't expect that they

         13  will do any different in the future?

         14                 So that, what I would say to you now

         15  is, that the report by the Finance and Economic

         16  Development Committee of the City Council says it

         17  all, they said the train to the plane are money down

         18  the drain.  And as far as we are concerned, I think

         19  you should really take into consideration as our

         20  Council people, and remember that we are the

         21  residents who will be suffering.   And as I said

         22  about the construction industry, they will be jobs,

         23  don't care where they build, and that is what we

         24  want to impress.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

          3                 MS. DUBERRY:  Ready?  My name is Ruth

          4  DuBerry from the Southeast Queens Concerned

          5  Neighbors, also the United Neighbor Civic

          6  Association, member of Community Board #12, and

          7  actually Area One Chairperson, that represents the

          8  area of the community that you see here opposing

          9  this, and that weren't listened to when they were

         10  out, and that is why the Community Board voted the

         11  way they did.

         12                 But just one thing to add to what Ms.

         13  Bryam already said about - -

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Just before you

         15  go on, I'm going to take a little prerogative here,

         16  I take as a former member of the community, my own

         17  Community Board, I take exception.  I have heard all

         18  these witnesses say, the Community Boards didn't

         19  know what they were doing, they were misinformed.

         20                 MS. DUBERRY:  I didn't say that, I

         21  didn't say that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, we have

         23  got three Community Boards who approve this, and I

         24  think if they felt it was wrong they would have

         25  somehow sent a letter or reviewed it or something
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          2  like that.  So let's not belittle their work, they

          3  work as volunteers and they work very hard.

          4                 MS. DUBERRY:  I'm a member of

          5  Community Board #12 and I just wanted to say that

          6  the numbers of people who came out, the majority

          7  were against, and yet, the Board voted for it, that

          8  is all I said.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, I just

         10  want to point out that, you know, - -

         11                 MS. DUBERRY:   Yes, I agree.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI: - -  we like to

         13  trash the Community Boards, but I don't see them

         14  here saying that they were wrong, and, in fact, you

         15  know, when you are on the losing side something was

         16  wrong, when you're on the winning side everyone was

         17  right.  Let's give them their due, they're

         18  intelligent people.

         19                 MS. DUBERRY:  All right, I didn't

         20  intend to do that, but I will say that the

         21  irregularities that did occur have been sent to the

         22  appropriate authority.

         23                 Just to go on, how is it that City

         24  agencies can study a project, conclude that it has

         25  more holes in it than a harmonica and still tell its
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          2  backers to go ahead?  Unfortunately, early this

          3  month the City Planning Commission, despite having

          4  nothing good to say about it, voting 11 to 1 in

          5  favor of the Port of Authority.  The JFK Rail Link

          6  project will do little to enhance the airport

          7  capacity with a ridership of 7,000 passengers a day.

          8

          9                 At the May 20th, 1999, City Council's

         10  Finance and Economic Development hearings, the Port

         11  of Authority admitted three things:

         12                 1.  The Port of Authority stated that

         13  they could not guarantee jobs during construction,

         14  or permanent jobs after construction.

         15                 2.  The Port of Authority also said

         16  that they could not guarantee a one- seat ride from

         17  Manhattan to JFK.

         18                 3.  The Port of Authority also stated

         19  that they cannot guarantee increased economic

         20  development of Jamaica.  The key word here is

         21  guarantee.

         22                 As to jobs, Ms. Bryam, already talked

         23  about Bombardier, contract to building the AirTrain

         24  cars Upstate, and the other concrete bed of the

         25  AirTrain being shipped by barge to Jamaica, New York
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          2  from Cape Charles, Virginia.

          3                 As to the one- seat ride, I spoke of

          4  that as well, but they're not evening providing a

          5  two- to three- seat, fast, reliable, convenient

          6  accessible ride.  It certainly is not cost effective

          7  with projected ridership of 7,000 passengers a day,

          8  with almost half of them employees.

          9                 As to the increased economic

         10  development to Jamaica, if 220,000 daily passengers

         11  passed through the Jamaica/Sutphin Boulevard, Long

         12  Island Rail Road Station daily, presently.  And the

         13  many passengers using the Archer Avenue/Parsons

         14  Boulevard hub to utilize the E, J, and Z subways, as

         15  well as the many thousands of bus riders to and from

         16  Queens communities, if that has not increased

         17  Jamaica's economic development, how will the

         18  additional 7,000 daily AirTrain riders accomplish

         19  this long awaited feat?  We haven't heard that

         20  answer yet.

         21                 Your City Council Finance and

         22  Economic Development Committee report titled, "Train

         23  to the Plane are Money Down the Drain," quite

         24  clearly states our community's feelings about this

         25  project much better than I could ever state.  Paul
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          2  A. Crotty, Corporation Counsel of the City of New

          3  York, strongly urges you to deny the project in its

          4  entity.

          5                 Southeast Queens Concerned Neighbors

          6  ask that you deny the Van Wyck link of the Light

          7  Rail System and consider an alternative for this

          8  link.  We are depending on all of you, please, don't

          9  let us down.  Wait for the results of the MTA one-

         10  seat ride study, or better still have an independent

         11  agency do a separate study since they have been very

         12  secretive about it, and then I sat here today and

         13  heard them say that they're working with the Port of

         14  Authority and everything is okay, so I don't see how

         15  they would approve an alternative.

         16                 But, anyway, I would like to say that

         17  we do not oppose restoration of the Rockaway Beach

         18  Branch of the Long Island Rail Road.  It may take

         19  longer to build, but it certainly won't take the 30

         20  or more years that the Port of Authority has taken

         21  to present the boondoggle train.  It is as if the

         22  Port of Authority said, New York is angry because we

         23  built a monorail for Newark Airport, but by the way,

         24  that monorail travels to an industrial area and not

         25  pass homes.  So they said let's give them something
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          2  to placate them, so don't settle for a half blank

          3  job.  This may be a mass transit project, but even

          4  the Port of Authority estimate of 7,000 passengers a

          5  day, will not remove a sufficient number of cars

          6  from the Van Wyck Expressway.

          7                 Many who prefer a one- seat ride,

          8  even if it's slower, will continue to use and share

          9  cabs and black cars, or use buses and vans.  At

         10  present, many cars driving the Van Wyck Expressway

         11  are residents from other communities who use Belt

         12  Parkway to the Van Wyck to and from jobs in

         13  Manhattan.   Maybe a park and ride area could be

         14  provided at one of the stations of the Rockaway

         15  Beach Line, if it is restored, which would decrease

         16  the number of cars entering Manhattan, decreasing

         17  congestion as well. And even Southeast Queens riders

         18  would be able to use the Rockaway Beach Line.

         19                 The Port of Authority also admits the

         20  need for a fourth train being built later after the

         21  completion of the Van Wyck El, which would be

         22  compatible with the Van Wyck El and the MTA and TA

         23  trains.  Who will pay for this fourth train?  New

         24  York City taxpayers.

         25                 Thank you very much for hearing me.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

          3  Okay, I'm going to call up the next panel, the

          4  Subcommittee on Planning, Dispositions and

          5  Concessions is meeting in the next room of which I

          6  am a member and there are roll call votes, and as I

          7  call up the panel, I will ask them to come up, I

          8  will ask Council Member Wooten to take over the

          9  gavel until I get back.  The panel consists of John

         10  McRae, Democratic District Leader; Carlisle Towery,

         11  Greater Jamaica Development; James Heyliger,

         12  Association of Minority Enterprises of New York.  I

         13  see John, I see Carlisle, where is Mr. Heyliger?

         14  Come on up, thank you.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN:  Please,

         16  identify yourself for the record?

         17                 MR. MCRAE:  Good morning, my name is

         18  John McRae, and I would like to also say that I am

         19  also a member of the Community Board #12, but I

         20  would like to make this presentation on behalf of

         21  myself, primarily because I live one block from the

         22  Van Wyck Expressway, and I think this is a matter

         23  that particularly involves me rather than everybody

         24  or anybody else.

         25                 I would like to say that it has been
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          2  my experience that things are very often different

          3  than what they seem, and we have to deal with the

          4  facts as it goes, and the facts says very clearly

          5  that there were three boards, three Community Boards

          6  that had the option to review all of the facts that

          7  were presented to them and vote.  Each Community

          8  Board, 8, 10, and 12, had 30 to 40 members and they

          9  had a right to their own opinion, and that is one of

         10  the great things about this country, we all have the

         11  right to agree or to disagree, and sometimes we do

         12  agree and sometimes we disagree.

         13                 Now in the later 1970s the City

         14  Charter was amended to form Community Boards.  The

         15  Community Boards were formed to deal with these

         16  issues, and that is exactly what they did.  They

         17  dealt with the issues that was presented to them and

         18  they took their vote.  The vote was in favor of the

         19  overhead rail system with conditions.  They had to

         20  deal with whatever facts were presented to them and

         21  that is exactly what they did.  The Community Board

         22  members are all voluntary, they are not paid they

         23  are not salaried, and they are qualified, and they

         24  do the best that they can with what they have.

         25                 Now as we go into the problems
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          2  involving the overhead rail system, I respectfully

          3  call your attention to what most of the people are

          4  actually saying, and what they're saying is, during

          5  the construction phase of the overhead rail system,

          6  the people in Southeast Queens will suffer.  And why

          7  will they suffer? Because of the lack of code

          8  enforcement, there should not be tractor trailers

          9  coming down residential streets, there should not be

         10  cement trucks washing their residue, blocking up our

         11  sewers, there should not be the problems that we are

         12  having in our community of Southeast Queens and our

         13  people are a little bit distrustful of the fact that

         14  we are not getting sometimes our fair share.  And I

         15  think that if the New York City Council were to

         16  consider the Committees on the Community Board and

         17  it would allow us to work a little closer with you,

         18  we would be able to enforce code, and we would be

         19  able to enact code enforcement.  I believe that most

         20  of our problem, most of the problems that have been

         21  presented to you today, have to do more with code

         22  enforcement than with the lack of or the not wanting

         23  to have the overhead rail system.

         24                 Basically, I call your attention to

         25  the fact that each Community Board did vote in favor
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          2  of the overhead rail system with conditions.  And,

          3  again, I say without going through too much, without

          4  going through too much, I say to you, to the New

          5  York City Council, I urge you to allow the Community

          6  Boards to have a little more to say about code

          7  enforcement.  We need code enforcement in order to

          8  better our community.

          9                 Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         11  Question, Council Member Spigner.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  John, I just

         13  take this opportunity to put on the record some

         14  scurrilous allegations to the extent that Archie

         15  Spigner threatened Community Board members as to

         16  their vote.

         17                 MR. MCRAE:  I am - -

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  John, let me

         19  finish.  Have you ever heard, has any member of the

         20  Community Board come to you alleging that I

         21  threatened them, and how would I threaten them?

         22                 MR. MCRAE:  I am the second Vice-

         23  President, I'm sorry, the third Vice- Chairman of

         24  the Community Board, and I would like to say for the

         25  record that since I heard of the overhead rail

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            101

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  system, no one has offered me anything, or no one

          3  has happened to ask for anything.  I have not heard

          4  any public official coming to the Board instructing

          5  anyone as to how they should vote.  We have had many

          6  Committee meetings and we have had many discussions

          7  during those meetings, and we have had many

          8  arguments during those meetings.  But, no, Sir, to

          9  answer your question, I don't know of any member,

         10  any Board member on Community Board #12 that has

         11  ever said that Councilman Spigner or Councilman

         12  White or Councilwoman Juanita Watkins, has in any

         13  way influenced their vote with any kind of

         14  derogatory threat or otherwise.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  Okay, thank

         16  you.

         17                 I just want to put on the record, and

         18  I invite anyone who has, who felt that they were

         19  threatened by me to come forward and state it for

         20  the record at this meeting, or go to the District

         21  Attorney's Office.  I have told that to the courier

         22  who consistently asked me this, go to the District

         23  Attorney's Office, if you have been threatened by

         24  Archie Spigner in relation to your vote on Community

         25  Board #12.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 MR. TOWERY:  Good afternoon, Mr.

          4  Chairman.  I am Carlisle Towery of Greater Jamaica

          5  Development Corporation.  I speak for my Chairman,

          6  Arthur Benjamin, who has been with us for several

          7  years, and as Greater Jamaica worked over the past

          8  three decades with joint efforts with business

          9  community and government to foster the

         10  revitalization of Jamaica Center.

         11                 We have respectfully written to you

         12  to correct two points in your report released at the

         13  Council's hearings of Economic Development and

         14  Finance Committee.  I will touch on them lightly.

         15  This report, as did a previous witness suggested,

         16  that few people would get off the AirTrain and shop

         17  there, we never suggested that that was the

         18  definition of economic development, in fact, we

         19  agree with them.  We have, indeed, suggested that

         20  Jamaica will realize economic development stimulated

         21  by AirTrain positioning our Downtown to attract

         22  offices, meeting facilities, hotels, freight

         23  forwarders, activities which recognize the value of

         24  being 10 minutes away from Jamaica via safe, quiet,

         25  reliable train.
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          2                 Second, I take exception to calling,

          3  labeling the Jamaica route, the Van Wyck El, that

          4  brings up images of rattling, spark throwing, steel

          5  structures on City streets very close to buildings.

          6  This is a concrete fixed guideway in the middle of a

          7  throughway, as you know, and it's of 100 feet to 120

          8  feet, to even 200 feet from properties, it's not an

          9  El.

         10                 But we're here really to call your

         11  attention to the positive benefits of AirTrain which

         12  we will have for Southeast Queens, Jamaica and for

         13  our City.  Aviation, I emphasize, is one of the

         14  largest industries in the City, very important to

         15  Queens.  You may not know that 42 percent of all the

         16  employees at JFK are Queens residents.  These men

         17  and women are the pilots and crews, ticket handlers,

         18  check in, behind the scenes aviation- related

         19  employees, people who prepare the meals, clean the

         20  planes, handle the luggage, provide the services and

         21  products airlines, employed in the shops and

         22  restaurants at the airport, other businesses.

         23  Please note that these activities often offer entry

         24  level employment opportunities and jobs for those

         25  with limited training.
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          2                 Lower passenger usage of our airports

          3  means that less of these people will be employed.

          4  New York City has, regrettably, not kept pace with

          5  the nation or with Newark in the battle to keep

          6  these jobs.  Last year Newark exceeded JFK in the

          7  number of passengers, flights from Long Island are

          8  increasing. Let's take the steps required to

          9  strengthen JFK so that it keeps pace with its

         10  competition.

         11                 Modern airports, increasingly, have

         12  convenient passenger- friendly rail connections to

         13  transit hubs and prime destinations.  Some 35 cities

         14  in the globe across the world now have rail links,

         15  but we have the Van Wyck Expressway, express only in

         16  name.  AirTrain, I submit, is really the only sure

         17  expressway to the airport.  Newark has a Light Rail

         18  System connecting its terminals, it will soon be

         19  connected to AmTrack, that connection is off the

         20  airport, and I emphasize that the Air Transport

         21  Association did not approve that off airport

         22  connection.

         23                 AirTrain's appeal is that people from

         24  throughout the region will be able to reach JFK by

         25  three subways, nine commuter rail trains, and many
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          2  buses with a minor transfer in a modern attractive,

          3  comfortable new station in Jamaica.  I call your

          4  attention to this wonderful model here.  No

          5  pollution, no honking horns, no "will- I- miss- my-

          6  flight?" Hysteria.

          7                 Stressing the economic development

          8  effects, AirTrain will position the emerging

          9  Downtown of Jamaica as a prominent gateway business

         10  center for JFK.  We are convinced that AirTrain's

         11  short ride to the airport and the Long Island Rail

         12  Road's short ride to Manhattan, will attract

         13  aviation enterprises to Jamaica. We're working on

         14  that, we would be pleased to report to you as we

         15  move along on those feasibility studies, Mr.

         16  Chairman.

         17                 In short, this will make Jamaica the

         18  convenient, front door gateway to JFK enabling

         19  convenient advancement in the revitalization of this

         20  important part of the City.  Please join us in

         21  advancing this revitalization.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

         24  Heyliger.

         25                 MR. HEYLIGER:  Thank you.  To the
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          2  Council members and the Chairperson, on behalf of

          3  the Minority Business Community here in New York

          4  City, and particularly Southeast Queens, as

          5  President of the Association of Minority Enterprises

          6  of New York, we thank you for this opportunity to

          7  place on record our support for the Light Rail

          8  project.  AMENY, believes this project represents a

          9  potential of over $100 million of economic

         10  development in accompanying jobs for the Southeast

         11  Queens Community.  And as a previous Deputy Director

         12  of Economic Development for the State of New York

         13  under Basil Paterson, I am prepared to identify

         14  those potential possibilities.  Anyone who

         15  understands Jamaica growth of late since the E and

         16  the J, and a possible line has been established,

         17  there is not a vacant storefront on Sutphin

         18  Boulevard, Archer Avenue access rail.  So clearly,

         19  the improvement of this becoming a transportation

         20  hub is an economic viability.

         21                 However, I'm not here today to echo

         22  that more than 80 percent of our community in

         23  Southeast Queens has voted for this Light Rail

         24  project, nor am I here to honor the creditability or

         25  legitimacy of the ULURP procedure, which suggests
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          2  that the various Community Boards have adhered to.

          3  Today, I am here voting and speaking in behalf of my

          4  grandchildren and my daughter- in- law who suffers

          5  from asthma.  This is a family situation, there is

          6  not a single protester here who has lived next to

          7  this Van Wyck Expressway longer than my family has.

          8  When my family moved here there was no Van Wyck

          9  Expressway, there were all houses there, they were

         10  carted away on trucks.

         11                 The day we moved into Southeast

         12  Queens there was no Expressway, and if you look at

         13  it now, which there was an expressway, it is a junk

         14  yard.  The reality of it is that the ATA has duped a

         15  legitimate segment of our community into thinking

         16  that this Light Rail is going to downgrade our

         17  property, bring about a hazardous situation, when,

         18  in fact, just the opposite is true.

         19                 In Boston, Massachusetts, a Light

         20  Rail project going through the middle of a community

         21  happens to have the highest property value in the

         22  State of Massachusetts.  So, therefore, it is

         23  appealing to our hysteria granting that our

         24  precious, precious property is the most that we

         25  have, we are being leaned on to make it appear as
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          2  though that is going down the drain.  I submit to

          3  you that is not the case.  I also submit to you that

          4  many of us conferred with the Port of Authority and

          5  others and have prepared a situation to protect our

          6  homes and our property.

          7                 I must also like to say to you that

          8  this will bring Federal dollars, State dollars, and

          9  additional City dollars into it.  The ATA is what?

         10  They have for 50 years done nothing for us, the only

         11  thing we can say that the ATA has done in reference

         12  to our community, they have given us T- shirts and

         13  they have given us sandwiches, they have given us a

         14  damn thing else and don't plan to.

         15                 When this project is gone, they will

         16  disappear like they have been disappearing before,

         17  and will never, ever show again, and our people will

         18  be left 10 years down the drain with nothing to

         19  accomplish and enhance our houses.  This project can

         20  enhance our situation, this project if dealt with

         21  the community input that we have demanded and have a

         22  contractual obligation to see come forward will

         23  enhance not only Southeast Queens but all of New

         24  York City.

         25                 And if anyone wishes to identify how
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          2  that can be done, we stand ready to prove that.

          3                 I thank you for this opportunity.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you very

          5  much.  Questions from the panel?  Council Member

          6  Spigner.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  Thank you,

          8  Mr. Chairman. Mr. Heyliger, Jimmy, if I may, you

          9  have been a member of the Community Board for a

         10  number of years.

         11                 MR. HEYLIGER:  Yes, Sir.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  But I am

         13  speaking specifically into the discussions and the

         14  debate surrounding the Board's approval of the

         15  AirTrain proposal.  Do you know of anyone that has

         16  come to you to the extent on the Board that I

         17  threatened them if they refused to vote in favor of

         18  the AirTrain proposal?

         19                 MR. HEYLIGER:  To be very direct,

         20  Councilman, no one has come to me that said you or

         21  any other elected official has threatened us.  And I

         22  dare say most people that know me knows it doesn't

         23  pay to threaten me, so you surely wouldn't approach

         24  me with that.  I will simply say that some of us and

         25  my neighbors have a right to complain and feel
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          2  threaten, this is what, our properties is the most

          3  we have to leave to our kids and our families.  But

          4  this will increase our health situation, because to

          5  eliminate the transfer, the nerve of the Auto Club

          6  talking about we ought to have more cars and more

          7  pollution is ridiculous, in order to improve their

          8  situation, and I just had to stick that in.  But,

          9  no, I know of no elected officials having threatened

         10  any member of the community, and we have argued this

         11  back and forth, and you and I arguing half the time.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER:  I thank you,

         13  Jimmy, and I want to again make the suggestion that

         14  anyone on that Community Board who feels threatened

         15  should not go through the newspapers or that I

         16  threatened them, should go to the Queens District

         17  Attorney, Judge Brown.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  The

         19  next panel will be a panel in opposition, John

         20  Parks, is it?  Okay, Margo Hill, Rudolph Conquet,

         21  members of the Southeast Queens Concerned Neighbors,

         22  come on up.  State your name for the record, please,

         23  whoever wants to go first?

         24                 MR. PARKS:  My name is John Parks.  I

         25  have been a homeowner in Queens for 35 years.  I
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          2  have spent 35 years working hard, putting in hard

          3  time and labor, working day and night trying to make

          4  my home in Queens for me and my family a better

          5  place to live.  I have asthma and sinus problems.

          6  We, the people of Queens, have put in too much hard

          7  time working hard trying to build this section of

          8  Queens, and I am not saying that I don't want to

          9  improve Queens or the Van Wyck.  What I am saying,

         10  we have sick people that live by the Van Wyck, and

         11  we, the people of Queens, have asthma problems, and

         12  putting up an El, and with all the digging and

         13  drilling is going to make my life worse.  Digging up

         14  the streets and breaking up our sewer line, and with

         15  backing up traffic and it would inconvenient any

         16  emergency vehicle of coming into our neighborhood.

         17                 I am saying that there is nothing in

         18  it for us.  So why should we let someone else come

         19  in our neighborhood and destroy our property, what

         20  we have worked so hard for?  So I'm saying, please,

         21  keep that El off the Van Wyck.

         22                 Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Next.

         24                 MR. CONQUET:  Good afternoon.  My

         25  name is Rudolph Conquet.  I'm a homeowner on the Van
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          2  Wyck for 40 years.  Now I have been listening to

          3  people talk about the Van Wyck, what got me most of

          4  all, one person told me that they will not have a

          5  train compatible to run on the transit into the Long

          6  Island Rail Road, into Kennedy for 15 to 20 years.

          7  You're telling us to buy something and let it sit in

          8  front of my house for 15 years, if it is going to

          9  used, correct?

         10                 The Van Wyck, there is no problem

         11  getting to the airport, it's coming off the airport,

         12  and that rail is not going to help.  They're not

         13  going to take the trucks off, they're not going to

         14  take commuters off.  I'm one of the original

         15  sundowners, I worked in Queens, in Long Island City

         16  at 4:30 on a Friday, they were known as the

         17  sundowners, bumper to bumper on Queens Boulevard

         18  onto the Van Wyck, you don't see that no more on the

         19  Van Wyck going out to Long Island.  You don't even

         20  see it going to the airport, it moves.  My wife came

         21  in from Denver, no from California, she was due at

         22  the house at seven o'clock.  I live 10 minutes from

         23  the airport, she was due in at seven o'clock, 5:15,

         24  she grabbed a different flight and was at the

         25  airport at 5:15, she called me up. I'm cooking
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          2  dinner for her, I said what am I going to do, I shut

          3  everything off.  I jump in the car, I said I won't

          4  get there till around six o'clock.  I picked her up

          5  at 5:30 and was home by a quarter to six.  Where is

          6  the traffic?  Huh?  The Port of Authority says it's

          7  there, I don't see it - -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  If you are

          9  bating the question, I think all of us have

         10  experienced the traffic on the Van Wyck at one time

         11  or another, I mean.

         12                 MR. CONQUET:  Yes, but they say it's

         13  there.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Well, I mean,

         15  sometimes its not, you had the equivalent of a lull

         16  out.

         17                 MR. CONQUET:  I just avoid it that is

         18  all, and I wasn't speeding.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Well, I mean it

         20  happens.  Go ahead.

         21                 MR. CONQUET:  Well, that is just

         22  about it, because everybody, and as far as the Port

         23  of Authority, my property, they have not put

         24  anything down in writing that they would cover if

         25  anything happens to my property.  Understand?  They
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          2  say they are going to do this, do that, but nothing

          3  in writing and signed by me or signed by them that

          4  they will take care of.

          5                 That is it, thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  We will ask them

          7  that question when we come to them, thank you.

          8                 MS. HILL:  Good afternoon.  My name

          9  is Margo Hill. Many of the things that I was going

         10  to discuss have been discussed already, and I don't

         11  want to be redundant, but let me just say, why are

         12  we here?  We're here in an effort to convince you

         13  that the matter before you today is crucial, not

         14  only to the residents of Southeast Queens and the

         15  immediate Community Boards #9, 10, and 12, but the

         16  adjourning Community Boards, not included in the

         17  Uniformed Land Use Review Procedure.  Further, the

         18  Coalition of 90 plus civic organization, known as

         19  the Queens Civic Congress, have opposed the

         20  AirTrain, added to this opposition, which you have

         21  heard today, has been the AAA Motor Club, the

         22  Committee for Better Transit, articles in some of

         23  the daily newspapers, weekly and monthly

         24  publications.

         25                 Why this opposition?  Firstly, it is
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          2  not a one- seat ride, we have heard that before.

          3  The noise, the inconvenience, the damage to the

          4  homes, the visual eyesore, travelers are not going

          5  to, actually I should say travelers from New York

          6  City or Manhattan, Brooklyn, Bronx, Queens, and

          7  Staten Island are not going to get out of their

          8  cars, let's face it, people want their cars, even

          9  though they complain.  Yesterday, on the television,

         10  on one of the major channels said that in the last

         11  10 years, 38 percent of the people traveling, on the

         12  holidays, are in the cars, and it's not only here in

         13  the New York City area, it is throughout the

         14  country.  So the fact that this AirTrain will keep

         15  people out of their cars, it is not going to happen.

         16                 There is also a cost factor, which

         17  has been mentioned, this will no doubt escalate

         18  because the figures that they gave for it, is a '96,

         19   '97 figures, and you know there is always cost

         20  overrun.

         21                 So far as jobs coming into the

         22  community, it has been stated here that many of the

         23  jobs are coming from out of town. I'm going to talk

         24  fast, I see my time is running out.  As you know,

         25  most of the parts will be shipped here, built
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          2  actually and shipped here, and installed by other

          3  experienced workers.

          4                 Further, the increased usage of the

          5  MacArthur Airport in Islip, quite a few thousand

          6  Long Islanders will avail themselves of its access

          7  to avoid traffic to JFK.  Also, the MTA Long Island

          8  Bus, JFK Flyer, which takes airport employees and

          9  travelers from the south shore communities to JFK

         10  has extended its service.  Add to this the New York

         11  Airport Service, which replaced Grey Line and Carry

         12  Transportation, will offer a one- seat ride from

         13  parts of Manhattan to JFK and LaGuardia, picking

         14  them up at the Grand Central Terminal or the Air

         15  Transport Center at the Port of Authority Bus

         16  Terminal.  Free connecting service to Midtown,

         17  Manhattan Hotels is planned and the fares will be

         18  approximately $13 one- way or $20 round- trip.

         19  Where are the proposed 7,000 riders daily on the

         20  AirTrain going to come from?

         21                 Further opposition is about the

         22  supposedly redevelopment of Downtown Jamaica.  Where

         23  is Downtown Jamaica? Outside of this area, which is

         24  Sutphin Boulevard and Archer, are local stores,

         25  fruit and vegetable, drug stores and other small
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          2  business.  The proposed Queens Family Court, which

          3  is supposed to be at 153rd Street and Jamaica

          4  Avenue, several blocks away, the Queens Civil Court

          5  on Sutphin Boulevard, which is three blocks more of

          6  the Archer hub, what traveler would come out of the

          7  proposed AirTrain to shop or visit in this area?

          8                 Many other issues of opposition have

          9  been or will be told to you by others.  But let me

         10  make it very clear, we do not oppose the airport

         11  phase or the Howard Beach portion as long as it

         12  meets the guidelines set forth as to the usage of

         13  the funds from the PFC.  We do strongly urge you to

         14  vote against the land use, I emphasize the land use

         15  of the Van Wyck Expressway for the proposed AirTrain

         16  from JFK to Sutphin Boulevard/Archer Avenue,

         17  Jamaica, New York.

         18                 Thank you for this opportunity.  Are

         19  there any questions?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         21                 MS. HILL:  Okay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, I am going

         23  to call up a panel in favor now, Dr. Leo Corbie,

         24  Provost of York College; Lou Sepersky, Manhattan

         25  Community Board Task Force from Boards #4, 5, 6, and
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          2  8; Earl Walker from the Regional Association of

          3  Small Contractors.  Dr. Corbie, if you would start

          4  for us?

          5                 DR. CORBIE:  Good afternoon.  My name

          6  is Leo Corbie. I'm the Acting Provost and Vice-

          7  President for Academic Affairs at York College, City

          8  University of New York.  I'm pleased to have this

          9  opportunity to tell you that York College fully

         10  supports the AirTrain project.  We support the

         11  AirTrain for a number of reasons, for its ability to

         12  connect all of us to John F. Kennedy International

         13  Airport, for its role in helping to restore luster

         14  to JFK as the nation's premier international

         15  gateway.

         16                 Today, I would like to address a

         17  specific element of the economic development

         18  potential of the AirTrain, an element directly

         19  affecting York College.  As part of an evolving

         20  relationship with the Port of Authority, York

         21  College is developing an Institute that will

         22  specialize in preparing New York City residents for

         23  careers in the fast- growing, and lucrative,

         24  aviation industry.  Students from Southeast Queens

         25  and other parts of New York City will receive top-
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          2  of- the- line training in the full spectrum of

          3  management level jobs available not only at JFK and

          4  LaGuardia airports, but in corporate offices

          5  throughout the United States.

          6                 The aviation industry is already the

          7  biggest industry sector in Queens, now providing

          8  50,000 jobs at JFK and LaGuardia airports.  Aviation

          9  jobs and the transportation services they generate

         10  are expected to outperform the economy's overall

         11  rate of growth, to nearly 15 percent over the next

         12  ten years.

         13                 To meet this demand for employees,

         14  the aviation industry requires well- educated,

         15  highly qualified people to step into increasingly

         16  technological and complex jobs.  At the same time,

         17  communities surrounding the airports need a

         18  mechanism to connect its young people and aspiring

         19  students to lucrative, growth occupations in the

         20  aviation fields.  This is what makes the location of

         21  the Aviation Institute in Southeast Queens such a

         22  unique fit.

         23                 As we envisioned it today, the newly

         24  created Aviation Institute will:

         25                 Establish York College as a national

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            120

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  magnet for aviation industry recruiters.

          3                 Motivate industry experts to recruit

          4  local residents for regional and national aviation

          5  jobs.

          6                 Deepen the aviation industry's reach

          7  into the Southeast Queens community and the rest of

          8  the City.

          9                 Involve area high schools as feeders

         10  for the Aviation Institute program.

         11                 The establishment of the Institute is

         12  an extraordinary opportunity for York College as a

         13  City University. It will allow us to become the pre-

         14  eminent four- year college in New York City for the

         15  education and preparation of students from Southeast

         16  Queens and the City as highly qualified

         17  professionals and managers in a very important

         18  growth industry.  It is our intention that York will

         19  be widely recognized by the aviation industry as a

         20  highly competitive college for aviation management

         21  and regarded by the Southeast Queens community as a

         22  beacon of new opportunity and prosperity.

         23                 York College already has an important

         24  relationship with the Aviation Industry, the new

         25  Federal FDA Building in Queens, which is a federally
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          2  funded project is located on York College's Campus.

          3  The York Campus was chosen because of its academic

          4  programs and its proximity to JFK.  We are delighted

          5  to have that linkage to the Aviation Industry, and

          6  greatly welcome the opportunity to expand the

          7  linkage by establishing the Aviation Institute.

          8                 In conclusion, I would like to

          9  summarize the function and benefits of the

         10  Institute:

         11                 1.  It will create a conduit into

         12  Aviation careers.

         13                 2.  It will establish a local

         14  education center as a premier educator for Aviation

         15  careers.

         16                 Finally, it will offer City residents

         17  substantially enhanced opportunities and support to

         18  pursue professional and managerial career paths in

         19  the Aviation Industry.

         20                 In closing, we urge your approval of

         21  the AirTrain, not only for its value as a

         22  transportation service, but also for the economic

         23  development opportunities it brings, including the

         24  creation of the Aviation Institute.  With the

         25  Institute, many more of York's graduates will look
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          2  forward to management jobs at JFK.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

          5  Sepersky.

          6                 MR. SEPERSKY:  Distinguished members

          7   - -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  If the light is

          9  off, you're on.

         10                 MR. SEPERSKY:  Distinguished members

         11  of the Council, my name is Lou Sepersky.  I'm the

         12  Chair of the Manhattan Intercommunity Board Task

         13  Force on Airport Access, which is comprised of

         14  Manhattan Community Boards #4, 5, 6, and 8.  Several

         15  years ago, Boards #4, 5, 6, and 8, came together

         16  because there was a proposal which we did not feel

         17  met the true needs of airport access.  The mandate

         18  of the Task Force was to oppose what we considered

         19  an ill considered plan and to propose and to take

         20  the leadership on what we thought would be better

         21  methods of airport access.

         22                 Two years ago the Manhattan Borough

         23  Board as a step in the development of our position,

         24  passed a resolution, which the Committee has a copy

         25  of that lays out what we believe to be guidelines on
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          2  a correct approach to airport access, and in the

          3  last two years we have been looking to seek to have

          4  that position implemented.  Now the three Boards in

          5  Queens, we did not take a position on a route

          6  however, because we felt that that was the province

          7  of our colleagues in Community Boards affected in

          8  Queens, now that Community Boards #9, 10, and 12

          9  have, in fact, given their consent to the proposed,

         10  we feel that it would be a betrayal of the necessity

         11  for this City to remain the premier City of the

         12  world, economically and culturally, to not go

         13  forward with the proposal on the AirTrain.

         14                 We believe that, while this is not

         15  complete in and of itself, it is, in fact, a

         16  significant step toward direct rail access to both

         17  Farley/Penn Station and to Grand Central.  And in

         18  point of fact, we hope that if the fly over can be

         19  built on a prompter time table than is currently

         20  envisioned, a demonstration project from Farley/Penn

         21  Station could be put into place in the off hours

         22  when tunnel capacity, which is an issue at the

         23  moment, is available.

         24                 We believe that the more

         25  aggressively, and the more promptly that these

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            124

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  issues are addressed and that the project gets

          3  underway, the more quickly we will have a one- seat

          4  ride to the airport.  The fly over is in engineering

          5  terms is feasible, it is doable, there is no

          6  engineering inhibition on the development of a by-

          7  modal vehicle.  It requires the political will to do

          8  and to accomplish.

          9                 We are faced with another one of

         10  those traditional New York City issues of it's

         11  always easy to say no, and let's not do anything,

         12  but we are starting to see the effects in this City

         13  of not addressing the issues, second only to

         14  education, are the issues of mass transit.  The

         15  Second Avenue subway, which is a classic case in

         16  point, is 70 years old and unless we are very lucky

         17  will not run within the lifetimes of most of the

         18  people in this room.

         19                 This is a step forward, it is a

         20  constructive step forward, it makes possible the

         21  incremental development in the next few years of, in

         22  fact, a one- seat ride which serves the economic

         23  future of this City.

         24                 I would like to thank the

         25  distinguished members of the Council for their time
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          2  in hearing me, and I appreciate the courtesy of the

          3  Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

          5                 MR. WALKER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          6    My name is Earl Walker, and I'm the Executive

          7  Director for the Regional Alliance for Small

          8  Contractors.  I would like to read a brief statement

          9  stating our support for the passage of the AirTrain

         10  project.

         11                 Shortly the City Council will vote on

         12  a project that will have a positive impact on the

         13  City for years to come, the AirTrain project.  The

         14  dollars that will be spent on this project on its

         15  implementation will provide opportunities not only

         16  for businesses of Queens, but businesses throughout

         17  the five boroughs of the City of New York.

         18                 While the AirTrain project's main

         19  purpose is to relieve highway congestion and provide

         20  effective means of transportation for the airline

         21  passengers, the AirTrain project will also provide

         22  residents with an effective and inexpensive mode of

         23  transportation for hundreds of job opportunities

         24  available at Kennedy Airport.

         25                 The Regional Alliance is a small
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          2  organization that advocates for and provides

          3  technical assistance to small contractors and women-

          4  owned firms in the region, and we know that this

          5  project is important to the economy of this region.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you very

          8  much. Questions?  Thank you.  I'm going to call up a

          9  panel from the Air Transport Association now,

         10  because I understand that some of them have some

         11  time problems out of town.  We were going to have

         12  them just before the Port of Authority, but now,

         13  come on up.  I will give you each three minutes.  I

         14  believe it is Ed Merlis, Brian Campbell, Barry

         15  Neuman.  Mr. Merlis, are you going to start?

         16                 MR. MERLIS:  Yes, Sir.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, identify

         18  yourself for the record, please?

         19                 MR. MERLIS:  I'm Ed Merlis, Senior

         20  Vice- President for the Air Transport Association.

         21  ATA represents the interest of the scheduled

         22  commercial airline industry in the United States

         23  before Congress, federal agencies, state

         24  legislatures, and other governmental bodies.  Our

         25  membership consists of 23 domestic and 5 foreign
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          2  airlines that transport more than 95 percent of all

          3  passenger and cargo traffic in the United States.  I

          4  have submitted a fairly thorough statement, which I

          5  will not even summarize, I would just like to make

          6  some oral comments.

          7                 While we have testified many times in

          8  many venues, this is our first opportunity before

          9  this Subcommittee and we appreciate that

         10  opportunity.  The reasons for our opposition are

         11  detailed in that report, which I have submitted to

         12  you.  But let me identify some of those.

         13                 First of all, we believe that this is

         14  an inappropriate use of passenger facility charges.

         15  It is not because we feel that these PFCs should be

         16  used for building airline terminals at JFK, there

         17  are terminals planned by American, Delta, US Airways

         18  has a new shuttle terminal planned at LaGuardia,

         19  each one of which will be built with funds directly

         20  from American, Delta, Us Airways, and the other

         21  carriers, not one dime of PFCs.

         22                 The Van Wyck portion of the LRS will

         23  eat up $600 million of PFC funds and require

         24  extensive construction along the Van Wyck.  We

         25  oppose this construction on the Van Wyck, we believe
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          2  that it is not a project which qualifies for use of

          3  the PFC.

          4                 In connection with the Port of

          5  Authority's original application to the FAA to use

          6  PFCs, a study was submitted saying that by the year

          7  2003 only 33,000 riders per day would exist. These

          8  33,000 riders consisted of 5,600 airline passengers.

          9    The only benefit to Kennedy articulated by the

         10  Port by the result of this initial application was

         11  134,000 new passengers annually at JFK, which would

         12  have otherwise used LaGuardia.  When the FAA advised

         13  the Port that these numbers did not justify spending

         14  $1.2 billion, low and behold a new study came

         15  forward, called, The 2013 Projections, and this one

         16  said there would now be 3.35 million new passengers

         17  per year.  It is amazing how many more people were

         18  suddenly found over those 10 years.

         19                 ATA challenged the FAA's approval of

         20  the Port's use of the $1.2 billion based upon the

         21  secret 2013 study, and the DC Court of Appeals

         22  granted our motion and vacated the FAA's approval.

         23  The court found that the 2013 projections were

         24  fundamentally different from the 2003 projections,

         25  and it never had been subjected to public scrutiny.
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          2                 We have subsequently retained the

          3  Campbell Hill Aviation Group, Mr. Brian Campbell is

          4  on my left, to do an analysis of the 2013

          5  Projections.  The analysis looks at two questions,

          6  if the Port's projections of Kennedy's passenger

          7  growth are correct, what are the consequences for

          8  airport operations in environmental concerns?  And

          9  two, are the Port's projections supportable by any

         10  objective means of analysis?

         11                 The analysis, which I have submitted

         12  to you, shows that there would be, if you believe

         13  the three million plus additional passengers,

         14  between 75 and 85 additional daily flights at

         15  Kennedy.  Now why does that trigger any concern?

         16  Well because the Port's stated that as few as 21

         17  additional flights per day would require an

         18  additional environmental review beyond that

         19  contained in the final EIS.  We think it's no

         20  coincidence that the 2013 Projection submitted by

         21  the Port falls short of that trigger number.

         22                 We request that the Council and its

         23  own experts review this analysis and consider the

         24  impacts of the proposed LRS on Kennedy Airport, the

         25  Borough of Queens, the Metropolitan area, and the
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          2  adequacy of the existing Environmental Review.

          3                 ATA has raised many other objections

          4  to the proposed LRS since the ULURP process began.

          5  The LRS is not, in all likelihood, ever going to be

          6  a one- seat ride to the airport.  Door to door

          7  service using the LRS is as time consuming as any

          8  other method of getting to the airport.  Not only

          9  that, it is going to be expensive to use.  And

         10  moreover, the whole issue of jobs, we believe that

         11  twice as many jobs would be forthcoming if you

         12  invested that $600 million on airport construction.

         13  Afterall, building railroad cars is not going to

         14  create many construction jobs in New York City.

         15                 Using the LRS in conjunction with the

         16  LIRR, subway, bus, or taxi, is very cumbersome.

         17  Passengers will have to carry their bags, it's

         18  almost impossible to design a remote baggage system

         19  check in that needs federal security requirement.

         20  And I note that the Port of Authority has prepared a

         21  plan showing that you would have to check in at

         22  Jamaica Station three hours in advance, if their

         23  proposed check in facility were to be used.  I sort

         24  of wonder why all that advantage of getting to the

         25  airport quickly takes place, if you would have to
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          2  check in three hours in advance?

          3                 Finally, the upheaval and damage that

          4  will be caused during the multi- year construction

          5  of the Van Wyck El, while adversely affecting the

          6  people in the community, who have eloquently spoken,

          7  also, will have tremendous upheaval, at the airport

          8  for our passengers and shippers.

          9                 Mr. Chairman, thank you very much, I

         10  would be happy to answer any questions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Are

         12  the other gentlemen going to testify?  No.

         13                 MR. MERLIS:  They will just respond

         14  to the questions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, I have a

         16  couple of questions.  Tell us about Newark and what

         17  your role was in Newark?

         18                 MR. MERLIS:  With respect to what?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Were you in

         20  favor or against the train that was built to access

         21  Newark Airport?

         22                 MR. MERLIS:  I don't believe ATA

         23  filed comments on that train at Newark.  If we did,

         24  clearly, we didn't challenge it very vigorously.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Well I had a
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          2  life earlier than this and I recall that you did.

          3                 MR. MERLIS: Well, I don't remember

          4  ATA doing it.  I know some of our member carriers

          5  opposed it, I know some of member carriers supported

          6  it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, but not

          8  very vigorously, and I'm wondering why you are

          9  opposing this one vigorously?

         10                 MR. MERLIS:  Well, we think that this

         11  is not anywhere near as an intelligent use of funds

         12  as over at Newark.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  So do you think

         14  we should have anything going to the airport, that

         15  should be built with PFCs?

         16                 MR. MERLIS:  No, I don't think PFCs

         17  should be used for that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  So you wouldn't

         19  support PFCs on this Apple Corridor that has been

         20  discussed?

         21                 MR. MERLIS:  No, we would not.  We

         22  think that there are other sources of revenue

         23  through Federal Transit Administration, it lets you

         24  use the airport money for improving the airport so

         25  that we could make JFK a first class, world class
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          2  airport.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I think the

          4  concern of many of us is that, you know, we have got

          5  to get people there one way or the other.

          6                 MR. MERLIS:  We agree, we would like

          7  to work with the community.  The work that is going

          8  on right now at LaGuardia promises to be a very

          9  intelligent use of PFCs for the on- airport portion

         10  for the LaGuardia - -

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  You have got me

         12  on that because as the person whose district people

         13  get through to get to LaGuardia, I would like to see

         14  it not have trucks and buses and cars rumbling

         15  through Jackson Heights and East Elmhurst.  So, you

         16  know, again, we want to have world class airports

         17  that are in competition and get people there.  Now

         18  whether or not this is the best way to get people

         19  there is still an open question.

         20                 MR. MERLIS:  Mr. Chairman, if I can

         21  say that one of the comments that has been made is

         22  about the growth of Newark, it is because it has

         23  this train.  Newark is not a slot constrained

         24  airport, the growth of Newark is because there is no

         25  federal limit of the number of flights out of
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          2  Newark.  There is a federal limit on the number of

          3  flights out of Kennedy.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:   Again, I would

          5  disagree, as a matter of disclosure and when I say I

          6  had a life before this, I used to work in a public

          7  affairs company that had a major airline as its

          8  client, and its the major tenant in Newark, and

          9  indeed one of the things about Newark is it is being

         10  marketed properly, both by the airline and the Port

         11  of Authority, it is being marketed properly, so I

         12  don't think it is just the slots, but it's getting

         13  people there.  And taking away this stigma for some

         14  New Yorkers of going to New Jersey, so some of it is

         15  the slot, but some of it is the marketing too,

         16  frankly, you have to do a selling job to convince

         17  people that Newark wasn't a foreign country, so.

         18                 All right, any other questions from

         19  the panel? None.  Thank you very much.

         20                 MR. MERLIS:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  We're going to

         22  call up another panel from the Southeast Queens

         23  Concerned Neighbors.  In doing that I will announce

         24  them as they come up Myrtle Sobers, Elijah Moore,

         25  Melvin Roscoe, and Gladys Holmes, are you all here?
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          2                 This Subcommittee has many purposes,

          3  one of which is that we are the guardians of the

          4  Council's history book on New York City and since

          5  we're discussing access to the Van Wyck Expressway,

          6  as you leave the building at the ground floor in the

          7  rotunda there is a bust of the person of whom the

          8  Van Wyck Expressway is named after, Mayor Robert Van

          9  Wyck.  He was responsible for many things, he was

         10  the first Mayor of the Consolidated City of New

         11  York, when we had five boroughs, he is the 91st

         12  Mayor of New York City, if you include just

         13  Manhattan.  Those of us in Queens would say he is

         14  the first Mayor, and he was the Mayor for the

         15  beginning of the millennium, so there is a little

         16  history here as well.  And his bust is downstairs,

         17  and you might want to visit it or run a train

         18  through it or something on the way home.

         19                 Okay, who wants to go first here?

         20  Why don't we do it in the order I called, Ms.

         21  Sobers, are you here?  Go ahead. Identify yourself

         22  for the record and tell us who you represent?

         23                 MS. SOBERS:  My name is Myrtle

         24  Sobers.  I'm a resident of the Van Wyck itself.  My

         25  home is on the Van Wyck, okay?
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          2                 I want to thank you for giving me the

          3  opportunity to speak, I'm speaking from my heart.

          4  Aside from all the other concerns mentioned, the

          5  Port of Authority refuses to consider an alternate

          6  route.  Why?  Because they do not care about us or

          7  our property.  This is discrimination, whether you

          8  believe it or not. Just look at those of us from the

          9  community who cares.  Southeast Queens, would you

         10  stand, please?  Just look at us, you see who we are.

         11                 I hope you the members of the Board

         12  do.  I thank you, think about us.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         14                 MS. SOBERS:  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Is Mr. Moore,

         16  Elijah Moore, come on up?  State your name and who

         17  you represent.

         18                 MR. MOORE:  Brother Chairman, my name

         19  is Elijah Moore and I belong to the Southeast Queens

         20  Concerned Citizens.  I live on the Van Wyck, and I

         21  can also say that I have been at this location for

         22  38 years.  My wife and I have made our home better

         23  now than when we bought it in 1960, and we did this

         24  at a substantial outlay of capital.  And during that

         25  time our property appreciated to around two hundred
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          2  or more thousands of dollars.

          3                 Since the news of the certainty of

          4  the Light Rail System, a neighbor that lives next to

          5  me, cannot sell her property. Her property has been

          6  for sale for over a year and one- half.  She cannot

          7  sell this property at a fair price due to the

          8  terrible intrusion into our beloved neighborhood.

          9                 First, who in their right mind would

         10  want to buy a home with the equivalent of a two-

         11  lane highway a few hundred feet rising in front of

         12  their house?  Considering this with already the

         13  congested Van Wyck and its legions of 18- wheelers

         14  using the service road, where I am located, plus now

         15  we're going to have the added nuisance of a train

         16  passing our home every two or three minutes, and

         17  this is really sticking it to our community.

         18                 Now, I would like to ask you

         19  gentlemen, since my property is falling why is it

         20  not that just a little while ago I was notified that

         21  my property taxes were increased?  To me it seems

         22  that this is a little backwards.  I think I should

         23  be paying less property taxes; is that not so?  Now,

         24  and can you guarantee that my property values shall

         25  not decrease per the doing and after the
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          2  construction of this monstrosity?

          3                 Thank you very much for allowing to

          4  add my grievances.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

          6                 MR. MOORE:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Mr. Roscoe.

          8                 MR. ROSCOE:  Yes.  I'm Melvin Roscoe,

          9  and I'm from Southeast Queens.  You keep telling us

         10  about this El Rail that nobody wants.  The people in

         11  Queens don't want it, the City Council don't want

         12  it, so why should we have it?  You want to build a

         13  train for the people to ride it to the airport, they

         14  got to get on a bus, go to Long Island Rail Road,

         15  ride back to get to Kennedy, if they're going out to

         16  the airport.  But yet and still I work at the

         17  airport, and if I want to ride it, I live one block

         18  from the Van Wyck, so in order for me to ride it, I

         19  have got to ride from South Jamaica and ride it

         20  back, and you all say it is going to improve the

         21  economy and bring money.  I don't think any of these

         22  European white folks are going to get off the train

         23  in South Jamaica and go shopping in Jamaica on

         24  Jamaica Avenue where there is no Macy's, there is no

         25  Gimbels, there is no Sears, so where are they going
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          2  to shop at, in a little rinky dink store?

          3                 So how can you tell me it is going to

          4  improve my community?  I have been living in

          5  Southeast Queens for 38 years, raised by the Van

          6  Wyck, and I know I don't want no AirTrain, so why

          7  build it?  You are going to spend $600 million to

          8  build it, yet still there is a school five blocks

          9  from my house that is falling down and nobody is

         10  improving that, and yet and still you all talk about

         11  education.  You all just said on the TV that the

         12  reading scores in 4th grade in Southeast Queens were

         13  below State standards, but yet and still you are

         14  going to build a $600 million Air Rail that nobody

         15  wants to ride, that you all say is going to improve

         16  the community, but yet and still you won't improve

         17  the schools and the education in the community, but

         18  you will build an AirTrain that is going nowhere.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Just

         21  for the witness's knowledge, what we're doing today

         22  is disposing of land, we're not spending any money.

         23  The Port of Authority is spending money and the

         24  airline, the Passenger Fund that is a tax on the

         25  airplane passengers, which is federally
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          2  administered, is spending their money.  If it was up

          3  to the previous witnesses, they wouldn't even spend

          4  the money on this, never mind on your schools, they

          5  think it only has to do with them, so it's not money

          6  that is ever going to go to your schools, so don't

          7  think it is.

          8                 MR. ROSCOE:  I understand this, I

          9  understand that you're not, that is not coming out

         10  of City taxes, but I'm just talking about an

         11  estimated figure.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.

         13                 MR. ROSCOE:  Six hundred million

         14  dollars is a lot of money to spend on an AirTrain

         15  that you hope people will ride, not guaranteed.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  It's a lot of

         17  money everywhere.

         18                 MR. ROSCOE:  But I was just saying

         19  $600 million is a lot of money and you know that,

         20  that is more money I will ever see in two or three

         21  lifetimes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  We agree on

         23  that.

         24                 MR. ROSCOE:  Oh, thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Gladys Holmes.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            141

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 MS. HOLMES:  My name is Gladys

          3  Holmes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  If the light is

          5  off, you're on, so make sure the light is off.

          6                 MS. HOLMES:  Okay, my name is Gladys

          7  Holmes.  I'm a homeowner, I live on the Expressway,

          8  and I belong to the Southeast Queens Concerned

          9  Citizens.  Now when I first came here today, I heard

         10  that some of the homes will be condemned for this

         11  area.  I would like to know if that is true, and I,

         12  also, from the - -

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  We will ask that

         14  on the record as well, to our knowledge it is not,

         15  but we will ask that as well as the earlier

         16  question.

         17                 MS. HOLMES:  Thank you.  And from the

         18  inception though of this AirTrain, which is about

         19  two years ago, I heard, I read rather that the

         20  homeowners were not important, forget them, this is

         21  a done deal already.  And I would like to know, I

         22  would like to say that we're a first class citizens,

         23  law- abiding citizens, and since when don't we

         24  count?

         25                 Now I live on the Expressway behind
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          2  the wall, and I'm mentioning that because when it

          3  first went up, the pilings, I still have structural

          4  damage from the pilings that went in.  I also had

          5  the breaking of china and antiques in my China

          6  Closet.  The sewer broke, which ultimately I had to

          7  replace with my own money, which was thousands of

          8  dollars, and then, and now my property is $20,000

          9  less as a result of that wall.  And now you say this

         10  eyesore is going to help me, and I don't think so,

         11  and I have my, the way that my house is built, it

         12  was fashionable at the time, a long time ago, my

         13  kitchen and my living room both face the front. And,

         14  also, I would like to mention that there are four

         15  hotels in the area and one motel, and there is a

         16  substantial increase of taxes in the area, and tour

         17  buses.

         18                 Now these taxis are not taking their

         19  clients to the subway and Sutphin Boulevard to go to

         20  Manhattan.  So this AirTrain will not relieve the

         21  traffic at all.  Do you understand what I'm saying?

         22  All these taxis, you can not a taxi up there at

         23  Sutphin where they're going to change over,

         24  whatever, now.  But there are plenty of taxis and

         25  the traffic is terrible on the Expressway.
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          2                 Now it is an eyesore, and we will not

          3  benefit from it, and please, do not vote for this

          4  thing.  And I still do not understand about the

          5  aviation, that the gentlemen was talking about York

          6  College.  What does the AirTrain have to do with

          7  this, I didn't understand that?

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  We

         10  have a panel in favor now, Ed Ott from the Central

         11  Labor Council; Donald White of Local 15 of the

         12  Operating Engineers and the 149th Street Civic

         13  Association.  Mr. Ott, do you want to start, state

         14  your name for the record and who you represent?

         15                 MR. OTT:  Hi, my name is Ed Ott, I'm

         16  the Director of Public Policy for the New York City

         17  Central Labor Council.  We represent one million and

         18  one- half working people, unionized workers in the

         19  City of New York.  I will be delivering a statement

         20  by our President, Brian McLoughlin.

         21                  "It is not often that I am given the

         22  opportunity to speak for an issue that is of equal

         23  importance to labor, business and the community.

         24  There is no doubt that the construction and the

         25  operation of the AirTrain will create many
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          2  construction jobs, and at its completion, permanent

          3  jobs to many workers.  If that is all it would do

          4  then I would be expected to support the project.

          5  But this effort will do far more than create a few

          6  jobs.  This project is a chance for the community of

          7  Jamaica to emerge in the next century as a new and

          8  powerful economic engine for the entire City.

          9                 The AirTrain is an investment that

         10  has been too long in coming.  It is a chance to

         11  build on the progress that has already been made by

         12  the people and businesses of Jamaica.  The people of

         13  this community have worked very hard to revitalize

         14  the Jamaica business climate, and it needs to be

         15  understood that the people of Jamaica believe in

         16  this City and in its economic possibilities of

         17  Queens.  It is time for the rest of the City to

         18  respond with a real commitment.

         19                 The next level of development

         20  requires that the business possibilities of Jamaica

         21  be broader than the immediate community.  The

         22  AirTrain is a chance to allow this area to become a

         23  24- hour business opportunity that would attract

         24  investors from national chains.  Companies, like the

         25  GAP, have already shown interest in locating to
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          2  Jamaica if the project is completed.  It is my

          3  belief that this project will be recognized by many

          4  others as a chance to invest and prosper.

          5                 This is a City that became the worlds

          6  greatest market place because we understood how

          7  important transportation innovation was to the

          8  efficient movement of goods and people.  This

          9  project continues that process by linking Jamaica to

         10  the airport network system.

         11                 The New York City Central Labor

         12  Council urges the New York City Council to support

         13  the AirTrain and the working families of the Jamaica

         14  community."

         15                 I would just like to say on the side,

         16  that the point about this project is you can argue

         17  it in numbers, but you can't argue that if the City,

         18  the Port of Authority, the people of this City, make

         19  a commitment to that kind of development in that

         20  area, it sends a message to people all over that

         21  Queens is part of the future of this City.  I have

         22  sat here today and seen many people talk about one

         23  ride to the airport.  I'm a Manhattan person, I live

         24  in Manhattan, I work in Manhattan, and I can tell

         25  you something, that has always been a code word for
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          2  one ride from Manhattan.   And people from the

          3  boroughs, they're not talking about a one ride from

          4  Staten Island.  This is an attempt to say that

          5  Queens is an integral part of the future of the

          6  economic development to the City, and Jamaica is

          7  central to that.  The volume of people and the

          8  potential business there is tremendous, and we

          9  should think about sending out an international call

         10  that this is a place where we want people to come,

         11  and AirTrain helps do that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Identify

         13  yourself for the record.

         14                 MR. WHITE:  My name is Donald White.

         15  I'm a member of the community, lived in the

         16  community for over 20 years.  I'm also a member of

         17  the 149th Street Civic Association, and an active

         18  member.  I'm also a member of the International

         19  Union of Operating Engineers.  I live near the Van

         20  Wyck, and I urge you that you would pass this

         21  project because I feel that it is very vital to the

         22  airport.  It's vital to the airport because

         23  statistics have shown that Kennedy Airport is losing

         24  a tremendous amount of revenue because it is not

         25  keeping the competitive edge with Newark Airport.
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          2                 Ladies and gentlemen, I urge you to

          3  vote for this project because in doing so your vote

          4  is to make things, to make improvements along the

          5  Van Wyck and the surrounding areas.  Revenue and

          6  jobs are being generated, not only for the

          7  community, but for the City at large.  We need to

          8  ask for support, we need to ask for your support for

          9  the good of the City and not just for the local

         10  environment.   You have heard a tremendous amount of

         11  people discuss how they're effected with different

         12  types of ailments, and a lot of ailments are due to

         13  the fact that there is so much carbon monoxide

         14  coming from the trucks and the buses that are going

         15  up and down the Van Wyck taking people back and

         16  forth to the airport.

         17                 We firmly believe that with the Light

         18  Rail System that it will really help alleviate some

         19  of that pollution to the community.  We need to be

         20  able to, and as people in Southeast Queens, we need

         21  to be able to move forward, and in order to do that,

         22  Kennedy Airport needs to be able to move people back

         23  and forth to the airport facility with less

         24  pollution, less congestion.

         25                 We believe that the Light Rail will
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          2  do just that, so I urge you to vote for the Light

          3  Rail System for the good of the airport, for the

          4  good of the community.  The Light Rail System equals

          5  less pollution, less congestion, more revenue, not

          6  only for the community and things that would spare

          7  local entrepreneurship, but jobs, also, for the

          8  community and surrounding area.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         11  Questions?  Okay, we had two panels on before in

         12  opposition.  I'm going to do two now, because there

         13  was a problem with someone having to get out of here

         14  and catch a plane.  I'm going to have Bill Howell,

         15  Howell Petroleum Products; Len Britton, New York

         16  State Chapter of, you're going to help me with the

         17  acronym, when you get up here I guess we will, and

         18  Timothy Marshall, Jamaica Business Resource Center.

         19  Mr. Howell, why don't you start off?

         20                 MR. HOWELL:  Good afternoon, Mr.

         21  Chairman, ladies and gentlemen.  My name is Bill

         22  Howell.  I am a resident of Bedford- Stuyvesant,

         23  Brooklyn, and the owner and President of Howell

         24  Petroleum Products, which is based in Red Hook,

         25  Brooklyn.  I'm here to express my full support of
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          2  the proposed rail system to link JFK to the LIRR and

          3  the subway system.

          4                 There are many sound and compelling

          5  reasons why this project makes absolute sense.  The

          6  most important reason, of course, is that this rail

          7  system will go a long way toward making JFK the

          8  transportation hub it necessarily must be.  This

          9  missing link will correct deficiencies in our

         10  airport's infrastructure that have made it seem

         11  almost archaic in comparison to other major

         12  airports.  The resulting convenience to air

         13  travelers and efficiency of the linkages are long

         14  over due.  Furthermore, this project would provide

         15  enormous economic benefits to the community

         16  surrounding the airport and to New York City.

         17                 In addition to these glaring of

         18  benefits, I would like to bring to your attention

         19  another likely outcome, one to which I feel most

         20  qualified to speak because I am a representative of

         21  the small minority business sector, I'm a Board

         22  Member of the Regional Alliance of Small

         23  Contractors, and other organizations who seek to

         24  ensure that minority businesses are included in all

         25  phases of construction activity in New York.
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          2                 Howell Petroleum Products is a

          3  minority business enterprise, certified by the New

          4  York State Department of Transportation and the Port

          5  of Authority since 1985.  The Port of Authority is,

          6  in fact, a longstanding customer of my company.

          7  Therefore, I feel confident in asserting that the

          8  Port of Authority has a strong commitment and an

          9  outstanding record of fair and consistent outreach

         10  to minority business enterprises.  It is indicative

         11  of the Port of Authority's commitment that it has

         12  established goals of 17 percent of the $1.5 billion

         13  project for minority and women- owned businesses.

         14  My company has already received contracts to supply

         15  petroleum during the developmental phase of the

         16  project.

         17                 In terms of stark numbers, that 17

         18  percent allocation would add up to over $150 million

         19  for participating minority and women- owned

         20  businesses and job opportunities for the multitude

         21  of individuals employed by these companies.  This

         22  project could be the single, biggest boon to the

         23  local minority business sector that we have had in

         24  decades.  A fact that must be underscored and given

         25  due consideration when determining if the project
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          2  should proceed.

          3                 I urge you to make what is absolutely

          4  the best decision for New York City and for New

          5  Yorkers and vote in favor of the proposed rail

          6  system.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

          9  Britton.

         10                 MR. BRITTON:  Good afternoon,

         11  distinguished Chairman and Committee members.  Thank

         12  you for giving me the opportunity to speak.  My name

         13  is Len Britton, and I am a resident of Queens.  I am

         14  also the Executive Director of the New York State

         15  Chapter of National Association of Minority

         16  Contractors, a not- for- profit organization

         17  established in 1985 for the purpose of advancing and

         18  promoting the mutual interest of minority and women

         19  contractors throughout the State of New York.  This

         20  organization is the largest statewide representative

         21  body of minority contractors in New York State, as

         22  well as the New York State Chapter of the National

         23  Association of Minority Contractors, which has its

         24  headquarters in Washington, D.C.

         25                 The members of my organization, their
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          2  employees, and their families, which represent well

          3  over 2,000 people in New York State, of which over

          4  500 reside in Queens, wish to inform you that they

          5  fully support the Port of Authority's AirTrain

          6  project and urge your support of this undertaking.

          7                 As a matter of fact, the AirTrain

          8  project is vital to the future of JFK Airport and

          9  the region.  It represents a model of forward

         10  thinking transportation policy and planning.  It

         11  will crate jobs and provide employment for the

         12  population.  It will make travel to the airport fast

         13  and dependable, which at the same time, will help

         14  the environment by reducing traffic and pollution

         15  levels.

         16                 More importantly, the AirTrain

         17  project would provide minority and women- owned

         18  businesses with the opportunity to gain contracts.

         19  Already six of our members have been given contract

         20  opportunity on this project.  These businesses have

         21  the potential to employ people shut out of the job

         22  market and bring back profits to their local

         23  communities.  Minority and women business owners

         24  provide avenues for other minority and women to

         25  enter professions and obtain opportunities to help
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          2  to remedy income disparity that is dividing our

          3  society into haves and have- nots.  This project

          4  certainly offers a great opportunity to assist the

          5  have- nots.

          6                 Right now my Association along with

          7  AMENY, you heard them testify earlier on, and the

          8  Jamaica Business Resource Center, my buddy, Tim

          9  Marshall, on my right here, is working together to

         10  prepare contractors to access the available

         11  opportunities.

         12                 I am an Urban Planner, myself,

         13  specializing in transportation planning.  As a

         14  proponent of intermodal transportation, I fully

         15  understand the positive environmental and economic

         16  benefits this project will generate.  Twelve million

         17  passengers are waiting to take advantage of this

         18  project that will move people from our crowded and

         19  congested highways to a safe, convenient and

         20  environmental- friendly AirTrain.

         21                 While many other global cities have

         22  designed and built impressive airport access

         23  systems, New Yorkers in Queens, at least some of

         24  them, have done little more than bicker, travelers

         25  don't exactly get the impression when they have
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          2  arrived in one of the world's greatest civilizations

          3  when they are stuck in traffic for hours on the

          4  congealed Van Wyck Expressway.  This is certainly

          5  not the situation we must condone in this great City

          6  of the world.

          7                 Of the 10 busiest world airports, New

          8  York City's John F. Kennedy International has a

          9  dubious distinction.  Although 42 percent of it's

         10  arrivals are headed for Manhattan central business

         11  district, it does not have a decent rail link to the

         12  City. Today, you can help the regions economy, and

         13  all users of the airport, by approving the Port of

         14  Authority's AirTrain project.

         15                 The Air Transportation Association,

         16  the airlines industry group, opposes the plan and

         17  wants the revenue invested, instead on projects that

         18  would expand aviation capacity and improve the

         19  airport itself.  But there is ample precedent for

         20  investing in rail.  The Port of Authority has

         21  already used the surcharge for a 1.1- mile rail link

         22  that ties Newark Airport to New Jersey Transit and

         23  Amtrak.

         24                 We must not let pressure groups stand

         25  in the way of common sense.  We urge your support
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          2  for this key project.  We, in Queens, need it, the

          3  City needs it, New York needs it, the international

          4  travelers need it.

          5                 We have in our possession letters

          6  from several Representatives of the United States

          7  Congress supporting this project.  All the world's

          8  travelers need this project.  I urge you to give

          9  your full support to this very important project.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

         12  Marshall.

         13                 MR. MARSHALL:  Good afternoon, Mr.

         14  Chairman and members of the Committee.  My name is

         15  Timothy Marshall, President of the Jamaica Business

         16  Resource Center.  And it is with a great deal of

         17  enthusiasm that I come before you to register our

         18  support for the JFK Airport Rail Service planned by

         19  the Port of Authority.

         20                 By way of background, the Jamaica

         21  Business Resource Center was designated in 1994

         22  through Presidential authorization to become the

         23  national model and pilot for President Clinton's One

         24  Stop Capital Shop Small Business Program.  This

         25  program was developed at the White House Office of
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          2  Management and Budget to provide capacity building

          3  technical assistance, access to capital and access

          4  to markets for small minority and women- owned

          5  businesses in urban centers across this nation.  In

          6  1995, this model program was established in the 6th

          7  Congressional District and has now been replicated

          8  in 15 major cities.  Now while being located in

          9  Jamaica, JBRC also serves small business clients

         10  throughout the City of New York.  So I come before

         11  you representing an organization that is committed

         12  to community and economic development throughout the

         13  five boroughs of New York City.

         14                 First of all, we believe this to be

         15  an important public project from both the vantage

         16  point of public service, as well as the significant

         17  opportunities for economic development. However, my

         18  focus here today is on economic development.  It is

         19  not often that one single project can have such a

         20  dynamic impact on a region's economy relative to

         21  business opportunities and job creation.  From

         22  everything that we have examined, and believe me, we

         23  have looked at this project very, very carefully,

         24  this project does just that.

         25                 During the past four years of our
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          2  existence, JBRC has a mass client base of nearly

          3  3,000 New York Businesses.  And what I want to do is

          4  to give you one example of the support of some of

          5  our clients.  Last year we held a session whereby

          6  the Port of Authority and Slattery Skanska, came to

          7  make a presentation on this project.  Over 200 of

          8  our clients came to listen to this project, and

          9  thereafter, enthusiasticly supported this project.

         10  And to put it simply, the reason why they support

         11  this project is because it is good business and it

         12  makes good sense, and because it represents for them

         13  and their employees and their families real business

         14  opportunities.

         15                 Now as has been referenced here and

         16  as we all know, it is well documented that minority

         17  businesses receive much less than their fair share

         18  of both public and private sector contractual

         19  opportunities.  There has been a trend over the past

         20  20 years with affirmative action to knock down

         21  minority business participation. One of the things

         22  that we have seen and have experienced first hand,

         23  is that the Port of Authority has taken an

         24  enlightened and a proactive approach to affirmative

         25  action, by putting in place policies and procedures
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          2  that welcome the participation of minority

          3  businesses and not discourages them.

          4                 And we're going to work very closely,

          5  I heard the reference made earlier about business

          6  opportunities were limited to building cars.  Well

          7  the Port of Authority has already indicated to us,

          8  and we believe it, that they are going to work very

          9  closely with us in identifying specific ways that we

         10  can get to that 17 percent, which is going to

         11  represent, as was said previously, over $100 million

         12  in business opportunities.

         13                 And let me just say that this is

         14  particularly important because local based

         15  businesses, especially minority businesses, are the

         16  principal gateway for local employees to gain access

         17  to jobs on this particular project.  So it is not

         18  something that should be sneezed at or looked at

         19  lightly.  Moreover, there is going to be significant

         20  residual economic impact on other businesses in the

         21  area, as well as the tax base.

         22                 So it is for all of these reasons,

         23  Mr. Chairman, that we enthusiasticly endorse this

         24  particular project, and we encourage this Committee

         25  and the City Council to approve it.
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          2                 Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you, Mr.

          4  Marshall.  Next panel - -

          5                 MR. MARSHALL:  Just on other thing we

          6  wanted to ask, there is one more member of our panel

          7  that didn't get called, we were wondering if he

          8  could possibly speak, Mr. George Siberon.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I don't have a

         10  slip for him, that is why he didn't get called.

         11                 MR. MARSHALL:  Okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I don't have a

         13  separate slip for him.

         14                 MR. MARSHALL:  Okay.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  If he wants to

         16  testify at the end, I can do that, but I have got to

         17  have a slip for him, because I got the note, but I

         18  didn't get the slip, that is the difference.

         19                 Charles Lucas, South Ozone Park

         20  Coalition; Marie Allston, Sutphin Boulevard Civic

         21  Association.  Mr. Lucas, identify yourself for the

         22  record, please, and start us off?

         23                 MR. LUCAS:  I'm Charles Lucas, South

         24  Ozone Park Coalition of Block Associations, as well

         25  as a member of Concerned Neighbors of Southeast
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          2  Queens.  I along with the organization are against

          3  the Van Wyck El going down the middle of Van Wyck

          4  Expressway.  I live one block from the Van Wyck

          5  Expressway.

          6                 First of all, property values, not

          7  only my home, but those around me will plummet.  We

          8  cannot hardly endure the environmental impact that

          9  will come as a result of construction on the Van

         10  Wyck Expressway.

         11                 We have heard this afternoon about

         12  the development of jobs, there will be 4,000 jobs

         13  coming into the area.  We have heard that there will

         14  be greater business opportunities, minority business

         15  opportunities.  We have heard regarding development

         16  of other concerns that will bring millions of

         17  dollars into the community.  We have seen on the

         18  monitor and other occasions how beautiful the train

         19  will be for this 3.1- mile.  We have been told how

         20  great the building will be at Archer Avenue when

         21  this train is built.  But I will tell you, and may I

         22  stand with this, please?  I tell you this is puffing

         23  the goods, and many attorneys and all others are

         24  aware that you puff the goods if you want to sell

         25  your product, and that is what is happening here.
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          2                 You know, I had a dream, a nightmare

          3  it was, but my nightmare showed me that an

          4  international traveler came into Kennedy,

          5  fortunately, he says, get on this train and go 3.1

          6  miles, this train will take you straight into

          7  Manhattan.  The person didn't know, they got on the

          8  train to find out half way, this train is not a one-

          9  seat ride to Manhattan.  So the person said stop

         10  this train I want to get off.  But remember there

         11  are no stops on that 3.1- mile between Kennedy and

         12  Long Island Rail Road.

         13                 The community cannot enjoy it because

         14  there are no stops.  The other thing is once the

         15  person who is commuting reaches Archer Avenue or

         16  reaches Long Island Rail Road they must take their

         17  bags in hand, as these little things indicate and go

         18  upstairs, one, two, three in order to get another

         19  train to go into Manhattan.  I say to you, this is

         20  not a selling point for a train, a high rail that is

         21  going to be 50 feet in the air, that is going to

         22  kill a community.  Six hundred million dollars for a

         23  misguided project will not reduce the traffic on Van

         24  Wyck, will not attract tourist travelers, will cause

         25  years of construction, noise and pollution, and
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          2  traffic jams will cause property values to

          3  plummeted, will destroy the quality of life in

          4  Southeast Queens, and we will be forever doomed to a

          5  white elephant if it only carries 7,000 passengers a

          6  day, because it will be walked away from and it will

          7  be left in the air for our ancestors.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Ms. Allston.

         10                 MS. ALLSTON:  Okay.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Tell us who you

         12  are and who you represent.

         13                 MS. ALLSTON:  I'm Marie Allston.  I'm

         14  the President of the Sutphin Boulevard Civic

         15  Association, and Vice- President of the Concerned

         16  Neighbors of Southeast Queens.

         17                 First of all, I would like to say

         18  that we are not against progress.  The construction

         19  of the rail link between Kennedy Airport and Jamaica

         20  Station will cause many problems for the community

         21  of the Southeast Queens, especially homeowners along

         22  the Van Wyck Expressway and adjacent streets,

         23  haven't been considered at all.  The project will

         24  diminish property values, and who will be

         25  responsible for damaging a foundation and sewer
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          2  pipes?

          3                 The Port of Authority keeps

          4  mentioning that they have meetings with homeowners

          5  along the Van Wyck Expressway, to my knowledge the

          6  homeowners in our group, who live along the Van Wyck

          7  Expressway had not been approached.  How would like

          8  an elevated train rattling passed your home every

          9  two minutes?

         10                 The Port of Authority thinks our

         11  community is good enough for the elevated structure

         12  to run through, but not good enough for us to ride.

         13  The community of Southeast Queens will suffer years

         14  of noise, traffic, unsightliness of the Port of

         15  Authority project.  The Van Wyck El will not create

         16  jobs, I have been hearing that all day, for the

         17  Queens community.  You and I know contractors bring

         18  in their own employees.  The Van Wyck El is not a

         19  one- seat ride to Manhattan, travelers with baggage

         20  will have to get off at Jamaica Station and board

         21  another train.

         22                 Our vision is to have a neighborhood

         23  with few intrusions as possible.  We already have

         24  the polluting Van Wyck Expressway, Belt Parkway,

         25  Kennedy Airport, now the Port of Authority wants to
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          2  worsen our situation by totally disrupting the Van

          3  Wyck for years, a project that really accomplishing

          4  none of the goals regarding highway congestions.

          5                 You know, we're going into the 21st

          6  Century, for the past 50 years City agencies have

          7  been tearing down elevated railways on Jamaica

          8  Avenue, Fulton Street in Brooklyn, 3rd Avenue in the

          9  Bronx, and in Manhattan.  Yet, the Port of Authority

         10  want to bring back the same old structure, new name,

         11  Light Rail System, down the Van Wyck Expressway.  If

         12  we let this train be built with increased traffic

         13  congestion, pollution, our children and adults will

         14  suffer worse asthma, and I say to you please, vote

         15  down the Van Wyck El.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         18  Warren Kogan, Subcontractors Trade Association, are

         19  you here?  Warren Kogan, not here.  Mary Vavruska,

         20  TCE Systems, Robert Olmsted.  Is there a Harry, I

         21  can't read the writing, Desh, Dush, from Kennedy

         22  Airport, business on the airport.  Harry Quesh, not

         23  here?  Once, twice, okay.  This is my hometown

         24  panel.  Ms. Vavruska, why don't you start off, tell

         25  us who you represent?
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          2                 MS. VAVRUSKA:  Okay, my name is Mary

          3  Vavruska.  I'm a small business owner in Queens.

          4  The name of my company is TCE Systems, it's a small

          5  telecommunications company.  I also have been a

          6  resident of Queens, virtually, all of my life.  In

          7  my other life, and certainly not a conflict of

          8  interest for many years has since, I was Chairperson

          9  of Community Board #3, so I'm very aware of the

         10  opportunities for job development and economic

         11  prosperity that can happen when a community works

         12  very carefully, and a Community Board works very

         13  carefully on a project such as this.

         14                 I happened to have Chaired the first

         15  economic development effort, if you will, between

         16  the Port of Authority and the construction of the

         17  Delta Terminal.  We set some very, very vigorous

         18  restrictions and quotas.  I'm pleased to say that

         19  that first demonstration project produced $15

         20  million in goods and services in the surrounding

         21  community of Queens, that was back, I guess, in

         22  early 1983 or '84, and I'm very pleased to say that

         23  while I really didn't get full credit, the PA has a

         24  very formalized system in effect now, which they

         25  take a lot of credit for it.
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          2                 That is my preliminary comments.  I

          3  would like to now make my formal comments regarding

          4  economic development, having been a long- term

          5  student of it.  First of all, I want to thank you

          6  for providing the opportunity to present my comments

          7  in support of the ULURP process for the JFK AirTrain

          8  project.  I recognize the strong opinions, pro and

          9  con, about the project.  I think on balance we must

         10  consider the long- term economic benefit to the

         11  Southeast Queens community, the Borough of Queens

         12  and New York City.  In addition the viability of

         13  John F. Kennedy Airport as an international gateway

         14  to New York City is at stake without this project.

         15                 Sometimes we look at numbers, such as

         16  passenger projections, but we lose sight of other

         17  factors.  Newark Airport is well on its way to

         18  completion of a Light Rail project that will provide

         19  access to the airport from virtually the whole North

         20  Jersey corridor.  This came to fruition because

         21  elected officials in these New Jersey communities

         22  worked out their differences to make the project

         23  work.  On the other hand, JFK continues to lose

         24  passenger traffic, and once the passengers go, the

         25  cargo traffic won't be far behind.
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          2                 The dramatic economic revitalization

          3  of the Jamaica Business Center will be greatly

          4  enhanced by the AirTrain.  The commitment to this

          5  project will stimulate private investors to develop

          6  projects in the Jamaica area.  A thriving Jamaica

          7  Center will provide an additional source of

          8  passengers for the AirTrain to JFK.

          9                 I view AirTrain as an anchor for

         10  economic growth of Queens.  It can result in

         11  development of a new transport mechanism so sorely

         12  needed to connect southern and northern Queens.

         13                 We must also consider the number of

         14  jobs that will be created and the goods and services

         15  that AirTrain will generate. Of course, it should be

         16  assured, as I said before, that local people and

         17  local businesses benefit from the project.

         18                 Last year I attended the U.S. Senate

         19  hearing on the ISTEA transportation bill.  The new

         20  formula would have reduced the funds provided to

         21  both the New Jersey and New York areas.  The two

         22  governors and the four senators from New York gave

         23  testimony.  The U.S. Senate Committee has to be

         24  impressed by the solid coalition of elected

         25  officials, businesses and unions supporting a more
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          2  equitable formula for metropolitan areas.  That

          3  strong coalition prevailed, and that funding for

          4  those two states in our metropolitan areas was

          5  preserved.

          6                 What I see with the JFK AirTrain

          7  project are divided opinions.  This conveys the

          8  impression that we are not together on an important

          9  issue.  This perception can do New York City great

         10  harm when we're in need of state and federal funds

         11  for other projects.  It also sends a message, very

         12  sadly to private investors that maybe we're not

         13  willing to support projects because one set of

         14  numbers may not be to our liking.

         15                 Let us view JFK AirTrain not as a

         16  mechanical engine, but an economic engine that will

         17  add to the prosperity of Queens and the greater New

         18  York City community.  I respectfully request that

         19  you consider my comments and support the ULURP

         20  approval of the JFK AirTrain project.  And might I

         21  add, I'm very happy to have my neighbor, Bob

         22  Olmsted, sitting next to me, quite coincidental.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Mr. Olmsted.

         24                 MR. OLMSTED:  My name is Robert

         25  Olmsted.  I am a registered personal engineer and a
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          2  resident of Queens.  My kids went to school with

          3  Mary's kids.  I have some 50 years - -

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  And you're both

          5  from Jackson Heights, which makes you all right with

          6  this Committee.

          7                 MR. OLMSTED:  Okay, good.  I have

          8  some 50 years experience in the planning, design and

          9  operation of transportation facilities in the U.S.

         10  And abroad, and in New York City in particular.  I'm

         11  speaking today in support of the Port of Authority's

         12  Light Rail System proposal.  My comment that I'm

         13  also a member of AAA and do not support their

         14  position, I think they would be better off working

         15  with the Port of Authority on a good traffic

         16  maintenance plan.

         17                 For 22 years from 1967 till 1989, I

         18  was planning director at the MTA, and over the years

         19  there have been many plans, perhaps dozens of them

         20  for better access to our airports.  I have had my

         21  hand in perhaps half of them.  There is no perfect

         22  plan. The past plans failed for lack of money, but

         23  the present plan is unique in that it is funded,

         24  significantly it is also under construction as we

         25  speak.  The Port of Authority's plan has been
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          2  criticized because it does not provide a one- seat

          3  ride to Manhattan because of the ridership forecast

          4   - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Mr. Olmsted,

          6  could you just hold on one second, I see people in

          7  the back, their ears are straining, are you having a

          8  hard time hearing back there because of the

          9  conversation in the back?  Is that getting too noisy

         10  for you? If the Sergeant could just tell the people

         11  in the alcove to be a little quiet, I think we're

         12  getting some noise through the doors? Thank you, go

         13  ahead.

         14                 MR. OLMSTED:  Okay, the plan has been

         15  criticized because it does not provide a one- seat

         16  ride to Manhattan, because of the ridership forecast

         17  and because of its Jamaica connection, and that New

         18  York "can do better."  The Light Rail System has

         19  been designed to be used by trains operating over

         20  both the Long Island Rail Road or subway and the

         21  Light Rail System, as Marc Shaw testified earlier.

         22                 The present proposal is a first step

         23  and a necessary first step toward a one- seat ride.

         24  There are good reasons, however, why a one- seat is

         25  not possible at this time. Specifically, there is
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          2  virtually no capacity on existing tracks under the

          3  East River, for example, the Long Island Rail Road's

          4  tunnels are full, and Penn Station is bursting at

          5  the seams.  Penn Station is the busiest railroad

          6  station in the nation.

          7                 The key is to build the Long Island

          8  Rail Road East Side Access project to bring Long

          9  Island Rail Road into Grand Central by the lower

         10  deck of the 63rd Street Tunnel.  Only partially

         11  funded, this project is under engineering design and

         12  the Council should support this project, not only

         13  because it makes the goal of the one- seat ride

         14  achievable, but also because it paves the way for

         15  better train service to Queens.  However, one should

         16  not underestimate the difficulties in achieving a

         17  one- seat ride under any plan including the

         18  alternative plans that use the Rockaway Beach line.

         19  For example, operations over the Long Island Rail

         20  Road must meet stringent Long Island Rail Road and

         21  Federal Rail Road Administration regulations.  In

         22  fact, three weeks ago, the FRA issued new standards

         23  for rail passenger equipment, and the industry,

         24  which includes the Long Island Rail Road that has

         25  adopted supplementary standards and recommended
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          2  practices in a 653 page document, that is a lot of

          3  pages.  Keep in mind that a one- seat ride to

          4  Manhattan does nothing for Queens and Brooklyn.

          5  Less than half of JFK's passengers originate in

          6  Manhattan, while a majority of employees live in

          7  Queens, Brooklyn, and Long Island.  Hence the

          8  transfer connections at Howard Beach and Jamaica

          9  will always be important, even after a one- seat

         10  ride begins.  Moreover, being only 8 minutes from

         11  JFK in spite of some skepticism, a Jamaica

         12  connection has the real potential stimulating

         13  development in that community.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  You're

         15  going to have to sum up if you don't mind.

         16                 MR. OLMSTED:  Okay.  The ridership

         17  forecast, although criticized as low, are average

         18  figures, the total ridership are divided by 365, on

         19  busy summer and holiday travel days, ridership will

         20  be much higher, and these are the days that the

         21  roads around Kennedy are at a standstill and parking

         22  lots are full, and the Light Rail System will show

         23  its worth.

         24                 If the project is rejected, I think

         25  we will be setting rail access to Kennedy back a
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          2  decade.  It takes a long time for a new plan or

          3  alternative plan to win its way through the planning

          4  process.  There is a strong feeling out there that

          5  nothing can get built in New York, and this

          6  discourages contractors and jacks up the cost of

          7  construction in New York.  If the project is

          8  rejected there will be one guaranteed result, Newark

          9  Airport, not Kennedy will be the dominant airport in

         10  the region.  Is that what New York wants?  Let us

         11  complete the Port of Authority's Light Rail plan,

         12  including the Jamaica connection as expeditiously as

         13  possible and work diligent with the MTA on its one-

         14  seat ride study to achieve the next step, the one-

         15  seat ride to Manhattan.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank

         17  you very much, that is summing up?

         18                 MR. OLMSTED: That is it.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  All

         20  right, excellent. This is F. Latimer and Raphael

         21  Smalling.  This is a panel against, please,

         22  introduce yourselves?

         23                 MR. SMALLING:  My name is Raphael

         24  Smalling.  I'm a homeowner living on the Van Wyck

         25  Expressway.
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          2                 The Port of Authority have been

          3  promoting the building of the AirTrain as a jobs

          4  promotion for the Southeast Queens area.  The reason

          5  for that is simple because the AirTrain to Jamaica

          6  Station cannot be sold as a viable mode of

          7  transportation. It would cost an employee $40 extra

          8  per week on the AirTrain to work at the airport.  As

          9  for airlines passengers it would not even be an

         10  option, imagine that you just get off a flight

         11  looking for transportation to Manhattan and some one

         12  say to you, come take this train, it will take you

         13  to Jamaica Station about five miles away, where you

         14  will get off, go upstairs and catch another train to

         15  Manhattan.   On the other hand if you were told,

         16  take this train it is cheaper and faster than both

         17  taxis, share- a- ride vans and buses, and it is a

         18  one- seat ride to Manhattan, I am sure that you

         19  would have to give it some consideration, whereas

         20  you would give none to the former suggestion.

         21                 The Port of Authority are not

         22  forthcoming with regards to some very important

         23  concerns of the community.  One of which is the

         24  power station or stations that are in the plans to

         25  be built on the Van Wyck Expressway, the Port of
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          2  Authority now claims that they have removed it from

          3  the plan, however when I asked the project manager

          4  how they are going other power the train when they

          5  run more than two cars, he was unable to answer my

          6  question satisfactory  I then spoke to the project

          7  engineer, who said that he was skeptical when he was

          8  told that there would not be any power station on

          9  the Van Wyck any more.  I want to know who are not

         10  telling me the truth here.  So I am asking the Chair

         11  to kindly ask this question of the Port of

         12  Authority, so that we all can learn the truth today

         13  about the building of the power station or stations

         14  on the Van Wyck, and if not how will the power be

         15  supplied?

         16                 The AirTrain and the expenditure of

         17  over $600 million of public funds are the business

         18  of each and every New Yorker and their

         19  representatives.  It will not be built for the

         20  residents of Southeast Queens only, therefore, it is

         21  the responsibilities of each and every City Council

         22  person to prevent the Port of Authority from

         23  building this useless Van Wyck El train.

         24                 Let the City Council's Finance and

         25  Economic Development Committee's Report and your own
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          2  conscience by your guide.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank

          5  you.  Please, introduce yourself?

          6                 MS. LATIMER:  My name is Freta

          7  Latimer, and I am the President of the Square Deal

          8  Civic Association.

          9                 Good afternoon.  First, I would like

         10  to say, we, the residents of Southeast Queens are

         11  not against progress.  However, we do have a problem

         12  with the Van Wyck El, the AirTrain project. The Port

         13  of Authority has come up with this worthless plan,

         14  which is not a one- seat ride from JFK to the

         15  Central Business District in Manhattan, and our

         16  elected officials and Community Board are accepting

         17  it.  We, the community, believed elected officials

         18  and Community Boards were places the community could

         19  be heard.  Yes, we did speak, but we feel as if we

         20  were not heard.

         21                 I live one block from the Van Wyck

         22  Expressway for 35 years.  The train will pass

         23  through my community, but the we, the residents,

         24  will not be able to reach JFK without going to the

         25  Long Island Rail Road.  You have already heard many
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          2  of the concerns of the community and that they have

          3  not been answered as of today. But I am here to ask,

          4  how is it the City Council and the City of New York

          5  Finance and Economic Development Committee can

          6  produce a report, "Train to the Plane Are Money Down

          7  the Train," dated April 20th, 1999, and yet, the

          8  procedure to build the AirTrain continues?

          9                 Look at the ridership estimates, only

         10  7,000 passengers each day, however, 2,600 are

         11  airport employees.  Will this become another train

         12  to the plane, with we, as taxpayers footing the

         13  bill, while the Port of Authority goes off to the

         14  pie in the sky?  This is not an economic development

         15  project that Southeast Queens needs.  We are

         16  homeowners of Southeast Queens, struggling to

         17  survive, and now we will be faced with such

         18  inconveniences as traffic, medical services, and

         19  real estate value, to name a few, not to mention,

         20  which we just heard when we came today, the

         21  possibility of condemnation.

         22                 There is an alternate route, which

         23  should be considered because of the cost and the

         24  need.  I am not on anybody's pay roll, I am not

         25  getting any money from Port of Authority, I am an
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          2  honest, New York City resident, and I am not Floyd

          3  Flake, Archie Spigner, or Thomas White.  Therefore,

          4  I am asking you to please vote no on the Van Wyck

          5  El, the AirTrain portion of this project.

          6                 Thank you.  And we have been trying

          7  to get our elected officials to see us, because they

          8  would not see us, I would like to present signed

          9  petitions to become a part of the record that we are

         10  against the Van Wyck El.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank

         12  you very much. I should, with all due respect, point

         13  out to you that the report that you cited was a

         14  report that was not prepared by this particular

         15  Committee, it was prepared by other Committees, and

         16  this Committee is focusing primarily on Land Use

         17  issues related to acquisition and disposition of

         18  property.  So I just wanted to make that clear for

         19  the record, and I just have one quick question, if

         20  you don't mind, I just want to be clear.  So under

         21  what circumstances would you approve this project?

         22                 MS. LATIMER:  When I am given the

         23  same consideration that other neighborhoods were

         24  given, such as, don't come to me in 1992 with a

         25  project on the board, and then at that time the
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          2  community asked questions, and needless to say, the

          3  questions were never, ever answered.  When the Port

          4  of Authority returned to our community, they

          5  returned with the plan that is before you now.  So,

          6  what is this?  Does this mean that as long as the

          7  Port of Authority project that the community does

          8  not matter, is it mind over matter, the Port of

          9  Authority doesn't mind and the community doesn't

         10  matter?

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  This

         12  Council is very, very concerned about the interest

         13  of the community, so that is why we're having this

         14  particular hearing in this particular manner. But

         15  other than the timeliness of the conversations or

         16  discussions you had with the Port of Authority, what

         17  specific things would you have wanted to see in the

         18  plan or not in the plan?

         19                 MS. LATIMER:  Well I can give you

         20  another example, which we found very insulting.

         21  When the original plan came about it was going to go

         22  from JFK, LaGuardia and it would end up in the City

         23  where the old Alexander Building used to be, all

         24  right?  Well other communities fought it, and they

         25  were told that if ever goes through their community
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          2  it will go at or below ground level.  We are not

          3  against progress, but we are against a train 50 feet

          4  in the air.  Did anybody ever ask us would we

          5  consider it going at or below ground level?  No.

          6                 MR. SMALLING:  Could I just answer

          7  that, please? Yes, in the homeowners meeting, when I

          8  asked that of the Port of Authority and other

          9  meetings, whether or not they would have run it at

         10  ground level, their reply was that it was too late,

         11  it was a good plan, but it was too late.  It was too

         12  late to run it at ground level now, because they

         13  have already made the plans to do the AirTrain.  And

         14  could you kindly ask the Port of Authority about the

         15  power stations for me, as I asked you this evening?

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank

         17  you very much.

         18                 MR. SMALLING:  Thank you.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Peter

         20  Magnani, Deputy Borough President of Queens,

         21  representing Claire Shulman.

         22                 DEPUTY BOROUGH PRESIDENT MAGNANI:

         23  Thank you very much.  My name is Peter Magnani.  I'm

         24  Deputy Borough President of Queens, representing

         25  Queens Borough President Claire Shulman.
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          2                 LaGuardia and Kennedy Airports are an

          3  important part of the economy of New York City and

          4  the entire region.  The airports bring many benefits

          5  to Queens, including new residents, jobs, and

          6  economic activity.  These airports are essential to

          7  maintaining the City's leading role in our global

          8  economy.

          9                 Yet our airports suffer in comparison

         10  to those of other cities, since there is no

         11  reliable, easy method of getting between the

         12  airports and Manhattan.  This is especially true for

         13  Kennedy Airport, which is an international gateway

         14  to New York City.  Let us not forget that Newark

         15  Airport now has an operating monorail connecting its

         16  terminals, and this system will be expanded to

         17  connect to the Northeast Amtrak corridor.

         18                 All of the current ways to getting to

         19  Kennedy Airport, taxi, bus, or private car, are

         20  subject to the uncertainties of New York City

         21  highway and street traffic.  As we all know, this

         22  could mean traffic jams at any time, any place, for

         23  any reason, and oftentimes, for no apparent reason

         24  at all.

         25                 The only way to get to Kennedy via

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            182

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  mass transit is the lumbering A- train through

          3  Brooklyn, then a bus to the terminals.  But that bus

          4  suffers from the same problem as the other options,

          5  it gets stuck in airport traffic.

          6                 This is why construction of the

          7  AirTrain plan for Kennedy is so essential.  It will

          8  provide a way of getting around the airport from

          9  terminal to terminal, and to the subway, without the

         10  threat of delays because of traffic congestion.  It

         11  will also provide connections to Manhattan,

         12  Brooklyn, Queens and Nassau and Suffolk counties via

         13  the subway and the Long Island Rail Road.

         14                 The Jamaica Station will have the

         15  potential to make Downtown Jamaica an off- airport

         16  commercial and hotel center, in fact, development

         17  interest has been expressed around the site

         18  designated for the station.

         19                 Most importantly, it sets the stage

         20  for our eventual goal, a one- seat ride from Midtown

         21  to Kennedy Airport.

         22                 We must take this opportunity to get

         23  started on the first segment of that system.  The

         24  AirTrain will constructed in such a way so that it

         25  can be expanded to provide the much sought after
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          2  one- seat ride to and from Kennedy Airport.  A

          3  seamless connection from the main line of the Long

          4  Island Rail Road at Jamaica to the AirTrain should

          5  be seriously considered and implemented as soon as

          6  possible.

          7                 After lengthy hearings and much

          8  debate and deliberation, the three affected

          9  Community Boards, the Community Borough Board, and

         10  the Borough President have all recommended City

         11  approval of the AirTrain Plan with conditions.

         12                 These conditions are essential to

         13  mitigate the possible construction and operational

         14  impacts on homeowners along the Van Wyck Expressway.

         15    These conditions are also meant to ensure that

         16  these residents and their communities participate in

         17  the economic benefits of this project.

         18                 Airport access has been a

         19  controversial issue for more than three decades.

         20  Ever since the 1960s, we have been debating how to

         21  provide mass transit to Kennedy Airport.  Now, we

         22  have an opportunity to create it, and then to

         23  improve it so that it achieves our goal.

         24                 For these reasons, Borough President

         25  Shulman strongly urges that the Committee approve
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          2  the ULURP proposal regarding AirTrain, and that the

          3  full Council approve the plan.

          4                 Unlike the traffic to Kennedy on an

          5  average day, the AirTrain proposal must not get

          6  stuck in gridlock.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank

          9  you very much. Let me ask you a quick question, you

         10  have heard, it's clear that the Borough President is

         11  supporting this project and has been doing so for

         12  some time, and obviously it is based on a rather

         13  thorough analysis and involvement with some of the

         14  details.  As you know there are quite a few folks

         15  who live along the Van Wyck that have problems with

         16  the project, are you familiar with their problems,

         17  and what might be the Borough President's response?

         18                 DEPUTY BOROUGH PRESIDENT MAGNANI:

         19  Well we feel that the Port of Authority in their

         20  plan to ensure that the impacts from construction

         21  and the operational issues with regard to

         22  constructing on the Van Wyck are very comprehensive.

         23    We have attended various community meetings with

         24  the community as well as the Port of Authority,

         25  where these plans are worked out, you know, with the
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          2  community.  And any large project like this, the

          3  expression is, you know, you have to break an egg to

          4  make an omelet, and there are going to be

          5  construction impacts, but I feel that the Port of

          6  Authority has developed a comprehensive plan to

          7  mitigate those impacts and to find out about them

          8  from the community as quickly as possible so they

          9  mitigated and corrected.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I have

         11  to ask this question, and forgive me, I don't mean

         12  to put you on the spot, but, so the Borough

         13  President is involved in mitigating, helping to

         14  mitigate the cracking of the egg, so- to- speak?

         15                 DEPUTY BOROUGH PRESIDENT MAGNANI:

         16  Well we were invited to meetings with the Port of

         17  Authority and the community, and we participated in

         18  these community meetings.  It was the responsibility

         19  of the Port of Authority to develop this

         20  comprehensive plan, and we feel they did a good job

         21  in terms of doing it to mitigate the impacts.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank

         23  you very much, and the Chairman has returned.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         25                 DEPUTY BOROUGH PRESIDENT MAGNANI:
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          2  Thank you.  Mr. Chairman.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Mr. Magnani.

          4  Okay, so we're on an anti- panel now.  Please, give

          5  our regards to the Borough President, we spent the

          6  weekend marching in parades.  Jesse Murray, is it,

          7  UNCA, you will have to tell us what UNCA is?  Well,

          8  when you get up there, don't do it now.  Norman

          9  Silverman, Q- Rail.  All right, Mr. Murray, you will

         10  tell us what UNCA is now.

         11                 MR. MURRAY:  Yes, Sir, I want to

         12  thank you for inviting me here.  UNCA is United

         13  Neighbor Civic Association, and I'm the Second Vice-

         14  President.  I'm against this rail, I'm also a

         15  retired transit worker.  I have drove the Van Wyck

         16  for the last 30 years and trying to get through that

         17  traffic now is a lot of chaos, and if you take one

         18  lane, and if you take the shoulder and make that a

         19  lane, the emergency vehicles will not be able to get

         20  through for emergencies when they exist.  And they

         21  keep telling me that it's going to make it a lot

         22  easier by adding a lane, you're not adding a lane,

         23  you are taking one away and you're putting one back,

         24  so you're still back where you started from.  So I'm

         25  tired of hearing that this going to ease the
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          2  traffic, because it will not, and the traffic will,

          3  evidently have to go through our communities and

          4  that is why we are here to discuss that problem.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 MR. SILVERMAN:  I'm Norman Silverman.

          7    I want to thank the Council members who are here,

          8  I see Council Member Carrion, Council Member Sabini,

          9  who has worked hard on this all day, and Council

         10  Member June Eisland, who has come back and who is

         11  Chair of the whole Committee.  I represent Q- Rail,

         12  which includes 12 civic groups in Rockaway,

         13  including Bays Water Civic Association, which is

         14  mine, Del Harbor property- owned, is the Chamber of

         15  Commerce of the Rockaways, Dayton Towers

         16  Association, Frank Avenue Civic Association, Jewish

         17  Community Council, the Rockaway Peninsula, The

         18  Posnick Property Owners, the Rockaway Action

         19  Committee, Rockaway Beach Civic Association,

         20  Rockaway Park Civic Association, Rockaway Park

         21  Business Development Association, and Shaft Tenants

         22  Association.  We have all been concerned, we have

         23  members also in Howard Beach, Ozone Park, Richmond

         24  Hill, Woodhaven and Forest Hills, and we have all

         25  been concerned with bringing better transit to
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          2  Southern Queens.  There is north/south

          3  transportation line through Queens, and there hasn't

          4  been since 1962 when the failing Long Island Rail

          5  Road gave up on running the line that ran through

          6  that area, and we worked to bring this back.

          7                 As we worked we found that the Port

          8  of Authority working on a plan to connect JFK to

          9  mass transit, and we thought we could work with

         10  them.  With the help of the City Planning

         11  Commission, we found a study that was done by the

         12  City Planning Commission, completed in 1991 that

         13  said the old Rockaway Beach line was the best

         14  connection from Midtown to JFK.  I believe these

         15  studies are still available at the City Planning

         16  Commission as they directed me to it, and it has the

         17  information that we need on this.

         18                 But we found that the Port of

         19  Authority has a very different plan.  They would try

         20  to connect the airport without serving communities

         21  they pass through.  They would use Federal Passenger

         22  Facilities Charge money to build this line, we will

         23  say as an excuse, but not serving the communities of

         24  Queens which need transportation, because they can

         25  use this money in other ways.
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          2                 I'm making sure that I have the

          3  attention of at least some members of the City

          4  Council here who have to vote on this, this is a

          5  matter of $600 million.  I know the City Council is

          6  working on a number of things connected with the

          7  budget, I doubt that any of them are $600 million,

          8  and I hope that the proper attention is given to

          9  this issue.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  We only work on

         11  $33 billion, Norman.

         12                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Thirty- three

         13  billion, how much can you change in that budget

         14  there?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Well I can

         16  guarantee that this $600 million won't come anywhere

         17  near our hands because it is not our money, but

         18  okay.

         19                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Well this is money

         20  that can be moved, when you get to Bill Guild he is

         21  one of the experts on how this money can be moved

         22  around and can be used for the benefit of all of the

         23  people of New York City, not for one project in one

         24  area which many of the local people do not want.

         25                 All right, by doing this they would

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            190

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  in effect privatize the transportation system,

          3  because the funding source, because of the funding

          4  source which they have chosen to use, they would say

          5  they could not provide local service, that would

          6  only allow airline passengers and employees to use

          7  the system.  If any local working commuter wanted to

          8  use the service, the five- dollar fare that the Port

          9  of Authority talks about will certainly keep them

         10  from using it too often.

         11                 A couple of years ago the Mayor

         12  announced a plan to privatize City hospitals.  The

         13  City Council stood up for the patients and hospital

         14  workers and after a long fight we won and still have

         15  a public hospital system in New York City.

         16                 Now is the time for the City Council

         17  to stand up for the public transportation system

         18  that serves the people, is sensitive to the needs of

         19  the people of the communities it passes through.  By

         20  voting no you are voting for public transit, you are

         21  voting for trains run by union labor, not unmanned

         22  trains that are incompatible with the subway system

         23  or the Long Island Rail Road.

         24                 The Mayor talks about the failures of

         25  the Port of Authority, he threatens to oppose the
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          2  renewal of the Port of Authority's Airport Lease.

          3  Of course, this will come long after his term is

          4  over.  We can call the Mayor's hand now, by stopping

          5  the Van Wyck line and requiring the Port of

          6  Authority to work with the MTA and other planning

          7  agencies to improve transit of all South Queens

          8  residents who go to work every day.  No one in our

          9  group is anti- labor.  I'm a retired UFFT, in turn a

         10  union delegate and picket captain during my 34 years

         11  on the job.

         12                 We want labor to have a voice in

         13  building projects our communities need and can use

         14  with our own families.  In Rockaway we have seen the

         15  growth of new private housing.  We have also been

         16  working with the developers of Destination

         17  Technodome, an Arts and Entertainment Theme Park.

         18  This project would provide 19,454 direct and

         19  indirect construction jobs, and if the union people

         20  are still here, they were all here earlier today,

         21  and this is very important for them to know, two

         22  million additional tourist visits, a 92.1 million

         23  annual spending, $210 million in local and state

         24  taxes from construction, $158 million in local - -

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Norman, I'm
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          2  going to ask you to sum up and we're not here to

          3  talk about Technodome, okay?

          4                 MR. SILVERMAN:  I will be, but we

          5  should be aware of these things in making a decision

          6  of this importance that there are alternatives and

          7  there are plenty of jobs, if we will work together

          8  in doing this.  The plans required better

          9  transportation for Rockaway, including reopening the

         10  Rockaway Beach line.

         11                 We urge this Council to vote down the

         12  Van Wyck line and join us in the dreams of our

         13  grandchildren and tourists from all over the nation

         14  can enjoy this Theme Park.

         15                 There have been comments made about

         16  the City Planning Commission, the members of the

         17  City Planning Commission, after they heard this

         18  entire thing, spoke on this issue, and it was

         19  heartbreaking to hear the amount of opposition which

         20  they had.  Of course, we know what their vote was.

         21  Chairman Rose said, meaningful access to the airport

         22  is most important, but there are huge problems that

         23  the current plans does not address.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Norman, could

         25  you just sum up, you're way over time?
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          2                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Okay, I will hope

          3  that the members of the Council get the comments of

          4  Chairman Rose, of Ed Ralgowsky (phonetic), the

          5  Brooklyn member of the City Planning Commission, and

          6  how they feel about this after having studied it.

          7  It is not enough to say that you are making a Land

          8  Use decision, pass the buck, and then allow this to

          9  go on.  It has been said that the Community Boards

         10  may approval, the Community Boards actually made

         11  every effort to stop the approval.  Community Board

         12  #14, which is my community, voted 28 to 4 to stop

         13  it.  The Community Board #10, which has been cited,

         14  said the approval is based on the project and

         15  properties contained within the domain of Community

         16  District #10.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Norman, I'm

         18  going to ask you to sum up or I'm going to toss you

         19  off of here.

         20                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Okay, I'm going to

         21  just - -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  You're the only

         23  guy to go over here, don't disappoint me, you're

         24  from Queens, you should be - -

         25                 MR. SILVERMAN:  I know you for a long
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          2  time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Well, so, let's

          4  abide by the rules.

          5                 MR. SILVERMAN:  All right, all right,

          6  Community Board #10 - -

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  You're against

          8  it, we get the idea.

          9                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Well, Community Board

         10  #10, it has been said that Community Board #10

         11  approved it.  If we know that they said that the

         12  Authority is requested to provide detailed

         13  evaluation of the alternative routes to the Van Wyck

         14  Expressway segment and present it to the Board for

         15  their consideration before any acquisition and real

         16  property is undertaken, any acquisition of real

         17  property, details will be handled through special

         18  liaison.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, Norman,

         20  that is it, pasta.

         21                 MR. SILVERMAN:  They have tried every

         22  way to stop it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Pasta.

         24                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Okay?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I know.
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          2                 MR. SILVERMAN:  If you got the

          3  message,  - -

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I'm going to

          5  call the next panel.

          6                 MR. SILVERMAN: - -  I hope I don't

          7  hear that people say that Community Board #10 wants

          8  this.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, they voted

         10  for it, deal with it, okay?

         11                 MR. SILVERMAN:  They voted for it

         12  after they put this in there, and this is - -

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Lou Coletti from

         14  the Building Trades Employees Association.

         15                 MR. SILVERMAN:  All right, thank you

         16  for your time.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Lenore Janis,

         18  Professional Women in Construction, Carpenter's

         19  Local 45, Herman Taylor.

         20                 MR. COLLETTI:  Good afternoon, Mr.

         21  Chairman.  My name is Louis Colletti.  I'm Chairman

         22  and Chief Executive Officer of the Building Trades

         23  Employers Association, and I'm here this afternoon

         24  representing 22 contractor associations and over

         25  1,100 contractors doing business in the City of New
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          2  York.

          3                 Before I go into my formal comments,

          4  let me take a second to say to you, Mr. Chairman and

          5  to the members of the City Council Committee, thank

          6  you for paying so much attention and laboring

          7  through this hearing which is so critical to all of

          8  us. You have had a lot of demands on your agenda,

          9  you have been going in and out of meetings, you have

         10  paid tremendous attention to this issue, not only

         11  today, but in the weeks and months previous to this,

         12  you have spent a lot of time studying the issues,

         13  you have been out on job sites to take a look at it,

         14  and I think, I just want an opportunity to say, to

         15  thank you for your attention irrespective of which

         16  way the vote goes.

         17                 I come here this afternoon in order

         18  to urge you to support this Light Rail project.  It

         19  makes both economic sense and transportation sense.

         20  I think the best question, Mr. Chairman, I think it

         21  was asked by yourself when the representatives of

         22  the American Transit Association, you asked them

         23  would they support any project?  And I think the

         24  answer to that question is, no, they will never

         25  support a project that uses the $3 passenger to
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          2  finance anything, and that is why it is so critical

          3  that this project be approved.  We can make the

          4  changes that we need to make once the project is

          5  approved, but to push this project off for another

          6  ten years, in light of the fact that the airlines

          7  will never, ever approve any project moving forward,

          8  will be to continue to condemn that airport to a

          9  second class economic status to Newark.  So I urge

         10  you to pass this project today.

         11                 I also want to commend each and every

         12  member of the City Council, because it gets to the

         13  heart of the issue.  I want to talk a little

         14  differently than most of the other speakers.  Your

         15  reports called," Hallow in the Middle," and "New

         16  York City's Middle Class, The Need for a New Urban

         17  Agenda," are right on target.  If there is anyone

         18  from the press who is here, I know they had a press

         19  conference downstairs, if you haven't read that

         20  report, I would strongly urge you to read it.  It

         21  takes on some of the most significant issues this

         22  City will face in the next century.  And I would

         23  suggest to you that the approval of the JFK Light

         24  Rail project is an important element in achieving

         25  the goals that are set by this Council in that
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          2  report.

          3                 Now why do I say that?  Because the

          4  construction industry is the only blue collar

          5  industry left in this City that can provide the

          6  jobs, the income levels, the health benefits, and

          7  the pensions that are necessary for individuals to

          8  attain and to maintain a solid middle class life

          9  style.

         10                 You heard some testimony earlier this

         11  afternoon about how construction, manufacturers, and

         12  suppliers were being made in Virginia, and that is

         13  accurate.  Unfortunately, we in New York State, we

         14  in New York City, we in the northeast, have lost

         15  those manufacturing jobs for good.  Manufacturing

         16  and construction was a gateway for immigrants to get

         17  into the middle class in this City.  With those

         18  manufacturing jobs gone, all we have left are the

         19  construction jobs that will build this project.

         20                 Now to what do I base that statement

         21  on?  Let me share with you some of the statistics

         22  about the construction industry as we sit here

         23  today.  There are 160,000 people employed on- site

         24  and in construction offices in New York City.

         25  Nearly three of every four construction jobs in this
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          2  City are filled by New York City residents, 34

          3  percent of them live in Queens, 31 percent live in

          4  Brooklyn, 16 percent live in the Bronx, 11 percent

          5  in Manhattan, and 8 percent live in Staten Island.

          6  I suggest to you that those are pretty strong

          7  economic development terms that this project can

          8  only increase.  When we're training New York City's

          9  future workforce, my members are spending $20

         10  million of our own money to make sure that we

         11  continue to have skilled and trained workers that

         12  can build these projects.  Of the 5,500 registered

         13  apprentices that are in the Building Trades today

         14  and employed by my members, 51 percent are minority,

         15  26 percent are African- American, 17 percent are

         16  Latino, 3 percent are Asian, and 5 percent fall into

         17  the other category.  And 85 percent of those

         18  individuals live in the five boroughs of New York

         19  City.  That new workforce is paying an average of

         20  $4,000 a year in New York City and New York State

         21  Income Taxes.            The approval of the JFK

         22  Light Rail project is absolutely essential to

         23  continuing the growth of our industry, because

         24  without creating new jobs, our efforts to recruit a

         25  larger and more well- trained workforce, and your
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          2  efforts to address how we will rebuild our City's

          3  middle class, will not succeed.  We cannot rebuild

          4  New York City's middle class without continuously

          5  adopting public policies that include blue collar

          6  individuals and careers.

          7                 The Light Rail project represents an

          8  opportunity to approve a project that represent

          9  sound transportation policy, creates significant

         10  economic development opportunities for local firms,

         11  and creates the kind of jobs that will grow our

         12  City's middle class.

         13                 In closing, let me repeat two of the

         14  most important findings that you determined in your

         15  report, "Hallow in the Middle."

         16                 Number one, and I'm quoting from the

         17  report, "New York City has a difficult time

         18  retaining middle class residents."

         19                 Number two, "The fact that fewer New

         20  Yorkers are members of the middle class today than

         21  in 1977 is the single, most troubling finding of

         22  this report."

         23                 I would respectfully suggest to you

         24  that approving this Light Rail project is essential

         25  to addressing a major transportation need, but
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          2  perhaps even more importantly, it is essential to

          3  creating the kind of jobs that will rebuild our

          4  middle class and strengthen the social fabric of New

          5  York City well into the 21st Century.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Ms.

          8  Janis.

          9                 MS. JANIS:  My name is Lenore Janis,

         10  and I'm President of Professional Women In

         11  Construction, a non- profit organization of Business

         12  and Professional Women, established 19 years ago by

         13  a dozen women seeking entre to construction

         14  opportunities and lending assistance to those

         15  following us in the industry.

         16                 Throughout the early eighties the

         17  general construction industry was disbelieving of

         18  the government regulations to encourage women's

         19  participation in this industry, but we preserved and

         20  now PWC has a membership exceeding 500 and has a

         21  constituency of 8,000 nationwide.  PWC is a member

         22  of the New York Building Congress, Greater New York

         23  Construction User Council, New York Women's Agenda,

         24  National Council of Women, and is an affiliate of

         25  the National Minority Business Council.
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          2                 My presentation is on behalf of a

          3  wide spectrum of the design and construction

          4  industry and the opportunity that will be afforded

          5  to women and minority- owned businesses during the

          6  construction of the AirTrain Light Rail System to

          7  JFK.  As a frequent traveler, myself, who goes out

          8  of her way to avoid booking flights to and from JFK

          9  because of time, traffic and cost considerations, I

         10  support this project, and it is a great beginning to

         11  undo years of neglecting easy, low- cost access

         12  between planes and various City destinations for the

         13  tourists and the business travelers that are so

         14  essential to our economy.

         15                 Some of our members who are certified

         16  women- owned businesses in construction and allied

         17  industries have already been awarded contracts for

         18  the first phase of the AirTrain Light Rail project,

         19  others are preparing bids and the competition is

         20  keen. The WBE contract awards will account for 5

         21  percent of this billion plus dollar project.

         22  Additionally, minority- owned businesses and locally

         23  based enterprises will benefit through the Port of

         24  Authority's affirmative action and local community

         25  outreach program.
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          2                 Our organization has worked closely

          3  with the Port of Authority's Office of Business and

          4  Job Opportunity over the years to promote small

          5  business participation on all their projects.  We

          6  gladly assist the dedicated efforts of the Air Rail

          7  Transit Consortium to outreach to the business,

          8  women business community, by publishing articles in

          9  our newsletter and by sponsoring informative

         10  meetings where WBEs and MBEs have an opportunity to

         11  meet with both the Port of Authority and ARTC's

         12  Construction Chiefs and Procurement Personnel.  PWC

         13  very much wants its members to succeed and become a

         14  competitive force in this non- traditional industry.

         15                 Thanks to the magnitude of the

         16  project and the affirmative action program of the

         17  Port of Authority, AirTrain access to JFK will be a

         18  boon for women- owned businesses and the

         19  construction industry.

         20                 What does the future hold?  Within 10

         21  years we will see a 50 percent increase in passenger

         22  traffic that will not only put more pressure on key

         23  elements of airport access, we can no longer put off

         24  the inevitable.  The AirTrain project will have a

         25  positive effect on access to JFK and the community
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          2  surrounding the new train terminals should also

          3  benefit since any project of this enormity has a

          4  domino effect.  It should bring about the upgrading

          5  of businesses in and around the new rail terminals,

          6  employment for local people in newly created jobs.

          7  It will provide the traveler to the Big Apple with

          8  more convenient and less costly access between JFK

          9  and New York City, and, of course, it is a one stop

         10  ride for residents of Jamaica and Howard Beach, and

         11  let's not forget the benefits to thousands of

         12  airport employees who will have an easier commute to

         13  and from JFK.

         14                 New York has a lot of catching up to

         15  do, Professional Women in Construction urges you not

         16  to impede the progress of this project.

         17                 Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

         19  Taylor.

         20                 MR. TAYLOR:  Good afternoon, ladies

         21  and gentlemen. My name is Herman Taylor, and I'm a

         22  25- year member of the Carpenters Local 45, Queens,

         23  New York.  I currently live in Springfield Gardens,

         24  just a stroke short distance from the proposed

         25  entry.  I have lived there since 1983.  Currently,
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          2  I'm working as a shelf short for the concrete

          3  carpenters who are now on the JFK Terminal section

          4  of this project.

          5                 I am here to tell you that this

          6  project has and will provide hundreds of good union

          7  jobs for the next five years.  Over the years,

          8  Kennedy Airport has provided employment for me and

          9  thousands of other workers.  It is important that

         10  Kennedy Airport continues to modernize and compete

         11  with Newark Airport.

         12                 On behalf of the workers I represent

         13  and on the job site, and those I will represent if

         14  this project is approved, I urge you all to vote for

         15  AirTrain.

         16                 Thank you for your time, and may God

         17  bless you all.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Questions?

         19  Okay.  Bishop Acharya.  Okay, we called you before,

         20  but, okay.  We're also going to call up at this

         21  time, George Hercules, are you here?  Come on up,

         22  take a seat.  Bishop, why don't you start, identify

         23  yourself, who you represent?

         24                 BISHOP ACHARYA:  Mr. Chairman,

         25  members of the City Council, my brothers and sisters
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          2  from Southeast Queens who are here with us, I'm the

          3  Bishop of Richmond Hill, Ozone Park, and Jamaica, I

          4  know the ins and outs of my people.  Today, Mr.

          5  Chairman, I don't want be long with you and I don't

          6  want to bore you, it is strictly Uncle Sam and human

          7  beings.  Most of your people who talk here today,

          8  they are looking at this and disregarding,

          9  disregarding the people who live on the Van Wyck,

         10  who are human beings, but they care for this.  You

         11  hear about the employment, which is a total lie, a

         12  total lie.  These construction people would bring

         13  people all the way from Virginia, all the way from

         14  Jersey, and on the East Coast.

         15                 Let me tell you, I fought with them.

         16  The Federal Building was building and they did not

         17  hire three people in Queens, technically, they did

         18  not, they asked them, are you a union member? I

         19  represent them, I went there, I said, is anybody

         20  bond to be a union member?  All you have to do is

         21  hire them, and if they can work, give them a job and

         22  immediately you put them in the union. But these

         23  unions are not going to do that, you must have a

         24  union paper, a union ticket to become a worker for

         25  them.  So when they say they are going to create
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          2  jobs for our people in Queens, no, that is a total

          3  lie, blatant lie, not five people have jobs, that

          4  big job, million dollars been finished, federal job,

          5  and I ask, I don't want to name them, our elected

          6  officials to come let us go to that site and pursue

          7  it, because the day that it was opened, you were all

          8  there, and they said, 51 percent of the people in

          9  Queens, in Jamaica section will get jobs, not even 1

         10  percent got jobs.

         11                 Mr. Chairman, please, may God guide

         12  your conscience on this rail, look at us as human

         13  beings and not as a dollar.  Take that in

         14  consideration.  I don't want to push more, because a

         15  lot of advisement to you already.  I'm a community

         16  leader for 20 years, I leave my job as a Medical

         17  Officer at a Downstate University to walk among my

         18  poor people, because I'm from an immigrant family,

         19  and I work for immigrant children, I teach school in

         20  my own place, I teach them.

         21                 Please, Mr. Chairman, may God guide

         22  us, and I will pray for you, please, make a decision

         23  of conscience, not look at the wide scope, what

         24  they're telling you here today.  The majority of

         25  them come here to talk about the American dollar,
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          2  not the human value.

          3                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

          5  Hercules.

          6                 MR. HERCULES:  My name is George

          7  Hercules, and I live on the Van Wyck Expressway, so

          8  I see everything and I hear everything.  Now why is

          9  it in there, listen to all the rhetoric in favor of

         10  that AirTrain, they call it?  I happen to look up

         11  there, and I see what it says, I want to draw your

         12  attention to it, a government for the people, by the

         13  people and for the people, and we are the people,

         14  and we expect you to do your job diligently for the

         15  people.  As I said, I live on the Van Wyck, my home

         16  is of a wooden frame construction, that will tell

         17  the story.  If that AirTrain is built, my house will

         18  be rattled to the ground or to the basement.

         19                 Now the Port of Authority has been

         20  less than truthful to us.  Neither one of the

         21  messengers from the Port of Authority ever came to

         22  our neighborhood to discuss this project with us,

         23  whereas, they have gone to other communities who

         24  rejected it.  Now they came to our community, which

         25  they surmised is the weakest link, but by God we are
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          2  not the weakest and we are able to fight to the

          3  death.  The animals in the jungle they fight for

          4  territory, our homes are our territory, and we are

          5  able to fight to preserve it.

          6                 I have been living on the Van Wyck

          7  for the past 36 years, and my home is my Castle.  I

          8  worked to achieve the American Dream, and here now

          9  the Port of Authority is coming to shot that

         10  American Dream.  Now, I won't say much, but I took

         11  the opportunity of putting myself in traffic which

         12  is horrendous, and here I have a tape, I will

         13  present to you.  The Port of Authority has, should

         14  have recorded their version of the train, but this

         15  is reality, you cannot differ from that, that is not

         16  a computerized rendition, that is real.

         17                 I thank you, oh, and I wish that you

         18  would vote against this project.  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         20  We're going to have a panel in favor now, Joseph

         21  Jamison from the State AFL- CIO, are you here?  John

         22  Early, Carpenters Local 45, Stephen McInnis, New

         23  York City District Council of Carpenters, he had to

         24  leave.  Is it Larry Kudlow?  You're not the guy

         25  from, you're not the other Larry Kudlow, I got the
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          2  guy that is the Wall Street Journal, he went to

          3  jail, so you don't want to know about him.  All

          4  right, Mr. Jamison, identify yourself for the

          5  record?

          6                 MR. JAMISON:  Okay, my name is Joseph

          7  Jamison.  I'm Research Director of the New York

          8  State AFL- CIO.  I'm speaking today on behalf of

          9  Denis Hughes, President of the State AFL- CIO,

         10  urging your support for the proposed AirTrain Light

         11  Rail System Extension to Jamaica.  The State AFL-

         12  CIO encompasses the State's two and one- half

         13  million union members with one and one- half million

         14  in the New York City area.

         15                 The construction of the AirTrain is

         16  an issue that is of great concern to working people

         17  in the State.  For more than a decade the State AFL-

         18  CIO in report after report has taken the position

         19  that transportation innovation is the key to high

         20  road economic development in the State.  This Light

         21  Rail project is critical to the economic health to

         22  the Borough of Queens and the region.  The airport

         23  must be made more accessible, the proposed AirTrain

         24  system will provide immediate service to thousands

         25  of travelers and airport employees, who can afford
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          2  to get caught in massive traffic jams on the way to

          3  JFK.

          4                 As others have noted, New Jersey is

          5  already ahead of us in the competition for jobs in

          6  the region.  The monorail has been completed in

          7  Newark Airport and the Light Rail system is under

          8  construction to connect it to Downtown Newark and

          9  the New Jersey Transit commuter rail network.  And

         10  the implications of that is that our State loses out

         11  in the competitive race.  Inevitably this will lead

         12  to less business at JFK and in Queens and in New

         13  York, unless we construct our Light Rail System now.

         14    The investment in the AirTrain will also take

         15  traffic off the road leading to less pollution in

         16  the area in the long run.

         17                 Our New York union members want the

         18  opportunity to work on this project that is why so

         19  many local union members have united and voiced

         20  their support for the Light Rail System, including

         21  the operating engineers, the carpenters, the

         22  Teamsters, the labors, the electrical workers, and

         23  many others.  Hundreds of union members have

         24  attended community meetings in support of this

         25  project, we need these jobs, these are well paid
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          2  positions with a living wage that can support a

          3  family.

          4                 The State AFL- CIO has worked with

          5  you and supported you in the past on many projects

          6  that have benefitted the City, now we need your help

          7  to develop a first class airport access program that

          8  will benefit all New Yorkers.  The money is

          9  available to build this system now without New York

         10  City tax dollars, we need to proceed on what we can

         11  build today, otherwise we will be dooming New York

         12  to second class status in the regional competition

         13  for transportation and jobs.  This project will

         14  improve transit, provide employment opportunities,

         15  and improve the area's economy.

         16                 It deserves your strong support, and

         17  President Hughes and the Executive Council of the

         18  New York State AFL- CIO urge you to vote yes, when

         19  the Light Rail extension comes before your Council.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         22  Next.

         23                 MR. EARLY:  Yes, my name is John

         24  Early, and I'm the President and Business Manager of

         25  Carpenters Local 45 in Queens. Local 45's
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          2  jurisdictional boundaries encompass the Borough of

          3  Queens and 19 towns in Southwestern Nassau County.

          4  Our local has over 2,000 members, 85 percent of whom

          5  live and work in Queens, many of them in communities

          6  effected by the Light Rail.

          7                 JFK Airport is the economic engine

          8  that drives Southeast Queens.  As a result of the

          9  Light Rail project well over 4,000 quality jobs will

         10  be created during construction, and over 200

         11  permanent jobs will be created operating the system.

         12    Although this project does not address the much

         13  needed one- seat ride to Manhattan, we do believe it

         14  is the first step in the process that in the future

         15  will connect JFK Airport with a new Penn Station,

         16  bringing even more jobs to Queens in the future.

         17                 We have been actively participating

         18  in the Community Board process and are satisfied

         19  that the project is a viable one that is sensitive

         20  to the needs of the community.  We ask that you

         21  concur with the decision of the Community Board and

         22  the Planning Commission and approve the full scale

         23  of this project.

         24                 On behalf of the members of Local 45,

         25  I would like to thank you for your time and
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          2  consideration, and, once again, urge you not to let

          3  this opportunity for much needed economic growth and

          4  quality jobs pass us by.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 MR. KUDLOW:  Good afternoon.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Before you go

          8  on, I just want to say that Chairwoman Eisland and I

          9  were down at your facility on Hudson Street and saw

         10  the college atmosphere that you have teaching

         11  apprentices, and it was really great, and I just

         12  want to say that for the record.

         13                 MR. EARLY:  Thank you.

         14                 MR. KUDLOW:  Good afternoon,

         15  distinguished members of the panel.  My name is

         16  Lawrence Kudlow.  I'm the Recording Secretary of

         17  Local 282 of the Teamsters, and I speak today on

         18  behalf and in favor of the Light Rail on behalf of

         19  3,700 women and men and their families in Local 282.

         20    Our foreparents came from many countries across

         21  the sea and settled in New York City, and through

         22  generations they built mechanical marvels which

         23  still stand in this country.  And through those

         24  mechanical marvels it created jobs, and that is what

         25  we're talking about, jobs.  Jobs build communities,
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          2  communities can outreach the people, churches are in

          3  communities, and jobs help all.  We're talking about

          4  good paying jobs that have welfare benefits, pension

          5  benefits to creed out all.

          6                 In, "I Have Stoned Socrates,"

          7  Socrates spoke of the Citadel, in creating the

          8  Citadel and creating communities. Communities need

          9  jobs, jobs hold people together, they build

         10  religious groups and they build outreach groups, and

         11  through jobs we can build better communities.

         12                 I would like you to take into

         13  consideration before you vote, and vote and think

         14  about a moral and social responsibility we have in

         15  this country.  And that moral responsibility is,

         16  jobs, and I'm a very socially oriented person, and I

         17  believe jobs are deterrent to crime.  You know it

         18  would be wonderful to wake up one day, right, and

         19  look around and see the accomplishments that we have

         20  created and see that there are more people working

         21  in this society and less people in the penal system

         22  in this country.

         23                 Thank you very much for your time.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         25  Questions, no? Okay, William Guild, is it Guild,
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          2  CBT, I guess we will find out what that is.  Is that

          3  Committee for Better Transit?  Okay.  Is Albert Papp

          4  here?  Also from Committee for Better Transit.  Now

          5  we heard some of you before, but we didn't know you

          6  were all here. Okay, Mr. Guild, do you want to

          7  start?

          8                 MR. GUILD:  Yes, good afternoon.  My

          9  name is William K. Guild.  I am a member of the

         10  Board of Directors of the Committee for Better

         11  Transit, as well as a member of the Transit Riders

         12  Council of the Permanent Citizens Advisory Committee

         13  to the Metropolitan Transportation Authority.  I

         14  have also been participating for two or three years

         15  in Mr. Sepersky's Manhattan Quad- Board Task Force

         16  on Airport Access, he spoke earlier.  While that

         17  Task Force certainly supports the goal of a one-

         18  seat ride to Kennedy Airport, as far as I'm aware

         19  the group has never taken a position with regard to

         20  a route in Queens.

         21                 The Committee for Better Transit does

         22  not seek to kill the Port of Authority's AirTrain

         23  project.  On the contrary, CBT urges that the on

         24  airport segments, which are already under

         25  construction be completed and brought online as
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          2  quickly as possible, including the intermodal

          3  station at Howard Beach.  This will provide a vastly

          4  improved connection for New York City Transit A-

          5  Line subway passengers immediately.

          6                 CBT opposes only the Jamaica segment,

          7  which is at best premature, and at worst an ill

          8  conceived wasteful and counterproductive white

          9  elephant.  Excising its authority under Chapter 8,

         10  Section 197(d) of the City Charter, the Council

         11  should approve with modifications the action of the

         12  City Planning Commission on the applications under

         13  consideration here, which was taken May 3rd, 1999.

         14  Based on its own report this is the resolution the

         15  Commission should have made.  Since the Commission

         16  chose to pass the buck, it is now up to the Council

         17  to direct the necessary modifications.

         18  Specifically, the modifications should exclude those

         19  sites required solely for the Jamaica segment of the

         20  LRS.  Referring to the Site Data Sheet, which is one

         21  of the documents in the Form H in the ULURP

         22  application, the only site required for the project

         23  as modified is the Howard Beach Station. As so

         24  modified the application should be approved so that

         25  construction of the on- airport segments, including
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          2  the Howard Beach connection can be completed.

          3                 The Council may wish to make clear

          4  that its action is without prejudiced to a new or

          5  renewed ULURP application by the Port of Authority,

          6  the MTA, or some other entity, at such time as

          7  studies to determine the best for airport access are

          8  complete. This decision should not be made in haste.

          9                 The Port of Authority does not expect

         10  a one- seat ride on its own circuitous AirTrain

         11  route to be possible until the Long Island Rail Road

         12  East Side connection is complete sometime after the

         13  year 2010.  Mr. Shaw, of the MTA, earlier today

         14  estimated that would it be 15 to 20 years before we

         15  reached that point.

         16                 CBT is less pessimistic, one- seat

         17  service could be operated now between JFK and Penn

         18  Station via the restored Rockaway Beach Branch with

         19  a simple track connection near Howard Beach. During

         20  peak hours, when East River Tunnels are near

         21  capacity, Airport trains bypassing the Jamaica

         22  Station and the interlocking could operate to Long

         23  Island City offering passengers the same platform

         24  transfer at Woodside to and from Penn Station.  We

         25  see this as a better solution today than a complex
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          2  transfer at Jamaica. It will certainly be a better

          3  solution in the future when East River Tunnel

          4  constraints are relieved and direct rail service

          5  between Long Island and Grand Central is a reality.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

          8  Papp.

          9                 MR. PAPP:  Thank you very much for

         10  letting me address you this afternoon.  The packet,

         11  which I have submitted, is one that we gave the

         12  Committee on Finance and Economic Development on

         13  April 20th.  My remarks, this afternoon, are going

         14  to be directed to two particular areas, and those

         15  are something that we feel haven't been discussed

         16  this afternoon.  One is going to be from a viewpoint

         17  of finance and taxation, and the other is going to

         18  look into the democratic process.

         19                 Over the last five hours we have

         20  heard a lot of testimony, and I think it is not too

         21  great of a leap at this point to realize that the

         22  project we have under consideration isn't a jobs

         23  program, it isn't a Jamaica revitalization project,

         24  but rather this is a transportation project, and we

         25  would like to remind the Council members that this
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          2  is, indeed, what the ULURP process is all about.

          3  During my non- avocational career, I'm an investment

          4  banker with a small firm here in New York, and one

          5  of the things we have- -

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Actually, I

          7  don't want to interrupt you, but actually it's not.

          8  The ULURP process is about someone else building a

          9  transportation system, we're not.

         10                 MR. PAPP:  Okay, all right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  And it's the

         12  disposition of City- owned property, that is what

         13  we're doing here, technically.

         14                 MR. PAPP:  Technically, that is

         15  correct and it is disposition of City- owned

         16  property, but disposition of this City owned project

         17  is for a transportation project, and again I will

         18  state, this isn't a job program or a Jamaica

         19  revitalization project.  It's theoretically done for

         20  the airport passenger.

         21                 What we have seen here is a build it

         22  and they will come mentality.  We're just wondering

         23  whether you should ask yourself whether or not the

         24  airline passengers, who will use this system, have

         25  been polled.  Do they really want their $3 departure
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          2  tax used for an AirTrain?  I use Kennedy Airport a

          3  lot and I vote I don't want my $3 PFC charge used

          4  for the AirTrain.

          5                 William F. Buckley, the political

          6  commentator, has a very apropos saying, "People vote

          7  with their feet," and indeed they have, they are all

          8  going to Newark Airport.  And I would also like to

          9  remind the Council people that the project to link

         10  the Monorail with the Railroad at Newark Airport is

         11  still not done. The Monorail at Newark Airport was,

         12  indeed, a system which was designed to link airport

         13  parking lots, not to give a one- seat or two- seat

         14  ride to Midtown Manhattan.  In fact, over 25 years

         15  ago the original plan was to extend the Path Rapid

         16  Transit System, which the Port of Authority owns

         17  directly to Newark Airport.  For a lot of reasons,

         18  which we don't have the time to get into, this plan

         19  was never accomplished.

         20                 We talked a lot about Community Board

         21  representation, and we talked a lot about Community

         22  Board meetings today.  I was at everyone of those

         23  Community Board hearings, and there was a group of

         24  irregularities, which occurred at those Community

         25  Boards, which have now been codified.  I just want
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          2  to mention three of them to you.

          3                 Community Board 12 was originally to

          4  hold its hearing at January 20th, at that time a

          5  vote was supposed to take place, most all of the

          6  Community Board members as well as everyone else who

          7  was there to testify thought that that would take

          8  place. Instead it was postponed, theoretically

          9  because we had to leave the building, it was

         10  postponed nine days to Friday, January 29th, on a

         11  very cold Friday night at 6:00 p.m.  Many of the

         12  members were not able to attend, they did however,

         13  attend the January 20th meeting intending to vote.

         14  There was also no notification of this special

         15  meeting toward members of that Community Board.

         16                 In Community Board 10, all speakers

         17  that wanted to speak were not allowed to speak.  The

         18  Chair, in fact, decided that some of the first

         19  people to register were not even allowed to speak.

         20  Indeed, at the Borough Board only three of the 14

         21  Community Boards were permitted to vote on this

         22  issue which not only effects the entire Borough of

         23  Queens.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  That is in the

         25  City Charter.
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          2                 MR. PAPP:  That is indeed in the City

          3  Charter.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, so that is

          5  not an irregularity, that is in the City Charter.

          6                 MR. PAPP:  All right, what I'm

          7  saying, we're talking about the democratic process,

          8  again, of the people, by the people, and for the

          9  people.  In theory, all the people in Queens should

         10  have had an opportunity to vote on this to express

         11  the views of the people in Queens, they did not have

         12  that opportunity, they should have had that

         13  opportunity.  I can report to you this afternoon

         14  that the irregularities which have been codified are

         15  now on file with the Office of the State Attorney

         16  General.

         17                 We would also like to hear a few of

         18  guarantees. Where are the guarantees for this

         19  project for the various stakeholders, where are the

         20  guarantees for the Van Wyck property owners, are

         21  they guaranteed against loss, is this in writing?

         22  Has the MTA guaranteed that it will build the

         23  connection to the Long Island Rail Road at Jamaica,

         24  so that there would be the possibility of a one-

         25  seat ride once the Long Island Rail Road East Side
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          2  Access project is complete?

          3                 According to the New York Times

          4  Editorial on Saturday, that won't happen until at

          5  least 2010.  The CBT Plan could have direct one-

          6  seat access most of the time to New York's Penn

          7  Station by 2002 or 2003 with an across the platform

          8  change at Woodhaven to the Long Island Rail Road in

          9  those times when the slot availability is not

         10  available to the LIRR trains.

         11                 Has the Port of Authority guaranteed

         12  to the community the enhancements, the physical

         13  enhancements to roadways and to the floor and the

         14  forum that have been promised in all the Community

         15  Board's hearings so far?

         16                 And finally, has the Port of

         17  Authority guaranteed to the communities so effected

         18  a set percentage of all jobs that will be put into

         19  place by the AirTrain project?

         20                 Until all of these questions can be

         21  satisfactorily answered by all the parties, we urge

         22  the City Council to withdraw their support for the

         23  Van Wyck segments of the AirTrain, and not approve

         24  the ULURP procedure that is, indeed, filed, and,

         25  again, not transfer the land, which, again, is the
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          2  subject of this hearing.

          3                 I thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you, Mr.

          5  Papp. Questions?  Thank you.  George Siberon, are

          6  you still here?  George Siberon, once, twice, sold.

          7  Warren Kogan or Rogan, not here.  John L. Cornelius,

          8  Coalition for Planned Flushing, and Harry Quesh, I

          9  can't read this one, 761 Summit Avenue, are you

         10  here?  We called you earlier, come on up, Olsen.  I

         11  called you earlier, I guess either you didn't hear

         12  me or I didn't, okay.

         13                 MR. CORNELIUS:  My name is John

         14  Cornelius.  I'm with the Coalition for Planned

         15  Flushing.  Let's get some things cleared right now.

         16                 1.  I was on that Transportation

         17  Committee of that Coalition.  I was Robert Kellish,

         18  who just came up with the idea to build a new Light

         19  Rail System along the Van Wyck Expressway.  It was

         20  our Committee that came up with the idea how to pay

         21  for it, it was our Committee who in the Macedonia

         22  AME Church, in Flushing, that suggested a $3 fee,

         23  that it would not be paid by State, Federal or City

         24  money.  This would be private resources to build

         25  this system.  So this is some of the historical
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          2  background, it was to part the master plan, which we

          3  presented to Board 7 in 1990, which, again was given

          4  to the Borough President and wound up in Governor

          5  Cuomo's Office.  Governor Cuomo supported it and so

          6  does Pataki.

          7                 I also want to point out that you see

          8  in the June publication of last year, Jam City, the

          9  worst traffic is choked in New York City's roadways.

         10    I want to point out that New York suffers $6.6

         11  billion in lost revenue because of traffic jams,

         12  that includes lost wages, gasoline wasted, extra

         13  transportation costs, such as overtime pay to

         14  drivers stuck in traffic.  From the Borough of

         15  Queens, which has the highest loss, is $2.3 billion

         16  a year.  In Manhattan it is $1.6 billion, Brooklyn

         17  is $1.5 billion, the Bronx is $793 million, and the

         18  per cost in Staten Island is $399 million.

         19                 Not only do we lose in our economy,

         20  but we're also losing in health.  When you drive an

         21  automobile that is run by fossil fuel, that gives

         22  off into the atmosphere carbon monoxide, it causes

         23  cancer.  And not only that, but in the combustion

         24  phase, organic compounds mixed with nitrogen oxide

         25  is causing asthma.  New York City has the highest
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          2  asthma rate in the United States.

          3                 Now we have over 145,000 students in

          4  our schools with asthma.  If you take the airplanes

          5  and you take the automobile traffic, we don't know

          6  exactly how bad it is, but there is a public bill

          7  that is now presently in the State Legislature.

          8                 I also want to point out that we have

          9  a population of 7.8 million will increase to over 9

         10  million people by the year 2015.  With our,

         11  presently, the 300,000 new U.S. Citizens that we

         12  have in New York State, 250,000 from New York City.

         13  The fact is we have got to do something about this

         14  situation.  We need a mass transit system that

         15  works, we cannot afford to have people losing jobs,

         16  tourists stop coming to New York, because we cannot

         17  provide transportation.  The situation is very

         18  serious.

         19                 I urge the City Council, please, pass

         20  this.  Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Mr.

         22  Olsen, I apologize for having your name wrong.

         23                 MR. OLSEN:  That is okay.  My name is

         24  Harry Olsen. I am the Project Director, Design and

         25  Construction.  I'm representing JFK International
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          2  Air Terminal, LLC.  We are the Consortium that is

          3  presently responsible for the redevelopment of

          4  Terminal 4.  Presently we operate the existing

          5  terminal, while we are developing a new Terminal 4

          6  around the existing facility, and upon completion

          7  will demolish the existing facility and own and

          8  operate the new terminal with a lease underneath the

          9  Port of Authority of New York and New Jersey.

         10                 I'm here on behalf of supporting the

         11  Light Rail System project.  For the benefit of those

         12  who don't know our project, the Light Rail will run

         13  directly through our new terminal, so we have a bit

         14  of an interest, I think, a little more than others.

         15                 JFK IAT is in the customer service

         16  business, and our main focus is on bringing as a

         17  high a level of service to the customers as we can.

         18  I would like to make a few points that I believe

         19  show the benefits of the Light Rail System.

         20                 First of all, underneath the

         21  economics, we have assumed approximately four to six

         22  percent of our departing and arriving customers will

         23  depart or arrive by using the Light Rail System.

         24  Approximately 10 percent of our retail revenue will

         25  be generated by the customers using the Light Rail
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          2  System.

          3                 But we find that the most important

          4  point that we would like to make, is that, the Light

          5  Rail System will provide transportation traffic

          6  among the airlines.  Customers will have choices on

          7  which airline to arrive and depart, choices equal

          8  competition, equals reduced prices.

          9                 We would also like to highlight the

         10  benefits of the train connections to the Long Island

         11  Rail Road, as well as to New York City, because we

         12  see them as vital to the success of our project,

         13  which, again, continues to tie back to customer

         14  service.

         15                 A gentleman, earlier, spoke about the

         16  merits, and I believe he said it was impossible to

         17  ever have the successful operation of the remote

         18  baggage check- in facilities at Jamaica and Penn

         19  Station, and we're here to say that we believe that

         20  is incorrect.  We are working with the Port of

         21  Authority to establish what would be remote check-

         22  in facilities at Jamaica and ultimately in Penn

         23  Station.  We perform this service to our customers

         24  throughout the world and we see no reason why we

         25  cannot perform it here in New York City.
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          2                 The next item that we would like to

          3  talk a little bit about is that at the end of the

          4  day the customer is our main benefit, and we believe

          5  that the service to the customers is paramount and

          6  we continue by giving them the choices of using the

          7  airlines that they like and making access from the

          8  Light Rail System from New York City to the JFK

          9  Terminal 4, in specific, we believe we have a

         10  winning combination.

         11                 So in summary, we would like to say

         12  that we believe that the choices equal competition,

         13  equal reduced prices, equals a successful project.

         14                 Thank you very much for your time.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  You raised an

         16  issue, Mr. Olsen, that, you know, I want to explore

         17  a little bit about the check- in.

         18                 MR. OLSEN:  That is correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, now, tell

         20  us what you know about, now you're doing Terminal 4.

         21                 MR. OLSEN:  We're doing Terminal 4,

         22  we operate the existing facility, and we're

         23  redeveloping the new terminal.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Right.

         25                 MR. OLSEN:  And when we bring the new
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          2  terminal online, as for exploring what the Port of

          3  Authority of the remote check- in.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  All right, and

          5  where would the remote check- in be and how?

          6                 MR. OLSEN:  Well, right now it is in

          7  a very preliminary stage, we have been working with

          8  Tony and Company, and it is over in Jamaica, and the

          9  whole issue becomes with the FAA security on how it

         10  is handled and how does it go from one position to

         11  another position without losing sight.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  How do you

         13  think?  We're going to ask them later, so, you will

         14  all be betraying secrets here, because you have to.

         15                 MR. OLSEN:  I have to be very open

         16  with you that is part of our operations group, I'm

         17  more in the design and construction, so when it gets

         18  brought to the stage of being built, I'm the guy

         19  that develops the construction end of it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, all right.

         21    Questions from the panel?  Thank you.

         22                 A panel in opposition, Christina

         23  Boers, John Fisher.

         24                 MS. BOERS:  Good afternoon.  My name

         25  is Christina Boers and I speak on behalf of the
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          2  Manhattan Neighborhood Council, which consists of

          3  153 neighborhood groups in Manhattan.

          4                 At its April meeting, Manhattan

          5  Neighborhood Council voted to oppose the current

          6  plan for the AirTrain from Kennedy Airport to

          7  Jamaica.  Manhattan Neighborhood Council opposes

          8  this plan because it does not provide a one- seat

          9  ride to Manhattan.

         10                 We look forward to working with all

         11  interested parties to create an economical plan that

         12  serves the needs of all New Yorkers.

         13                 That is it, that is my statement.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

         15                 MR. FISHER:  My name is John Fisher.

         16  I'm the President of the Clinton Special District

         17  Coalition, a civic organization on the West Side of

         18  Manhattan.

         19                 I have a prepared statement, but I

         20  did want to take exception to a statement made

         21  earlier by a person, I believe the name is Lou

         22  Sepersky, who I believe he indicated he was a member

         23  of the Intercommunity Board Task Force of Boards 4,

         24  5, 6, and 8.  His statements could be inferred by

         25  the Committee, and I want to choose my words
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          2  carefully here, his statements could be inferred by

          3  the Committee that Board 4 and maybe the other

          4  Boards had taken a position on this matter.  Now I

          5  am a member of Community Board 4, but I'm not

          6  speaking for Board 4 here, and neither can he, that

          7  is my point.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Yes, I didn't

          9  get that impression and I was here for his

         10  testimony.

         11                 MR. FISHER:  Okay, I did get the

         12  impression.  Yes, in my tenure as a Board member,

         13  Board 4, to my memory has not taken a position one

         14  way or the other.  There was a resolution indicating

         15  a set of goals and desires a few years back, but as

         16  to this particular ULURP application, Board 4 has

         17  taken no position on this.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Yes.

         19                 MR. FISHER:  And onto the statement

         20  that I wanted to make.  I call this proposal "Air

         21  Wyck," not the AirTrain, but the Air Wyck because it

         22  smells.  It's a plan that attempts to mask common

         23  sense.

         24                 Like many of the others that have

         25  been here earlier today, I would like to echo that
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          2  we are not against progress, we are not against

          3  jobs, we're not against economic development, but

          4  usually that there is, when you have a proposal

          5  before you, you have to have a good reason why it

          6  should be built.  In my mind, a boondoggle is

          7  something that is built for the simple reason that

          8  it is built not because it has a reason.  The

          9  gentleman, I think in the last opposition panel made

         10  a point that this is not about economic development,

         11  it's a transportation issue.  What you are dealing

         12  with is an ULURP application, but it is a

         13  transportation project, and that is exactly what it

         14  is, and that is why I'm here today because this is

         15  an issue dealing with passengers to and from the

         16  airports.  Is it a good idea?

         17                 I was interested to see that the New

         18  York Times have flip flopped, on Friday it had

         19  referred to this proposal as having more holes than

         20  a harmonica, and then on Saturday it said that this

         21  was a fail- safe alternative, but the Times rave on

         22  this project on Saturday was contingent on the

         23  extension of the Manhattan being built parallel to

         24  the Long Island Rail Road and the E train, and in my

         25  mind that is very unlikely.
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          2                 Someone earlier spoke about an

          3  invisible connection, they said that they were

          4  studying the proposal and apparently nobody has seen

          5  any real specifics, in my mind Ed Pershfelt

          6  (phonetic) will be Mayor before this extension will

          7  be built, this is not a one- seat ride, and it

          8  probably won't be such an animal in my lifetime.

          9  This is a bad proposal, very few passengers that I

         10  know will use it.  Now I'm speaking from a Manhattan

         11  perspective, I can't speak from Queens or any other

         12  Borough.  Your own report, the City Council's

         13  report, screams about this fundamental flaw. This is

         14  the same reason why the train to the plane failed

         15  back in the 1980s and for that exact reason this one

         16  will too.

         17                 Our organization strongly opposes the

         18  AirTrain proposal because it fails to provide a

         19  seamless one- seat ride. Manhattan residents and

         20  tourists need a link to the JFK Airport, but that

         21  link needs to be a one ride solution.  To ask

         22  travelers, many of whom are tourists to schlep

         23  mountains of baggage from the Long Island Rail Road

         24  or the E train to the AirTrain at Jamaica is

         25  preposterous and the only thing it will do is
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          2  provide jobs for Skycaps, not at the airport, but at

          3  Jamaica.  For that reason alone we oppose this

          4  proposal and ask the City Council to oppose it.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.

          7  Questions?  Thank you, hearing none.  Okay, are

          8  there anyone else from the public who wishes to

          9  testify on this matter that hasn't filled out a

         10  witness slip?  Anyone?  Okay.

         11                 We're prepared now to ask questions

         12  and hear from folks from the Port of Authority, and

         13  if you would assemble the appropriate folks at the

         14  witness table?  And if there are members in the room

         15  or the next room that have appropriate questions

         16  that they are going to want to raise, now is the

         17  time, if the Sergeant At- Arms could let them know

         18  downstairs that questions are drawn nye?

         19                 We want to hear a little from you, we

         20  have questions that were raised by the public while

         21  they were here that I'm going to hear some answers

         22  to, but in the meantime, if you have a, you know we

         23  have been to the site, we have had various meetings

         24  on this, and we want to try to get to some answers

         25  at this point.  So if you gentlemen would identify
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          2  yourselves and we will start with this part of the

          3  hearing.

          4                 MR. BOYLE:  Mr. Chairman, I'm Robert

          5  E. Boyle, Executive Director of the Port of

          6  Authority of New York and New Jersey.

          7                 Mr. Chairman, Madam Chairwoman, I

          8  would like to say first the good news is the Port of

          9  Authority will attempt to conclude our presentation

         10  here quickly and courteously.  We intend to build,

         11  with your permission, the AirTrain in the exact same

         12  fashion.  We appreciate and understand the Council's

         13  Land Use prerogatives here, and your interest and

         14  your responsibility in regard to this AirTrain

         15  project.

         16                 A project this size, a billion and a

         17  half dollars, in fact, requires a partnership, and

         18  we have heard from the Community Boards, we have

         19  heard from the elected officials, we have heard from

         20  the people in the communities, and it is the Port of

         21  Authority's committed responsibility not only to

         22  build this project, to respond to all of you, to all

         23  of the people in the community, and to all of the

         24  people who have supported this project in a fashion

         25  that will guarantee an efficient build out and an

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            238

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  efficient piece of transportation.

          3                 You have my personal commitment to

          4  that, more importantly you have the commitment of

          5  the Port of Authority of New York and New Jersey.

          6  We will bring you a state- of- the- art train, fully

          7  automated, comfortable, high- speed, and it's a

          8  piece of equipment that you will look in the future

          9  to with pride.  In the AirTrain you will see what

         10  21st Century transport can become and has become in

         11  other parts of the country and other parts of the

         12  world.

         13                 I will leave the rest of this

         14  presentation as briefly as possible to my technical

         15  people and to my government relations people to

         16  answer your questions and to make whatever minimal

         17  statements they can make, not to take up any more of

         18  your valuable time.

         19                 MR. WARD:  Thank you.  Again, what I

         20  would like to do is just hit a number of the key

         21  issues that we heard today and that we have heard

         22  from the Council.  The first one I would like to

         23  talk about is whether or not this project is

         24  severable and is it, in fact, possible to do the

         25  portion on- airport separate from the Van Wyck?  The
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          2  answer to that question is, no, it is not severable.

          3  And why is it not severable?  It's not severable

          4  because the concept of AirTrain is to provide

          5  connectivity to the land- based transportation

          6  system, which exists today, to allow the Long Island

          7  Rail Road and the MTA existing system to bring

          8  people to Kennedy Airport in a fast and efficient

          9  manner.

         10                 At Jamaica Station and at Howard

         11  Beach, they will then transfer to the AirTrain and

         12  circulate around the airport to their terminal of

         13  destination.  Without that level of connectivity, we

         14  will not have fundamentally addressed the problem

         15  which faces this region, that is the enormous land

         16  based connection that exists today, and that,

         17  unfortunately, will only get worse.  And if the Van

         18  Wyck is perhaps the most congested highway we have

         19  within this region, and without the connectivity

         20  into Jamaica and into Howard Beach, the very object

         21  in terms of growing Kennedy Airport will be lost.

         22                 By the same token, I think it bears

         23  repeating, that this plan is envisioned as part of a

         24  much larger master link strategy that Governor

         25  Pataki laid out, which envisions that its connection
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          2  to Penn Station and a subsequent one- seat ride,

          3  which could be available to this region as the New

          4  York Times mentioned in the editorial in 2010, will

          5  finally bring a one- seat ride to Kennedy Airport.

          6  But I emphasize without action today and without the

          7  creation of the AirTrain system, that one- seat

          8  opportunity in the future will be lost.

          9                 The second thing that I would like to

         10  address is there has been a number of comments in

         11  terms of the economic development aspects of this

         12  project, and I think rather than having the Port of

         13  Authority speak to it, I think you have heard from

         14  the various members of the Southeast Queens

         15  community and the general contracting community of

         16  people who, in fact, like Bill Howell, benefitted

         17  from a project of this size and this level of

         18  construction.  The Port of Authority's commitment of

         19  $150 million for small minority or women- owned

         20  business is a commitment we take very seriously.  We

         21  believe it is a commitment that not only starts with

         22  construction, but as we demonstrated with our

         23  curriculum development in York College, it is one

         24  that continues throughout the future of Kennedy

         25  Airport.  It is fundamentally the relationship
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          2  between Southeast Queens and that community which

          3  makes Kennedy Airport so critical.

          4                 I think the York College proposal is

          5  an exciting opportunity to start to build the skill

          6  base level within the residents of Southeast Queens,

          7  so as Kennedy Airport grows as a result of AirTrain,

          8  they can participate in that economic opportunity.

          9                 Today, Kennedy Airport generates $20

         10  billion of economic activity and hires and employs

         11  more than 17,000 people. Without AirTrain and

         12  without land side improvements, Kennedy Airport is

         13  going to be significantly constrained and those

         14  further economic opportunities will be lost, that is

         15  why transportation and economic development are

         16  fundamentally linked.  And, again, I think you heard

         17  from people who already today participating in the

         18  project.

         19                 The other aspect that you have heard

         20  about this project which has been of some concern,

         21  is how the project a project of this size gets

         22  constructed with minimal impacts.  The Port of

         23  Authority takes the construction phase of this

         24  project very, very seriously.  As you well know,

         25  working with all three Community Boards, we heard
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          2  their issues, there were a series of conditions that

          3  were proposed and recommendations proposed out of

          4  those Community Boards.  The Port of Authority, as

          5  Mr Boyle has just indicated, is committed to

          6  fulfilling those commitments, and I think,

          7  indicative of that commitment.  We have arranged and

          8  sponsored meetings for every single homeowner who

          9  lives adjacent to the Van Wyck, in order for them to

         10  be educated both in terms of the construction, the

         11  traffic plan that we have, and perhaps most

         12  importantly, given what you heard today about

         13  homeowners, the insurance program that we have.

         14                 And I was disappointed to hear that

         15  one gentleman had said that he had not, in fact,

         16  received his package from the Port of Authority, we

         17  were surprised by that, but I will give you, for the

         18  record, our damage, fast- track damage claim

         19  procedure.  We take those community resident issues

         20  in terms of their homeowner value very seriously,

         21  and that insurance program has brought forward a

         22  series of meetings for every single homeowner on the

         23  Van Wyck.  Later, I would like to have Sam Schwartz,

         24  if you have any particular questions about how that

         25  traffic mitigation plan will in fact work, but let
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          2  me just speak to the priority.

          3                 The priority and the reality is that

          4  we will maintain three lanes in both directions

          5  during peak periods of time for the Van Wyck.  The

          6  Van Wyck must maintain its mobility during this time

          7  period, and in the off- road impacts need to be

          8  completely minimized, if not, eliminated, and that

          9  is our commitment in maintaining three lanes in both

         10  directions at the same time.

         11                 In terms of the one- seat ride, the

         12  other unfortunate aspect of this project has been

         13  that people keep on grasping at, is there another

         14  alternative that may exist out there that is has not

         15  yet been fully reviewed and has not been fully and

         16  vigorously assessed?

         17                 Let me state, going all the way back

         18  to the Port of Authority's initial AGP, the

         19  Automatic Guideway Project.  We have looked over 21

         20  options in providing the level of service to Kennedy

         21  Airport.  We have gone through an exhaustive FAA

         22  federal process to both determine what is the most

         23  optimum route for travel to Kennedy Airport, what is

         24  the most cost- effective route for travel to Kennedy

         25  Airport, and what is the route which justifies the
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          2  expenditure of PFC and levels of ridership  This

          3  project has been a long time coming, it has been

          4  based on an exhaustive analysis of the alternatives

          5  that are available to us within this region, and it

          6  has as its fundamental design two phases:

          7                 First, let's connect the AirTrain to

          8  all of the existing transportation linkages that we

          9  can today, allow passengers not only from Manhattan,

         10  but from Queens, Brooklyn, the Bronx, even Long

         11  Island, let them connect into Kennedy Airport, and

         12  in the future and in 2010, when hopefully this

         13  region with its political strength is able to bring

         14  the East Side Access Plan, we will then have a one-

         15  seat ride to Kennedy Airport.

         16                 But I think perhaps most compelling

         17  today in terms of the Port of Authority's vision of

         18  what this project will be is really found in front

         19  of you in the model that you see for the Jamaica

         20  Station, and I would like to use that as an

         21  opportunity to talk about two key issues, which are

         22  the ease of transfer, the airport environment the

         23  Jamaica Station will provide, the mobility that is

         24  built into the Jamaica Station, and as you have

         25  mentioned a number of times, how, in fact, will
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          2  baggage be handled at this facility.  I think you

          3  have heard interestingly from a representative of

          4  the IAT today, where they have committed to working

          5  with the Port of Authority to make their project,

          6  which literally the AirTrain travels directly into

          7  their building to be a seamless baggage off- site

          8  handling capability at Jamaica.  And you also heard

          9  from the ATA, who did, in fact, say that it was not

         10  impossible to create a baggage claim, and we have

         11  worked very hard with this Committee and with other

         12  elected officials to design and implement a Jamaica

         13  Station which will accommodate baggage and handling.

         14                 And if I could, if you have time

         15  prior to your questions, I would like to do two

         16  brief presentations from both our team as well as

         17  Sam Schwartz in terms of the traffic.  And with

         18  that, I would like to ask Sam Schwartz to very

         19  quickly describe how we have put together a traffic

         20  mitigation plan which recognizes the issues for the

         21  community homeowners, but will allow us to move this

         22  project forward and the least impact possible.

         23                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Thank you very much.

         24  My name is Sam Schwartz.  I'm a consultant to the

         25  Consortium, I was the City's Traffic Commissioner, I
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          2  was the Chief Engineer for New York City Department

          3  of Transportation, and I have been involved in

          4  numerous roadway, highway, train construction

          5  projects over the past 30 years.

          6                 Frankly there has never been a

          7  construction job that has been this well thought out

          8  or this well planned with just about every possible

          9  contingency taken care of.  In this case, as you

         10  know, during the peak hours, three lanes of traffic

         11  will be maintained in both directions.  The first

         12  six months of this job are preparatory work to

         13  prepare the highway for all of the traffic so there

         14  will be little or no disruption.  Traffic cameras

         15  will be installed, sensors will be installed.  The

         16  Service Road, the shoulder areas will be converted

         17  into usable lanes.  So before the construction

         18  starts this roadway will be prepped to handle the

         19  traffic.

         20                 Once it does undergo construction,

         21  there is the most sophisticated network that has

         22  ever been created to monitor the traffic flow.  So

         23  that on the Van Wyck at any time there will be

         24  sensors, radar sensors at numerous locations, there

         25  will be aircraft overhead, this is the first public,
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          2  private participation in terms of the monitoring of

          3  traffic, with shadow traffic and their aircraft and

          4  their spotters.  The Police Department has been full

          5  integrated into this plan, 19 cameras will be

          6  installed along every inch and they will be

          7  supplemented by area wide cameras from shadow

          8  traffic throughout the area.  Three tow trucks will

          9  be assigned at all times, 24 hours a day to this

         10  area, one heavy duty tow truck.  The contractor,

         11  himself, will be assigned to relay information

         12  immediately.  So as soon as that information comes

         13  in, and you can see it's within moments that we will

         14  learn of any incident, and then we can take the

         15  appropriate actions there.  We will be able to

         16  respond with tow trucks, with police, with fire,

         17  with ambulance, with the Office of Emergency

         18  Management.  We have met with all of these different

         19  agencies, the Sanitation if there is debris on the

         20  road.

         21                 The project is supporting traffic

         22  officers, there have been complaints from the

         23  community, what if traffic spills out over into the

         24  community?  The theory here is to capture the

         25  motorists well before they get to the Van Wyck
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          2  Corridor.  So motorists in Brooklyn, if there is an

          3  incident on the Van Wyck Corridor, has a choice of

          4  going up the BQE to the LIE down the Van Wyck, that

          5  same motorist could take the Belt Parkway right to

          6  Kennedy Airport, so we will be able to intercept

          7  motorists as quickly as possible.  Within moments

          8  variable message signs will go up throughout the

          9  City.  If you are in the Bronx by the Throgs Neck

         10  Bridge, you will see one of our variable message

         11  signs.  If you're on the LIE coming in from Nassau

         12  County, you will see the variable message sign.  If

         13  you are in Manhattan, you will see the variable

         14  message sign.  If you're not looking, on your radio

         15  will have instant messages through shadow traffic,

         16  WINS, WCBS, WBBR, the old news stations that give

         17  you traffic every 10 minutes, will all be integrated

         18  so that messages will go out, and we will be able to

         19  provide contractor assistance if needed.  If there

         20  is a major incident, we hope there won't be at the

         21  airport, we can shut down and we're prepared to shut

         22  down operations, change the signal timing, develop

         23  alternative routes, and you notice it's highways

         24  only, and we have also developed a web site.

         25                 So in short, - -
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Are you going to

          3  have a dedicated frequency too, because I know on-

          4  airport you have one?

          5                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yes, there will be

          6  highway advisory radio, but, frankly, we will be on

          7  every radio station that carries traffic every 10

          8  minutes.  So I know the dedicated highway advisory

          9  radio, a lot of people don't listen to it, we will

         10  be on the WINS, WCBS, WBBR, the all news stations.

         11  Any time you need a traffic report plug us in on the

         12  ones, the eights and the fives, and you will get a

         13  traffic report.

         14                 MR. WARD:  Sam will be available for

         15  questions, but what I would like to do is now

         16  introduce Paul Neal, who is part of the project

         17  team.  Paul, if you could join us?  One of the

         18  issues that have, obviously been with the Council,

         19  but has been with the entire City is, what is

         20  connectivity for this region mean, how does this

         21  compare to other cities, the Heathrow Express, and

         22  particular is always raised as a major alternative

         23  of why can't New York have the Heathrow Express, why

         24  are other cities bringing a one- seat ride and the

         25  Port of Authority isn't, and then finally the issue
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          2  of baggage in terms of the ridership, and will the

          3  transfer at Jamaica be a barrier as opposed to an

          4  introduction to the airport?  And Paul Neal has a

          5  brief presentation both on the connectivity concept

          6  and bringing as many people as you can to the

          7  airport, and then at the same time how baggage, in

          8  fact, has been developed in Heathrow. Paul Neal.

          9                 MR. NEAL:  Good afternoon.  My name

         10  is Paul Neal. I'm a Consultant working with the Port

         11  of Authority, but until very recently I was the

         12  Operations and Customer Service Director for

         13  Heathrow Express, and Heathrow Express is a new rail

         14  link, linking London's Heathrow Airport to

         15  Paddington Station.

         16                 I have got some slides, so we can

         17  turn those on, please?  Okay, if everybody could

         18  turn to see the presentation? The left- hand slide

         19  is very briefly the root map for the Heathrow

         20  Express, and you will be able to see that Heathrow

         21  Airport is situated some 15 miles to the south and

         22  west of Downtown London. But interestingly,

         23  Paddington Station, which is the Downtown Terminal,

         24  it's not actually in the center of the Downtown

         25  District, it's situated slightly to the west of the
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          2  West End, and, indeed, some five to six miles west

          3  of the main financial district.

          4                 What Heathrow Express does is provide

          5  a fast and frequent service to and from London

          6  Paddington Station, it's safe, it's reliable, and

          7  it's particularly customer focused.  Of great

          8  importance to the airline customer is the fact that

          9  there are 27 airline check- in desks, with 21

         10  different airlines represented at Paddington

         11  Station, and I will move onto that in a little

         12  while.

         13                 At the moment at least 15,000

         14  passengers a day are using the Heathrow System and

         15  that is a growing number, and it is considerably

         16  relieving road congestion for approximately three to

         17  four thousand cars per day being taken off the

         18  Heathrow Road network.

         19                 Okay, the left- hand slide actually

         20  shows you the airport check- in desks under

         21  construction of Heathrow Airport.  As I said there

         22  is 27 desks, 21 airlines represented.  What we had

         23  to do was get the airlines interested in the take up

         24  of those desks very early the process, and that

         25  work, as I say, culminated in 21 different airlines
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          2  taking up the space.  The bags are conveyed to the

          3  airport in a secured area on board the train.  And

          4  importantly, the FAA and the British CAA have

          5  approved of these schemes, and, indeed, two American

          6  Airlines, American and United are both represented

          7  in this scheme.  So it is possible to devise

          8  technical and security related solutions to all of

          9  the problems that baggage handling does involve.

         10                 What is great for the customers is it

         11  is customer friendly, they can be relieved of their

         12  bags at the earliest opportunity, and it therefore

         13  helps with providing the easiest of interchanges,

         14  all of these are features that Heathrow Express has

         15  found to be of great advantage.

         16                 What is very important to realize is

         17  that Paddington is not the center of Downtown

         18  London, and, indeed, very few journeys start or

         19  finish in the Paddington area.  So what the

         20  customers of the service have to do, is interchange

         21  with a number of other services, which include the

         22  underground or subway network, commuter rail, taxis,

         23  bus, and the private car, and it is through these

         24  modes that access to the ultimate destination in the

         25  finance, retail and tourist districts is achieved.
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          2  And as we have already established, it is at least

          3  15,000 people using this system, and it's still not

          4  a year old.

          5                 The whole point of the interchange

          6  point, wherever it may be, is that the interchange

          7  must be convenient and hassle free for the commuter,

          8  which means level access or lifts and escalators, if

          9  there is a vertical movement involved.  It's going

         10  to be safe and secure, it's got to be well signed,

         11  it needs to be helpful customer service's staff

         12  presence at all points of the transfer to assist,

         13  and the maximum publicity must be given to the

         14  customers before they arrive.  So you need to be

         15  telling the people about the system, not just at the

         16  airport, but on the aircraft, and, indeed, in their

         17  country or town of origin.  All these things will

         18  make the system very useful and be a success.  And

         19  there are many similarities, therefore, between the

         20  Paddington Station in London and Jamaica.  And the

         21  actual location of the transfer point is not

         22  critical, I would argue that it is the convenience

         23  and the facilities put in place for the customer

         24  which is all important.

         25                 On the right- hand slide, what you
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          2  can see is some comparison journey times.  So you

          3  will see that from JFK to Jamaica is 12 minutes, and

          4  then onwards to Penn Station would be a further 18

          5  minutes, and, indeed, for our own system in London

          6  it is actually an outreach journey time of 18

          7  minutes to get from the airport to Paddington and

          8  then if you are going to the financial district, a

          9  further 20 minutes.  So in actual terms the journey

         10  times are quite comparable and the facts, I have

         11  already established that the interchange station is

         12  in a different location is not the critical point.

         13                 What this has now realized is that

         14  Paddington is now actually viewed as an extra

         15  additional terminal for the airport, and the

         16  emphasis has been to move the airport towards London

         17  and not take the railroad out to the airport.  And

         18  increasingly, Paddington Station is seen as an

         19  intermodal hub for all modes of surface access to

         20  the airport.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  Turn

         23  the lights back up?

         24                 MR. BOYLE:  We're available for any

         25  questions you might have.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:   Okay, we have a

          3  bunch for a variety of people.  Since the gentleman

          4  from Heathrow is here, tell us about the baggage

          5  transfer in a little more detail?

          6                 MR. NEAL:  Sure.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  You check it in,

          8  you said, at Paddington.  Now who, how many airlines

          9  did you say, it was twenty?

         10                 MR. NEAL:  Twenty- one airlines.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  And how many

         12  counters?

         13                 MR. NEAL:  Twenty- seven.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, is that

         15  every airline that flies out of Heathrow have a

         16  counter there?

         17                 MR. NEAL:  No, it's approximately 25

         18  percent.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, how did

         20  you compel them to do that, was it voluntary, did

         21  you give them an incentive?

         22                 MR. NEAL:  Well, it was voluntary.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Marketing

         24  strategy?

         25                 MR. NEAL:  Well it was all of those
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          2  things, it was voluntary, but what we sought to do,

          3  is get the airlines to sign up to the concept at the

          4  earliest stage, and once one or two of the major

          5  carriers, particularly, British Airways and American

          6  had signed up, we found that all the other carriers

          7  wanted to be involved as well, otherwise, they would

          8  lose their competitive edge.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Right.

         10                 MR. NEAL:  And once one started it

         11  became, you know, the trickle became a flood.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Right.  As a new

         13  airline that started in America now that is using

         14  that as a marketing strategy with certain hotels,

         15  National Airlines, they have agreements with two

         16  hotels in Los Vegas, if you check your bags at the

         17  airline desk, it arrives in your room, and

         18  conversely when you leave the hotel, when you take

         19  it to the ground floor of the hotel, the next time

         20  you see your bag is at Kennedy, and they're starting

         21  that this month.

         22                 MR. NEAL:  Right.  Well, Heathrow at

         23  the moment is only in one direction that is in the

         24  outward direction, because of the custom's issues on

         25  the return.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Right.  Now the

          3  conveyance, it goes on the same train as the person?

          4                 MR. NEAL:  Absolutely.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, and how is

          6  it done, is there a separate car?

          7                 MR. NEAL:  Well, how it works, the

          8  customer goes the check- in desk in the normal way,

          9  checks their bag, gets their boarding card, and then

         10  leaves to travel to the airport on the Heathrow

         11  Express train.  The bags are then transported

         12  through an underground tunnel, which runs along the

         13  length of the platform to the front of the train,

         14  where they are then secured in a fire proof

         15  container, because the train runs in tunnels at the

         16  front of the train, segregated and totally separate

         17  from the customers, and there are tampered proof

         18  locks to protect them.  There is no security

         19  screening done at that point, and this is all with

         20  the approval of the relevant authorities.  The train

         21  then departs, it goes to Heathrow, and then the bags

         22  are taken off the train, still in their containers

         23  to the surface above the station where they are

         24  split to the relevant terminal of departure, and

         25  they disappear to those terminals in vans, and at
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          2  those terminals they are then security checked at

          3  the terminal departure, in full accordance with all

          4  the regulations.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  So they're

          6  security checked, but not while in the possession of

          7  the passenger?

          8                 MR. NEAL:  No.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.  How

         10  operationally does it work when they come off at

         11  Heathrow to get to the specific airport, is there a

         12  computerized system of tags?

         13                 MR. NEAL:  Yes, there are

         14  computerized tags, and, once again, no customer or

         15  no passenger can depart on an aircraft unless that

         16  bag is on the aircraft.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Well, how do you

         18  know that?

         19                 MR. NEAL:  Well this is an aviation

         20  and airline system where they have reconciled the

         21  bag and the passenger at the gate.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.  You said

         23  other questions, so I guess we will just sort of

         24  open this up now.

         25                 MR. BOYLE:  Sure.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I have a number

          3  of questions. What, Mr. Schwartz talked about the

          4  Van Wyck, peak hours, what are we calling peak

          5  hours, that there will be no land disruption, what

          6  are the peak hours in your judgement, because I know

          7  what it is in my judgement?

          8                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Well, it's about a

          9  dozen hours on the Van Wyck, but the peak hours are

         10  generally from 7:00 to 10:00 and from 3:00 to 7:00,

         11  however, we're not going to be doing any work in

         12  other hours, unless it can be demonstrated that we

         13  can close lanes. So typically we don't expect to be

         14  closing lanes until ten o'clock at night, and we're

         15  not going to do it on a holiday weekend, and we

         16  won't be closing lanes after 5:30 in the morning.

         17  So we're not limiting ourselves just to 7:00 to

         18  10:00 and 3:00 to 7:00, we will also be monitoring

         19  the traffic, so there may be days when we can go a

         20  little before 10:00 and then may be days that we

         21  can't start until eleven or twelve o'clock.  This

         22  will be a very dynamic, and really a first time a

         23  dynamic maintenance protection of traffic scheme.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  What about

         25  Sundays, we have all had horror stories on Sundays
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          2  on the Expressways?

          3                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  We're not going to be

          4  doing work on Sundays.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  All right.

          6  There were a number of questions that the public

          7  raised about impacts on homes, and we have heard

          8  some testimony earlier about how information was

          9  distributed, but I would like to know in more

         10  detail, how did you have these meetings, how did you

         11  inform people of these meetings, homeowner meetings?

         12                 MR. BOYLE:  Sure, and I could ask

         13  Cruz Russell to come up or Patty Clarke to come up

         14  or Herbie Kane to give you some more detail.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Sure, if you

         16  would identify yourself for the record, please, Mr.

         17  Russell.

         18                 MR. RUSSELL:  Cruz Russell, Director

         19  of Policy and Planning for the Port of Authority.

         20                 We went through in the course of

         21  discussions related to this project, working with

         22  the Community Boards, we put in place what we

         23  characterize as a sequential of going through

         24  dealing with all of the community residents along

         25  the Van Wyck.  We basically divided up into segments
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          2  of streets and started sending information to

          3  residents and we also made direct solicitations from

          4  representatives from our field office.  You may not

          5  know, but the Port of Authority set up a field

          6  office on Archer Avenue right off of the Long Island

          7  Terminal to act as the focal point for all of our

          8  efforts when it comes to making sure that we had

          9  effective community management.

         10                 We tried to break up the homeowner

         11  group, which comes in somewhere around, from our

         12  last count, somewhere around 400 individuals, to the

         13  point where we would have small groups that would

         14  actually be able to sit, listen, and get a clear

         15  sense of the information associated with the

         16  program.  The program was intended to make sure that

         17  local residents had an opportunity first off to

         18  provide us with input as it related to their

         19  homeowner concerns, and additionally for us to put

         20  in place what we characterized as a hair trigger way

         21  of responding to community need.

         22                 As Chris Ward had explained to you

         23  previously, the document that he has in hand, is

         24  essentially a document that speaks to a way in

         25  which, first off, we guarantee through an insurance
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          2  program that any damages associated with homeowner

          3  related activity would be managed, and then

          4  additionally, we went through a couple of ways in

          5  which we would create scenarios that would really

          6  speak to hair trigger responses to the kind of

          7  things that residents were concerned about.

          8                 But the focal point of it was

          9  solicitations in a couple of ways.  First off,

         10  making sure that we were making, we were ringing

         11  doorbells, making sure that people understood that

         12  we were going to have community meetings so that we

         13  could begin to discuss the information, doing

         14  follow- up around that, and trying to make it so

         15  that the groups would be small enough so the people

         16  would have the opportunity to get the information,

         17  and additionally, to be able to provide us with

         18  input.  It was supposed to be a dialogue mechanism.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Were you here

         20  when people said that they had never had a meeting

         21  with the Port of Authority about this?

         22                 MR. WARD:  If I may, Cruz, let me

         23  answer that. Again, as I think I said in my

         24  testimony, we were troubled by that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Me, too.
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          2                 MR. WARD:  And the reason why is

          3  because, as Cruz just went through, we had an

          4  extensive outreach program for the entire community

          5  and the homeowners, and had identified by zip code

          6  as well as street address each one of the adjacent

          7  homeowners in both a direct mail approach as well as

          8  public meeting notices, as well as Community Board

          9  liaison meetings.  We have been all around Southeast

         10  Queens talking about this project, asking for input.

         11    The gentleman who said that he had not received

         12  this, I'm not sure why, but I can state that this

         13  has been mailed directly to every single homeowner

         14  and they have all been notified of, as Cruz said,

         15  these very small workshops so that they could get

         16  the kind of handholding and provide some level of

         17  comfort that the Port of Authority's Insurance

         18  Program is effective.  But, again, we have been all

         19  around Southeast Queens on this project.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  We have heard

         21  two different stories on condemnation from people,

         22  anecdotally.  Is there any condemnation anywhere in

         23  any of the segments of this of people's property?

         24                 MR. WARD:  No.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  No, okay, so
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          2  that is on the record.

          3                 What about generation of power?  This

          4  thing is running on - -

          5                 MR. WARD:  Electrical power.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Right, where are

          7  the transformer boxes, transformer buildings,

          8  generators, all the types of things that people get

          9  annoyed when you put them up?

         10                 MR. WARD:  Sure, since you are asking

         11  a very specific engineering, Paul Bachus or Tony

         12  Crochiolo could give you the site specific location

         13  for the facility.

         14                 MR. BACHUS:  Yes, I'm Paul Bachus, an

         15  engineer airport access program.

         16                 The gentleman's question earlier

         17  relates to a potential traction power substation

         18  located along the Van Wyck Expressway.  It wasn't a

         19  ULURP application, it was not cited. Since the

         20  application has been, well, since it was first

         21  submitted last fall, we have now engineering that we

         22  know we do not need to put those traction power

         23  substation along the Van Wyck, we are able to feed

         24  the power from both ends of the system, and as it

         25  stands right now, we don't need to put a substation
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          2  on the Van Wyck Expressway.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, both ends

          4  of the system, one end is in Jamaica, so are you

          5  putting it in Jamaica?

          6                 MR. BACHUS:  Yes, on the Long Island

          7  Rail Road property in Jamaica, that is in the

          8  application, you can see where it is cited there,

          9  and you see the other one by Federal Circle, both

         10  those are in your application.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, now I know

         12  Prendergast is here from the Long Island Rail Road,

         13  someone is here from the MTA, Director of Planning,

         14  I believe.  We heard some testimony from Mr. Shaw

         15  earlier today, and then we heard some testimony from

         16  RPA, the Regional Transportation Planning Council,

         17  on this sort of big issue here, which is, where are

         18  we going with the one- seat ride?  Now, Mr. Shaw

         19  said, that that might be 15 years down the road,

         20  other witnesses testified it would be sooner, and

         21  that they're working on plans with you, now is the

         22  time to tell us what those plans are, so that we

         23  have some confidence that they're actually going to

         24  happen?

         25                 MR. WARD:  Again, here is Tom
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          2  Prendergast from the Long Island Rail Road.  I think

          3  I tried to introduce into the record, that under an

          4  aggressive schedule, working with all of the

          5  available political power that we have within this

          6  region in order to secure full funding, East Side

          7  Access could be available to this region in 2010.

          8  And I think it is important, I'm going back to

          9  elected officials' wisdom here and recognize that

         10  the federal process for securing the money for this

         11  project will be critical. And if we are successful

         12  and construction starts immediately, we could have

         13  East Side Access by 2010.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Through what,

         15  through the New York City Transit, through Long

         16  Island Rail Road, what are you looking at?

         17                 MR. PRENDERGAST:  The one- seat ride

         18  that is being done by the MTA is evaluating

         19  alternatives that would use either New York City

         20  Transit right- of- way, or Long Island Rail Road

         21  right of- way.  Some of the criterion that they are

         22  using to make sure that it will fit the pattern that

         23  you need for a one- seat ride is running time,

         24  capacity, available track and train capacity.  The

         25  two Long Island Rail Road alternatives that are
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          2  being looked at are primarily one on the main line

          3  is dependent upon the East Side Access that Mr. Ward

          4  talked about.  Without that project being completed

          5  there is no capacity to be able to get trains

          6  through into Manhattan.

          7                 But that project under current plans,

          8  if we get the federal funding, would be 2010.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, but the

         10  gage of train that you are talking about for the

         11  Light Rail would be able and compatible to go

         12  through this East Side Access.

         13                 MR. PRENDERGAST:  We have worked over

         14  the last three years with the Port of Authority to

         15  make sure that nothing they are doing would preclude

         16  the ability to have a one- seat ride through either

         17  of the two systems, New York City Transit or Long

         18  Island Rail Road.  However, in either case a hybrid

         19  or new designed vehicle would be required, but the

         20  gage of the rail, the platform heights, those

         21  things, there is nothing standing in the way of

         22  being able to do that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, I would

         24  like to hear from the Port, is that a reasonable

         25  expectation that that type of conveyance would be
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          2  available in our lifetime in the next 10 years, is

          3  that a reasonable expectation, or are we talking

          4  about Buck Rogers?

          5                 MR. WARD:  Well, I think it is

          6  reasonable, and why is it reasonable?  Because you

          7  have a consensus across all quarters, from the MTA,

          8  from the Governor, from the Mayor, two elected

          9  officials that the one- seat ride is in fact the

         10  final leg of access to Kennedy Airport.

         11                 MR. PRENDERGAST:  What you're talking

         12  about in terms of a car is a car that would have to

         13  meet a certain curve radius, certain performance in

         14  terms of acceleration and deceleration requirements,

         15  nothing that we couldn't go out and award a contract

         16  and in a three to four year time period be able to

         17  specify and procure a vehicle.  And a typical

         18  vehicle procurement, even that the MTA does today,

         19  is 30 the  42 months from the time you elect the

         20  contractor to the time you see your first car, but

         21  there would be nothing in that process that would be

         22  different, except for the criteria used to specify

         23  what the requirements of the car would be, would be

         24  different, it would be a hybrid vehicle to

         25  accommodate both.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  And when we saw

          3  the model, we saw, and I don't know if it is still

          4  on the model now or somewhere else, this sort of

          5  proposed flyovers, the construction of those would

          6  be relatively, what length of time?

          7                 MR. PRENDERGAST:  Well from the

          8  point, what we're doing is making sure that in the

          9  East Side Access Project all the different

         10  impediments or issues that we would have to address

         11  to be able to provide a connection to either the

         12  Atlantic Avenue Branch, which goes into Brooklyn, or

         13  the main line which goes into Penn Station or at a

         14  later date, Grand Central, could be done.  But in

         15  terms of the design, engineering and construction

         16  you are talking about, easily doable within a 12-

         17  year time period.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  So the one- seat

         19  ride, at some point, and I'm not prejudging this,

         20  because it may be a good idea from a planning

         21  aspect, maybe a one- seat to Downtown Brooklyn?

         22                 MR. PRENDERGAST:  It could be one-

         23  seat to Downtown Brooklyn, one- seat to Penn

         24  Station, a one- seat ride to Grand Central.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Or you may only
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          2  use one of those options?

          3                 MR. PRENDERGAST:  Sure, I mean there

          4  is no limitation as to what we could do.

          5                 MR. WARD:  Right, I think the wisdom

          6  is that in designing the hybrid car it will be able

          7  to travel on both AirTrain, MTA, and Long Island

          8  Rail Road.  The service level - -

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  But you would

         10  have to build the stuff to get there.  We saw a

         11  flyover to the Atlantic Avenue Branch, we saw a

         12  flyover to the main line.

         13                 MR. WARD:  Yes, and the engineering

         14  and design of the Jamaica Station and the Howard

         15  Beach are to accommodate that flyover connections

         16  both Howard and Jamaica Station.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.  Now, why

         18  couldn't you, if you are doing all of that, and I'm

         19  not prejudging Van Wyck, but do a connection at

         20  Howard Beach as well?

         21                 MR. WARD:  We envision a connection

         22  at Howard Beach to interconnect with the A- Train of

         23  the TA System.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, why

         25  couldn't you set that in motion now since you said
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          2  you can build this train now in three to five years,

          3  why couldn't you do that now?

          4                 MR. WARD:  Well, in a way that is

          5  exactly what I was referencing before earlier in

          6  terms of the one- seat ride study which is being

          7  conducted pursuant to the agreement amongst those

          8  four parties to understand exactly how that

          9  connection at Howard Beach or other connections

         10  might be made.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  So that is a

         12  possibility?

         13                 MR. WARD:  Correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  And it is one

         15  that is being studied now?

         16                 MR. WARD:  Correct.

         17                 MR. PRENDERGAST:  Yes, absolutely.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.  And when

         19  is your study going to be released?

         20                 MR. WARD:  I think later this fall,

         21  and just to be clear, this is being spearheaded by

         22  the MTA.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, now the

         24  MTA is here.  I mean, have you looked at what impact

         25  on the system this would have to do this?  Because
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          2  if they release this in the fall, I would think that

          3  it would be in the interest of all New Yorkers to

          4  move ahead expeditiously so that this isn't just

          5  something that goes to Jamaica, but that we

          6  integrate the whole system.

          7                 MR. PRENDERGAST:  Well, part of the

          8  study includes those impacts and determinations - -

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I would like to

         10  hear that from- -

         11                 MR. PRENDERGAST:  Bill Wheeler?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Yes.

         13                 MR. WHEELER:  The goal is to take

         14  advantage of the capacity in the system and to nit

         15  the various links together.  I mean, when you think

         16  about it, for example - -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I'm sorry, could

         18  you identify yourself for the record and who you

         19  work for?

         20                 MR. WHEELER:  Bill Wheeler, Record

         21  Planning, MTA. I was going to use the example of the

         22  63rd Street Tunnel.  We built that in phases taking

         23  advantages of linkages and we're now making the

         24  Queens connection, as we speak, and that is exactly

         25  the way we're proceeding with this, taking advantage
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          2  of the different parts of the system, where do you

          3  have capacity, where can you best nit service

          4  together?  So we're looking at service from Howard

          5  Beach, we're looking at it from Jamaica and to

          6  different destinations in Manhattan.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Right, but this

          8  isn't your train.  The train going, you know,

          9  connecting at Howard Beach isn't your train, so I

         10  want to get an idea that you're goal here is the

         11  same as their goal.

         12                 MR. WHEELER:  The goal is a one- seat

         13  ride, and I'm not prejudging the operation of the

         14  hybrid vehicle, but it will meet the requirements of

         15  either system so that we can nit the service

         16  together, that is the goal.  I mean, when you look

         17  at all the comments that have been made in the last

         18  couple of weeks, and it still is the goal for a one-

         19  seat ride using the best of both systems.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, question

         21  from Chairwoman Eisland.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Thank you.

         23  I want to pursue what I heard in the description of

         24  what happens at Paddington Station, that there are

         25  27 desks for 21 airlines.
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          2                 MR. WARD:  That was the number, but

          3  here is Paul Neal.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Is that

          5  correct figure?

          6                 MR. WARD:  Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  At what

          8  universe is that?

          9                 MR. NEAL:  Sorry?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  If there are

         11  27 desks for 21 airlines, out of what universe is

         12  that, in other words, how many airlines actually

         13  could be involved in baggage handling?

         14                 MR. NEAL:  Well, I think at the last

         15  count there was approximately 75 to 80 airlines

         16  represented at Heathrow.  Many of those are quite

         17  small carriers, with perhaps only one flight a day

         18  also.  So the airlines which are at Paddington are

         19  the major European and International carriers, the

         20  British Airways, American, United, Quantus, Cafe

         21  Pacific.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  And

         23  obviously some of the airlines share desks?

         24                 MR. NEAL:  Exactly, because the

         25  different airlines have different peak periods.  So

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            275

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  the way the airport operator has arranged it is that

          3  the desks are all multi- user, so any airline can

          4  commute advice particular desk space, which keeps

          5  the size of operation to an optimum.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  And do the,

          7  does the baggage travel on the same train as the

          8  passenger, or are they stocked piled, so- to- speak,

          9  until there is enough to send them separately.  I

         10  mean, what is the modest operandi?

         11                 MR. NEAL:  Well there is no

         12  requirement for the bag to be on the same train as

         13  the actual passenger, but generally speaking, in the

         14  Quantus baggage, you can expect the bags to be on

         15  the same train by coincidence if not by design.  If

         16  there are a lot of bags it may be that the bags are

         17  perhaps one train behind.  But the idea would be

         18  that there would be a one hour cutoff period between

         19  check- in and the actual flight departure.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  That was my

         21  next question, how far in advance do you have to

         22  check- in, if you are checking your baggage to make

         23  sure your baggage mercifully travels with you?

         24                 MR. NEAL: Well, exactly, I mean,

         25  clearly there is no desire for the bags to miss the
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          2  flight, so it must not be too short a period, but an

          3  hour is the working average at the moment.  And as

          4  the airlines gain in experience, they may need to

          5  modify that, but all the tests show that an hour is

          6  a sensible period.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  And do you

          8  envision more airlines coming online and

          9  participating?

         10                 MR. NEAL:  We past experience - -

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Or do you

         12  have the capacity, I guess, is a good question?

         13                 MR. NEAL:  Well, there is capacity

         14  for more airlines to join in, and past experience at

         15  Heathrow is that the airlines tend to be a little

         16  slow to participate, so we would anticipate more and

         17  more airlines watching to see what happens with

         18  their competitors, and then probably clamoring to

         19  join in, which may need an expansion of the

         20  facility.  But that would be good news if that were

         21  to happen.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Thank you.

         23  I now need to know what the plan is at the Jamaica

         24  Station, so whoever can answer that?  What are we

         25  envisioning, how many airlines do we expect to
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          2  initially participate and out of what universe is

          3  that?

          4                 MR. WARD:  I think today you have

          5  heard from the gentleman representing the IAT with

          6  their expression of interest in this project.  We

          7  would look to start that process with a carrier that

          8  sees the wisdom of the connection, in terms of

          9  providing customers with that level of service.  I

         10  think that was the experience at Heathrow.  We have

         11  designed Jamaica Station to accommodate in a similar

         12  fashion as Paddington Station a baggage handling

         13  capability and a check- in capability.

         14                 We have started, as the gentleman

         15  from IAT said, the necessary discussions with the

         16  FAA, the security review process to make sure that

         17  it meets - -

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Well I will

         19  get to that part first, I just want to understand

         20  what the physical capabilities are now?

         21                 MR. WARD:  If I may, I would ask Bob

         22  Davidson, the Chief Architect, if he could reference

         23  the model?

         24                 MR. DAVIDSON:  Thank you.  My name is

         25  Robert Davidson.  I'm the Port of Authority's Chief
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          2  Architect, and if I can with the assistance of one

          3  of my staff members, we will explain to you how the

          4  path of travel works and where baggage check- in

          5  actually occurs looking at the model.  Russell, if

          6  you could just point to the new mezzanine bridge

          7  location?

          8                 Passengers either coming from the New

          9  York City Transit System or from the Rail Road will

         10  be able to access that mezzanine bridge with, as we

         11  included in the report that we sent to you, the

         12  largest glass elevators and the largest escalators

         13  that we could possibly provide at that station, as

         14  they move through that mezzanine, they will hit the

         15  AirTrain bridge location, which is only 220 feet

         16  from the most remote elevator, again, a very short

         17  walking distance.  At that point they will arrive at

         18  the AirTrain lobby where they will be presented with

         19  the baggage check area.

         20                 At the moment we're showing about

         21  nine or ten positions, which is what our preliminary

         22  planning analysis has indicated.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  What

         24  position, is that a desk?

         25                 MR. DAVIDSON:  That is a typical
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          2  airline ticketing/baggage check modular that you see

          3  at any airlines terminal at the airport.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  And how many

          5  airlines can participate in a modular or a desk or

          6  whatever you are calling it?

          7                 MR. DAVIDSON:  What Paul was

          8  referring to, Paul Neal was referring to is a

          9  computerized system that provides the ability for

         10  the multiple airlines to use counters based on what

         11  their flight schedules might be, and I should add,

         12  Russell, if you could just point to some of the

         13  unprogrammed space adjacent to the baggage check

         14  area, that we have also made provisions to include

         15  additional check in, typical check in modulars as we

         16  proceed with our analysis with the FAA, the

         17  airlines, and the Port of Authority.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  What is the

         19  time frame that you have to leave to expect your

         20  baggage to join you?

         21                 MR. DAVIDSON:  Well, I just can just

         22  speak from the contract, the contracting

         23  perspective.  What we're providing now in our design

         24  development is a shelf, which means an enclosed

         25  environmentally controlled space that has the area
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          2  provision.  As this plan develops we will be able to

          3  include the fit- out, if you will, or the

          4  installation of counters, baggage belts, etc., as we

          5  understand how the plan will work.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Am I to

          7  understand though that your luggage then does not

          8  travel on the same conveyance as you do?

          9                 MR. DAVIDSON:  If you can, Russell,

         10  point to the train location, as you can see our

         11  baggage check area is not only on the north side of

         12  the overall development of what we call our vertical

         13  circulation building, but it is also directly

         14  adjacent to the train zone.  So as we develop the

         15  plan the accessibility of the baggage to the train

         16  area has been planned to be adjacent to each other,

         17  so as the plan evolves we have the easy ability to

         18  make that connection with the baggage belts.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Does the

         20  baggage travel on the same conveyance as the person

         21  does?

         22                 MR. DAVIDSON:  That is exactly what

         23  I'm explaining that it can easily get to the train,

         24  and yes, as far as we're concerned that could be

         25  achieved because of the close proximity.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  So in other

          3  words, there are different ways that it might go, in

          4  other words, it might go  -

          5                 MR. DAVIDSON:  No, no, no, I think -

          6   -

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: - -  after,

          8  before?

          9                 MR. DAVIDSON:  I think Paul explained

         10  it how it works at Heathrow, and we probably would

         11  be developing a similar strategy.  Some sort of time

         12  frame cutoff, but what I'm referring to is the

         13  physical relationship between the baggage check area

         14  and the train zone.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  I understand

         16  that, that wasn't my question.

         17                 MR. DAVIDSON:  I'm sorry.

         18                 MR. WARD:  I think hearing from Mr.

         19  Neal, it's our concept to replicated the success

         20  that they have had at Heathrow, which is either you

         21  get it on the train that you're traveling with, but

         22  at a minimum it's on the train that follows after

         23  you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  So somebody

         25  checking their baggage, would they have to
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          2  anticipate checking in earlier than somebody who is

          3  doing carry on?

          4                 MR. WARD:  I think right now we are,

          5  again, attempting to replicate the one hour check-

          6  in time that most international travel guides

          7  indicate that that is the necessary amount of time

          8  for international travel.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  So that is

         10  what you're recommending an hour?  I see.

         11                 Let me go to another subject, the

         12  question was asked, but I just want to make sure, in

         13  reference to eventually having the seamless ride and

         14  the flyovers.  While the Chair of the Subcommittee

         15  asked whether there is going to be any condemnation

         16  of homes as it relates to the Van Wyck, will there

         17  be any condemnation or any necessary acquisition of

         18  additional property when, hopefully, the flyover is

         19  achieved?

         20                 MR. DAVIDSON:  I appreciate the

         21  question because I do have a clarification, nothing

         22  outside of this current ULURP application involves

         23  condemnation, but if at a later date the flyover and

         24  the one- seat ride alternative is identified as the

         25  Long Island Rail Road, there are three commercial
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          2  properties which could require condemnation.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  And where

          4  are those commercial properties?

          5                 MR. DAVIDSON:  Exactly 95th Avenue,

          6  94th Avenue, I'm sorry.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  I'm sorry?

          8                 MR. DAVIDSON:  Ninety- fourth Avenue.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  What is

         10  currently there now?

         11                 MR. DAVIDSON:  It's a gas station and

         12  a parking lot.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  I think I

         14  recall that from the tour.  Just coming back to the

         15  concerns about luggage, do you expect that there

         16  will be an offering from the majority of airlines

         17  ultimately to transfer baggage?

         18                 MR. WARD:  I believe so.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  I mean it

         20  sounds like you're starting out with a modest

         21  proposal.

         22                 MR. WARD:  I think that the Heathrow

         23  experience really demonstrate that the aviation

         24  industry today is fundamentally about customer

         25  service, and the earlier you can have a person check
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          2  in their bags and have those taken care of by the

          3  airlines is the level of service that they are

          4  looking for. Starting with the success that we would

          5  have with the IAT project, we would expect, as you

          6  have seen at Heathrow, airlines the size of

          7  American, Delta, United, to see the wisdom of this

          8  project and will quickly sign onto a baggage

          9  handling capability at Jamaica.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Considering

         11  then you expect to attract people that are traveling

         12  not just overnight or for business purposes that

         13  have luggage, how many luggage carriers will fit on

         14  your expanded elevators at one time?

         15                 MR. WARD:  I believe it's 16 to 18

         16  people with bags, I believe it is 12 to 14 for

         17  people with carts.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  And there

         19  have been discussions about a people mover there.

         20                 MR. WARD:  Correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Will that be

         22  sufficient to move people with luggage carriers as

         23  well?

         24                 MR. WARD:  Yes, as Bob Davidson was

         25  just referencing both the escalators, the elevators,
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          2  and the people movers are all designed to

          3  accommodate the cart system as well as baggage

          4  systems. So it's a fully, integrated system of

          5  travel within the Jamaica Station, much the way the

          6  vision for the Farley Project is in Manhattan for

          7  when we rebuild the Post Office.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  My last

          9  question, which may sound like a facetious question,

         10  but it is a very serious question, how do you

         11  envision making luggage carriers more accessible

         12  than they are today at JFK?  I use all my full back

         13  skills whenever I travel at JFK, and the

         14  accessibility certainly is not very commodious at

         15  this point.

         16                 MR. WARD:  I truly hope that your

         17  experience at JFK wasn't recent, because we have, at

         18  the direction of Bob Boyle, instituted a very

         19  aggressive, baggage cart handling system with both

         20  red cap people and ambassadors to identify the

         21  locations and make them available.  If your

         22  experience is recent, we would like to talk to you

         23  about it, but we recognize that that baggage

         24  handling capability is key to the initial experience

         25  of Kennedy Airport, and it has spent a considerable
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          2  amount of money to make those international baggage

          3  carts free, and have people who will be there to

          4  help people who might have English as another

          5  language or have other issues, and that is our red

          6  cap system.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Thank you.  I

          9  would just like to expound a little bit, and you

         10  sort of answered some on the questions that

         11  Chairwoman Eisland asked.  You check your baggage,

         12  it is going to get to Kennedy, how is it going to

         13  get to Kennedy?

         14                 MR. DAVIDSON:  It is going to get to

         15  Kennedy by the train.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, now where

         17  in the train? The train has cars, is there going to

         18  be a dedicated car for baggage or a container, or

         19  how does it get there?

         20                 MR. DAVIDSON:  I think that we're

         21  studying all of those possibilities, but it will be

         22  on the train either in a dedicated car or in a

         23  containerized method in one of the cars, but that is

         24  how it will get there.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Look, you're in
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          2  the business of knowing this, but if it is in one of

          3  the cars with people in it, there is going to have

          4  to be some security precaution, obviously.

          5                 MR. DAVIDSON:  That is correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  And there is no

          7  thought of putting the baggage in any other kind of

          8  conveyance?

          9                 MR. WARD:  Not at this point, not at

         10  this point.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  When I arrive

         12  from the E- Train from Jackson Heights and take this

         13  coming up out of the Jamaica Center, I'm sorry, I

         14  guess the Sutphin Station, I then have to go across

         15  the Jamaica platforms.  How is that going to be

         16  done?

         17                 MR. DAVIDSON:  Russell, could you

         18  help me again?  If you point to where the mezzanine

         19  is, when you arrive at the subway mezzanine from the

         20  subway platforms, you will walk to two large glass

         21  elevators that will take you directly up to the new

         22  Long Island Rail Road AirTrain mezzanine.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  What are the

         24  capacity of those elevators?

         25                 MR. DAVIDSON:  Right now we are
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          2  looking at 7,000 pound capacity, which is a

          3  technical term, which means that they're the largest

          4  dimension elevators that we can fit in that

          5  location.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  That is a

          7  distinct change from what you told us at the tour.

          8                 MR. DAVIDSON:  We re- examined the

          9  elevators, and we realized that we could go from

         10  5,500 pound elevators to 7,000 pound elevators

         11  within the same technology, and that was included in

         12  the report.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  So we actually

         14  brought up a couple of good points on this?

         15                 MR. DAVIDSON:  Yes, you did.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, so you get

         17  up this elevator that is now newly expanded, because

         18  we suggested it, and then what?

         19                 MR. DAVIDSON:  And you have the

         20  choice of moving along the mezzanine, which is

         21  approximately 220 feet, and at that point you will

         22  hit the entrance to the AirTrain Terminal Lobby,

         23  which is a series of automatic sliding doors.  You

         24  will go from the open environment of the Long Island

         25  Rail Road platform zone, which if you can recall is
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          2  underneath the large portland closure, you will go

          3  into a controlled environment, you're entering into

          4  the terminal building.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  You no longer

          6  will be interacting with anybody who is traveling

          7  the Long Island Rail Road who is not going to the

          8  AirTrain?

          9                 MR. DAVIDSON:  No, you have now

         10  arrived at the entrance to the AirTrain.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Here or here?

         12                 MR. DAVIDSON:  If you could point to

         13  it, it's right there.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.

         15                 MR. DAVIDSON:  And that is, there is

         16  about a 50- foot walk to the baggage check area,

         17  where you can check your bag, then you can proceed

         18  again, a very short walk to the fare zone, which is

         19  right there, where you will be presented with

         20  information regarding AirTrain and ticket vending

         21  machines.  You will go through the fare zone and you

         22  will move onto the platform, and that is where you

         23  will pick up the train.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay.  Now how

         25  are people going to transfer from train to train on
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          2  the Long Island Rail Road since everyone changes at

          3  Jamaica?

          4                 MR. DAVIDSON:  Again, the new

          5  mezzanine bridge that we're proposing to build is 45

          6  feet wide, and it is designed at that width to

          7  accommodate both the railroad transfers and the

          8  AirTrain movement from north to south.  There is

          9  also some small concession development up there,

         10  seating areas for the railroad passengers who are

         11  using this as there new mezzanine, and all the

         12  various passenger services in signage and way

         13  finding that would be part of the project.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  We raised at the

         15  tour the expectation that there would be some sort

         16  of either dedicated walkway or people mover to

         17  obviate the need to sort of crisscross with the

         18  thousands of people that change at Jamaica that just

         19  use Long Island Rail Road service, and I would

         20  think, frankly, that that would be in Mr.

         21  Prendergast's interest as well, to make sure that

         22  his people can get to their trains, your people get

         23  to your trains, isn't there some way that you can do

         24  something to make this a little better?

         25                 MR. DAVIDSON:  Well, we actually, we
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          2  actually went back and looked at it, we looked at a

          3  number of alternatives, and one that we think is

          4  workable is to create a continuous moving walkway

          5  that would be over the mezzanine zone for any

          6  passenger who is coming directly from the subway

          7  system to access via the same two elevators that

          8  would be continuous and uninterrupted, there would

          9  be no cross flow between user groups.  And that is

         10  something that we have developed, we have put it

         11  onto a couple of drawings and we have sent it over.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  I think before

         13  we, and it looks like we will be voting on this

         14  tomorrow, that we get a more definitive answer on

         15  that, by tomorrow, if you could?

         16                 MR. WARD:  I think what Bob is

         17  referring to, we have sent over to you the design

         18  engineering of what that moving walkway can and

         19  could look like and will look like following this

         20  project, and I'm sorry, if you don't yet have the

         21  design engineering copies, but we will make them

         22  available to you today.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  You know, I'm

         24  sure we're going to want some additional

         25  information, and some, frankly, some commitments
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          2  that certain things are going to happen, because you

          3  know this is not a pig in a poke, we're giving - -

          4                 MR. WARD:  Let me, again, state very

          5  clearly that we have shared today the design and the

          6  engineering of what that people mover would look

          7  like to be a part of this project.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  You have shared

          9  the design and engineering, I think by tomorrow we

         10  would like to hear some commitments, okay, so maybe

         11  you will take that back tonight, and tomorrow when

         12  we vote you would be willing to talk to us a little

         13  more in length and in definitive detail on that?

         14                 Council Member McCaffrey.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Let me

         16  just say, Mr. Schwartz, listening to your

         17  notification mechanisms for the Van Wyck in terms of

         18  traffic delay, I am struck by the fact that you have

         19  a major flaw in deficiency and that you did not

         20  enlist the use of the Kenny Kingston Psychic Network

         21  to be able to apprised folks of potential delays

         22  coming up.

         23                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  They already knew

         24  about it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  It is
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          2  rather a complete list, and I have to compliment you

          3  on terms of that.

          4                 Let me just ask, one of the items

          5  that has been the way in which this has been

          6  portrayed is of particular asset for folks who are

          7  coming from the Penn Station area in Manhattan.  For

          8  those of us who live in a city that has a population

          9  of about a million people called Western Queens,

         10  like to know, is the way in which this could be a

         11  system that could be of great facility to travelers

         12  from Western Queens getting to use this resource,

         13  can someone take me through that?

         14                 MR. WARD:  The Western Queens and the

         15  various subway system connections?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  The Long

         17  Island Rail Road connections?

         18                 MR. WARD:  You would take the E-

         19  Train.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  The Long

         21  Island Rail Road connections.

         22                 MR. WARD:  The Long Island Rail Road

         23  connection. Excuse me, bear with us for a second.

         24  Go ahead.

         25                 MR. WHEELER:  I'm sorry we don't have
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          2  an exhibit showing that particular area.  However,

          3  the E- Train can be accessed a number of places, in

          4  fact, there are number of places to use the E- Train

          5  to get to Jamaica.  You can, for example, is Grand

          6  Central, you can take the No. 6 to get to the E-

          7  Train to get to Jamaica. The Western Queens area,

          8  you have the Queens Plaza area, which is a big

          9  interchange area, Woodside, which is also an

         10  interchange area, you can take the Long Island Rail

         11  Road to Jamaica.

         12                 So those areas, the broad extent of

         13  the mass transit system allows you quite a few

         14  opportunities for a two- seat ride, right into

         15  Jamaica.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  President

         17  Prendergast, perhaps you want to go through the 61st

         18  Street, Long Island Rail Road improvements that have

         19  been made that would help to facilitate that type of

         20  connection.  Better than this, I can't throw you

         21  anymore softballs on this one, I mean, please?

         22                 MR. PRENDERGAST:  We're just in the

         23  process of finishing up a rehab there, jointly done,

         24  managed by Long Island Rail Road, jointly done with

         25  New York City Transit.  We redid the platforms up on
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          2  the Transit Authority level as well as the Long

          3  Island Rail Road level, and it's a much better

          4  location, much more convenient transfer.  So access

          5  from Western Queens, the Port Washington Branch,

          6  will walk in traffic or the No. 7 Line to Woodside

          7  is much more attractive today than it was before.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  And this

          9  is one of those handicapped accessible areas?

         10                 MR. PRENDERGAST:  Yes, there are six

         11  elevators at Woodside feeding all platforms.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  In terms

         13  of the issue on the hybrid car to be designed, it is

         14  my understanding that the PFCs would not be allowed

         15  to be used in terms of the design, who would

         16  actually pay for the design of that type of hybrid

         17  car?

         18                 MR. WARD:  Well, first let me answer,

         19  you are correct, and that is a very important

         20  consideration of this project that the PFC money

         21  would not be available for that project. Following

         22  the successful adoption and construction of this

         23  project, I think that the subsequent funding of that

         24  project comes from a potential variety of partners,

         25  the MTA or the Port of Authority.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Is there

          3  any commitment that is there at this time, since

          4  this is in many ways a key component here, and

          5  obviously this is not a first time item for either

          6  entity to hear that that is a financial

          7  consideration?  I mean, I understand that yes, money

          8  could come from there or could come from there or

          9  could come from both sources, but the question is

         10  where is it going to come from?

         11                 MR. WARD:  Well, if I may, let me

         12  just - - two answers, that either the MTA or the

         13  Port of Authority can and will design the fourth

         14  car.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Can and

         16  will?

         17                 MR. WARD:  Right, but let me also say

         18  and significantly, this project is subject to

         19  litigation currently by the ATA.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  We

         21  understand that.

         22                 MR. WARD:  And one of the key issues

         23  has been whether or not this project has been

         24  proposed in a way that segments the subsequent

         25  potential build out of the one- seat ride, and that
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          2  we have been very careful in defining this project

          3  within the scope of that PFC application.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Granting

          5  the outcome of litigation, and for the record,

          6  you're telling us that one of the two agencies will

          7  end up stepping forward to pay for the cost in this.

          8                 MR. WARD:  Correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Have we

         10  anticipated cost to what that would involve?

         11                 MR. WARD:  Well, the rolling stock

         12  per car, right now, for this system, the AirTrain

         13  System is approximately $2 million per car, I'm not

         14  sure what the Long Island Rail Road experience or

         15  the MTA experience has been per car in their car

         16  procurement program.

         17                 MR. PRENDERGAST:  It would be between

         18  two and three million per car.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Per car.

         20  And lastly under my round of questioning, I throw

         21  softballs, but I throw fast balls and hard balls.

         22  Director Boyle, let me ask you, you look at this not

         23  in a context in which this is a project that stands

         24  alone by itself, but rather as related to what is,

         25  for those of us in Queens our major employer and
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          2  that is in terms of this airport.  A question that

          3  also disturbs us is that while one of the major

          4  assets that is toted regarding this specific

          5  proposal is the number of construction jobs, is that

          6  at the same time the Port of Authority has not moved

          7  forward on the construction of airline terminals at

          8  JFK that would involve potentially thousands upon

          9  thousands of more construction jobs.  And the

         10  question is at what time is the Port of Authority

         11  going to move forward and remove the roadblocks for

         12  the American Airline Terminal, for Continental to be

         13  able to move forward?  We understand there are two

         14  other airlines that are interested out there and

         15  looking at this issue, this is something that

         16  disturbs us greatly, that this construction is being

         17  held up, and quite frankly, we want to know when is

         18  this going to be resolved?

         19                 MR. BOYLE:  Councilman, I can tell

         20  you that both I and everyone at the Port of

         21  Authority is equally disturbed.  The Continental

         22  Terminal is, of course, closer to reality from an

         23  engineering standpoint than any of the other

         24  terminals at JFK, and that is at Newark Airport.

         25  The American Terminal continues unabated from the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            299

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  standpoint of their engineering and so on, requires

          3  only Port of Authority approval, and that is really

          4  the only project for us for JFK that is involved in

          5  the current, let's say lack of progress at the

          6  Commissioner level.  I'm not a Commissioner so I

          7  can't comment for the Commissioners, but I will tell

          8  you that we are closer today, I believe, in getting

          9  those approved than we have been for the last six

         10  months.  And I will absolutely assure you that at

         11  some point down the line that will not significantly

         12  delay either design or construction, all of those

         13  projects will be approved.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  I mean,

         15  obviously, we are concerned about this, and we can

         16  listen to cynical voices that might say that it has

         17  been held up because of this project to see to it

         18  that the airlines did not take an overly aggressive

         19  tone and tact in the project.  There are others who

         20  are simply saying that this is a quarrel between

         21  Governors.  Whatever the reason is, the fact of the

         22  matter is, that that is something that is absolutely

         23  essential to move forward.  And, while yes, you do

         24  not vote as a Commissioner, but we do express our

         25  concern to you to be raised back.  We understand
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          2  that Executive Directors, however, the Port of

          3  Authority are not known to be minor figure heads,

          4  and so it is a message that we expect to be

          5  delivered back.  We want to see movement in this

          6  regard too, it is as important from a construction

          7  point of view, if not more important than this

          8  project that is before us.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 MR. BOYLE:  Councilman, I will be

         11  absolutely delighted to convey your feelings and the

         12  feelings of the Board, if they so decide, with my

         13  own on that very subject.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Council Member

         16  Helen Marshall.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Yes, thank

         18  you, Mr. Chair. I'm trying to clearly understand the

         19  path.  I'm a businesswoman in Manhattan and I'm

         20  trying to catch a plane, say at ten o'clock, at

         21  Kennedy.  I pack my bags, I take a cab to the train

         22  station because I don't want to carry my bags to the

         23  subway.  If I can, I will carry, I will schlep bags,

         24  you know which is for us usually a tote bag full of

         25  paper, sometimes in addition to that an attache case
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          2  and maybe an overnight bag.  I get on the subway, if

          3  I'm lucky, I catch the train, it's jammed pack with

          4  people trying to get to business that morning, and

          5  here I am struggling with my bags, I get out to

          6  Kennedy, I mean, I get out to the Jamaica Station, I

          7  now have to take my bags and schlep on an elevator,

          8  what have you, up to the new AirTrain.  I get to the

          9  airport, are you going to give me back my bags?

         10                 MR. WARD:  No, with - -

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  What is

         12  going to happen then?

         13                 MR. WARD:  With the baggage check in

         14  at Jamaica for depart you would be checking your

         15  bags in at Jamaica and picking them up at your

         16  destination.  Once you have checked them at Jamaica,

         17  you won't see them till you arrive at whatever

         18  location you are going.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  This is not

         20  my first experience with the AirTrain.  I represent

         21  the area that covers LaGuardia Airport, so many of

         22  you know me, and this is not the first AirTrain that

         23  we have come up with, so, therefore, we have had

         24  some experiences, baggage is very, very important.

         25                 I see some concerns here, we know
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          2  that nationally that the trains that are the most

          3  successful are the one- seat ride, those are the

          4  most successful in our country.  To ask a person to

          5  go through all of those changes and to go down into

          6  the New York City subways, and if I'm going on

          7  business, and I'm assuming that that is who you are

          8  appealing to because you can't be appealing to

          9  families going with children on a trip.  So you're

         10  really going for the business person getting to and

         11  from wherever they're going. I'm concerned that it

         12  is not going to be successful.

         13                 MR. WARD:  Well, we were concerned

         14  about it as well, and that is why working with

         15  someone like Paul Neal, we have both designed the

         16  building, the baggage handling capability, discussed

         17  with the IAT, for example, exactly how this project

         18  can work, and what I think you're looking for - -

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  But you're

         20  still not providing me with one- seat.  I mean, I

         21  was a person who had to travel for six months of the

         22  year just from New York to Albany, and I very often

         23  flew because I live about four, there is about seven

         24  minutes between my house and my seat on the plane,

         25  even with that there are quite a few changes you
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          2  have to go through to get to that plane.  I wanted

          3  the ride to be as smooth and easy for me as

          4  possible.  I mean, my colleagues, the Senators and

          5  the Assembly people who rode with me, all of them

          6  have the same concern.  It is so much more

          7  convenient to hop into a car, a cab, or what have

          8  you, go straight to the airport, check in, and keep

          9  on going.  And I think until you can more guarantee

         10  that seamless ride, I'm concerned about the success

         11  of this.

         12                 Now the airport is a major economic

         13  institution actually for the whole City, but

         14  particularly for Queens, and I'm very aware of that

         15  because of my closeness to LaGuardia Airport. It

         16  would seem to me that we should be working on that

         17  seamless ride, right now.  I mean, all of these

         18  connection that we're talking about, I know you are

         19  in a hurry to get it done, but if it takes 10 years

         20  to make a seamless ride, you might have already

         21  discouraged, at least, 50 percent of your potential

         22  customers.

         23                 MR. WARD:  That is why I think it is

         24  so important that in the intervening years we create

         25  AirTrain and make AirTrain as seamless and an
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          2  aviation experience.  So that when you arrive at the

          3  Jamaica Station, as Paul Neal indicated at

          4  Paddington Station, you feel as if you have entered

          5  that airport environment, you are on effectively

          6  Kennedy Airport.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Yes, but

          8  I'm - -

          9                 MR. WARD:  Your bags are checked and

         10  then you are going to your terminal and you are

         11  there in eight minutes. Following an 18 minute ride

         12  on the Long Island Rail Road, you have arrived

         13  effectively at Kennedy Airport.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  You still

         15  haven't changed my pattern and what I am going to

         16  have to go through to get to the Jamaica Station.  I

         17  go back and forth from time to time to Long Island,

         18  and I have to take the Jamaica Station, I have to

         19  change at the Jamaica Station and get off at the

         20  Woodside Station that my colleague, Mr. McCaffrey

         21  spoke about.  I feel exhausted sometimes even just

         22  from that, and we had already the train to the

         23  plane, it was not successful, and I'm afraid that

         24  taste is still in people's mouths, and I think you

         25  need to try to concentrate on this to make it as
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          2  seamless and as quick as you can.  With all of the

          3  technology it is still going to take 10 years.

          4                 MR. WARD:  Let me have Bob Davidson

          5  talk, particularly, about your question about

          6  seamlessness, because I think that has been the

          7  vision that has driven the Port of Authority's

          8  project, but let me speak to you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  But also if

         10  you could address that I have to get on a crowded

         11  subway, maybe you don't ride the subways in the

         12  morning on the way to work.

         13                 MR. WARD:  I do.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  It's a

         15  pretty tight situation, and I'm getting on there now

         16  with my additional luggage and stuff and struggling

         17  with it.  That, I don't think, New Yorkers, people

         18  from any place will find very attractive.  So if you

         19  could address those two issues?

         20                 MR. WARD:  Okay, first let me address

         21  them in reverse order.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Okay.

         23                 MR. WARD:  That one of the important

         24  things about the way Kennedy Airport operates is

         25  that it works against the peak of the Long Island
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          2  Rail Road and MTA systems, so the capacity and the

          3  availability of seat and space in both of those

          4  systems will be at the counter peak for when

          5  international or national travel is leaving Kennedy

          6  or arriving from Kennedy Airport.  So you will not

          7  get that coincident peak of the peak, and that was

          8  one key part of how we designed this system.

          9                 In terms of when we will get a one-

         10  seat seamless ride, it was the Port of Authority's

         11  vision that this would be part of that solution, but

         12  you will not be able to have the capacity in the

         13  East River Tunnels to provide a Long Island Rail

         14  Road train servicing Kennedy Airport until the

         15  region as a whole has developed East Side access.

         16  At that point, a Long Island Rail Road train or an

         17  MTA train could access Jamaica Station with no

         18  change, no one getting off, and then pulling back to

         19  and circulating into the airport, the same thing at

         20  Howard Beach.  But the fundamental barrier for one-

         21  seat is not found within the design of Jamaica

         22  Station nor AirTrain, but is found within the East

         23  River Tunnels where we simply do not have enough

         24  capacity today to run any further additional trains.

         25    In the future we will, and then the region will
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          2  have the platform or the basis for a one- seat ride.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Just my

          4  last question then, is how much, how many passengers

          5  do you anticipate, or what percentage of the people

          6  who are going into Kennedy now, what percentage of

          7  that population do see being serviced by the

          8  AirTrain?

          9                 MR. WARD:  About 11 to 12 percent,

         10  and we believe that is a very significant, as the

         11  Heathrow experience demonstrated, a very significant

         12  level of passengers service satisfaction.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Thank you.

         14                 MR. DAVIDSON:  If I could just direct

         15  your attention to the slide on the right, what you

         16  are looking at is a graphic, abstract, excuse me, of

         17  the Washington Metro System, and the notion that the

         18  Metro System connects directly to Washington

         19  National Airport, which, in fact, it does.  But what

         20  the slide indicates is that unless you are on the

         21  exact line that provides the direct connection in

         22  that Metro System, you are, in fact, transferring if

         23  you are coming from other points within the

         24  Washington Metropolitan area.  And those transfers

         25  are not just across the platform transfers, they are
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          2  in most cases vertical circulation transfers to

          3  another platform.  So the notion of an idealized,

          4  seamless ride is a very, very difficult notion to

          5  achieve.

          6                 And we have another slide of the

          7  Chicago System, where, again, the perception is that

          8  there is a one- seat ride to the airport, but the

          9  same thing is occurring, transfers are occurring

         10  within the system, and unless you're on the actual

         11  line that is going directly to the airport, with

         12  your bags you will be transferring.

         13                 I think you heard that the same

         14  situation is occurring at Heathrow, and that is why

         15  as we developed the design for Jamaica Station and,

         16  in fact, Howard Beach Station as well, we have

         17  provided the greatest ease of transfers that we can

         18  for those passengers who are carrying bags with

         19  large glass elevators, with the large moving

         20  walkways.  The travel distances, the walking

         21  distances that we're talking about are extremely

         22  small when you talk about major transportation

         23  moves, particularly within airports.  I think the

         24  longest walk at Jamaica Station is about a four-

         25  minute walk, and, again, will all of that high level
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          2  of service, vertical and horizontal transportation.

          3  And I think that is where we are analogous to what

          4  others perceive to be this direct connection or this

          5  seamless ride.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  I have

          7  taken both the Washington Train, and I have also

          8  taken the one in Chicago, that is why, and I only

          9  take that when it is convenient, when I'm right

         10  nearby, because I don't want to move that much

         11  distance with luggage, I don't mind walking, but

         12  with luggage and stuff, and business people carry a

         13  lot of paper, very heavy.

         14                 MR. DAVIDSON:  And one other point I

         15  might add, when you arrive at the platform at

         16  Washington International, and I'm sure you know

         17  this, it's an open platform.  Whereas our system

         18  would be completely environmentally controlled and

         19  weather protected.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay?  Council

         21  Member Juanita Watkins.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS:  Thank you.

         23  I have two questions, the quick one has to do with

         24  the timing the trains, the AirTrain as it leaves

         25  Jamaica Station to go to Kennedy, what frequency?
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          2                 MR. BOYLE:  At airport peak it will

          3  arrive every four or five minutes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS:  The other

          5  question probably takes a little more to answer, and

          6  that is, I have heard on a number of occasions, not

          7  specifically today, but that the Jamaica, the

          8  revitalization totally rebuilding of that station is

          9  going to contribute significantly to economic

         10  development of Downtown Jamaica, can you, just

         11  quickly, give me the specifics?  Yes, it will look

         12  better, that is a given.  When you talk about

         13  economic development that means dollars circulating

         14  some of which will stay in Jamaica.  What are we are

         15  talking about beyond the time when people get jobs

         16  in construction for that project, that is a good

         17  thing, but construction on a given project does not

         18  last forever nor do we want it to, so what are we

         19  talking about really?

         20                 MR. DAVIDSON:  I think what we're

         21  talking about is the great potential for airport

         22  related development to occur in the Jamaica area

         23  because of the close proximity of the system to the

         24  airport.  You're only eight minutes away, so the

         25  notion that you could have hotel conference center,
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          2  back office airport- related space, what we're

          3  talking about is potential for office building

          4  development to occur, for large scale projects to

          5  occur, well over and above the misperception that

          6  our passengers are going to be shopping in Jamaica,

          7  because our objective is to get those passengers to

          8  the airport as quickly as possible.

          9                 What traditionally occurs, and this

         10  is pretty much an historic fact, around intermodal

         11  regional transit hubs is that economic development

         12  will happen because the system is there and the

         13  economic can be brought to the system, in this case,

         14  because of its close proximity to the airport.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS:  Yes, and I

         16  have heard that, but it sounds good, but I'm going

         17  now to the very concrete.  You talked in terms of

         18  airport- related back office, whatever, give me a

         19  couple of for instances?  You see, Kennedy Airport

         20  is in my district, Jamaica is not in my district,

         21  however, despite the fact that the airport itself is

         22  in the dead center of my the district, we do get

         23  some air transport businesses and so forth on that

         24  end. The other side of the airport, the Rockaway

         25  Peninsula, in fact, it gets something too, but its
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          2  not productive, it's a lot of noise, it's a lot of

          3  fumes, so forth and so on.  So you tell me some of

          4  what it is you think is going to actually come

          5  economically to the area based on this project?

          6                 MR. WARD:  I will tell you one of the

          7  key, key economic opportunities here is Kennedy

          8  Airport today is constrained in terms of what can

          9  take place there.  We have a growing air cargo

         10  market, where people are now transporting goods

         11  around the world by aviation facilities.  I see the

         12  cargo facilities and the freight forwarders, the

         13  people who are the transportation logistics handlers

         14  building back office, freight forwarding, goods

         15  handling capability at Jamaica Station.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS:  Chris, with

         17  all due respect, you said it is so constrained, if

         18  that was to be done, if that was desirous, why

         19  wasn't Rockaway Boulevard used, why wasn't all of

         20  that empty space surrounding the airport on the East

         21  Side of Kennedy, I don't know of any prohibitions

         22  for that not to have been used, what constrained it?

         23                 MR. WARD:  Well, the opportunity for

         24  moving off the airport and the Springfield Gardens

         25  opportunity for air cargo are ones that still exist
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          2  today, in fact, the City's Economic Development

          3  Corporation is moving forward with a City- owned

          4  site for air cargo.  I think what you are seeing

          5  both what could occur at Jamaica, but also what is

          6  beginning to occur in Springfield Gardens is air

          7  cargo and passenger services are moving beyond what

          8  the Port of Authority controls through its airport

          9  leases and into new development.  And that the

         10  airport, itself, is moving out into the community,

         11  whether it is York College, whether it is

         12  Springfield Gardens, or whether its Jamaica.

         13                 We see managing the space at Kennedy

         14  Airport also means managing the opportunities off

         15  the airport to create additional economic activity.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS:  I hear you,

         17  I have heard you, but with all due respect, when you

         18  talk "Doubting Thomas,"  I think my questions are

         19  real and valid, if you have had more areas in

         20  Springfield Gardens and if you had on the other side

         21  of that airport, on the Rockaway Peninsula, you have

         22  a lot of space and some of it and has been City-

         23  owned space.  In fact, I'm very happy that there is

         24  some City- owned space which is now being used to

         25  build a new FAA, but that was there for years, all
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          2  that area could have been expanded.  So you explain

          3  to me, why I should expect that you are going to do

          4  tomorrow what you didn't do yesterday, when there

          5  was an equal opportunity to do so?  I'm not saying

          6  you won't, but you have got to give me a reason to

          7  believe.

          8                 MR. RUSSELL:  Let me say a couple of

          9  things, because I think that your point is very well

         10  taken.  In my experience in being at the Port of

         11  Authority and in doing Economic Development work, I

         12  have yet to see any kind of a coherent plan that

         13  really speaks to exactly how we wanted to use land

         14  use over the long- term on- airport and how we

         15  wanted to relate the communities around us. A lot of

         16  the activity that you see around Springfield Gardens

         17  was not done within the context of any plan.  This

         18  was the private sector just deciding it needed

         19  additional space and it was going to move there.

         20                 What I think that you have is, as a

         21  guarantee of sorts is that as we're going forward,

         22  we have very explicit plans that speak to exactly

         23  how we want to appropriate land on- airport, how it

         24  relates to cargo development, and additionally how

         25  those service industries that are allied to the
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          2  airport operation need to be off- airport, and I

          3  think that you have seen a little bit of that

          4  already.  When the FDA moves onto the York College

          5  Campus, when the FAA moves outside the airport

          6  environment, what you are seeing is the beginning or

          7  the seeds of being able to manage that more

          8  effectively and make that happen.

          9                 The other thing that I think is

         10  critical, is, with the linkage that AirTrain will

         11  provide to Jamaica Station, you will end up with

         12  another nexus of airport activity, and that is what

         13  we have discussed on many occasions that you begin

         14  to get a lot of the allied services, freight

         15  forwarders and brokers, other elements of the

         16  support network that will begin to locate within the

         17  context of not just Port of Authority planning, but

         18  work with the Greater Jamaica Development

         19  Corporation is doing and some of the input that we

         20  have gotten both from Council persons and the

         21  Congressmen in terms of their vision as far as how

         22  economic should take place.

         23                 So I think that we are much more

         24  committed to providing a coherent plan as to how to

         25  get it done than you have ever experienced in the
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          2  past.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS:  Cruz, can I

          4  expect that some of the businesses airport- related

          5  that are now in Nassau County will be enticed back

          6  to Queens, because we are not unaware that a lot of

          7  those businesses, a lot of those activities that

          8  should be surrounding the airport have gone east to

          9  Nassau County? So I want to alert my colleagues, and

         10  to put you guys on notice, that if you are doing all

         11  of this it's one thing when we give our suburban

         12  colleagues and neighbors a reduction or just getting

         13  rid of their commuter tax, but I would hate to see

         14  us bringing them in from Long Island on the Long

         15  Island Rail Road and sending airport business east

         16  to them also.  And Port of Authority has done that

         17  in the past, so we are hoping that you are going to

         18  bring the business back home.

         19                 MR. RUSSELL:  My reiteration would be

         20  I'm not clear that we have ever sent them away, but

         21  I know they left.  One thing that is important, this

         22  is a growth industry for the New York area, we're

         23  expecting 15 percent growth factors in terms of the

         24  way in which the airport economy begins to behave.

         25  Queens will be the lion share benefactor of that,
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          2  and I think what we are really discussing is ways in

          3  which local communities can capture the new business

          4  that is going to take place around the airport.  And

          5  that is what is denoted by additional cargo

          6  activity, new terminal operations and support

          7  requirements.  So I would like to talk about ways in

          8  which we get the new business interest to locate

          9  close to the airport, and I think there is a great

         10  impetus to do that.

         11                 Just in time inventory elements, all

         12  kinds of things that have to do in the way in which

         13  that aviation community behaves makes it so that we

         14  have some great opportunities, and that is what

         15  we're working towards, that is the planning process,

         16  and that is also making sure that corridors like

         17  Rockaway Boulevard and other areas are prepared to

         18  receive development activity.  We have got to do

         19  some work in terms of preparing local communities to

         20  be, so that they end up being attractive locations

         21  for these firms, that is what we want to get done.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SABINI:  Okay, hearing no

         23  other testimony, here is what we're going to do,

         24  we're going to close, and I will make a formal

         25  announcement on procedure.  The public aspect of
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          2  this hearing, I'm going to reconvene the

          3  Subcommittee at 9:30 a.m. Tomorrow morning in

          4  anticipation of a 10:00 a.m. Land Use Committee

          5  meeting, and I would like, and it would be in your

          6  interest for the Port, and the Rail Road, and the

          7  MTA to be present in some form or another to answer

          8  any questions we have, it would be very much in your

          9  interest to do so, especially the ancillary folks,

         10  the MTA and the LIRR, because this sort of has

         11  domino aspects to it and what one says we want the

         12  other to confirm.

         13                 So I would like to reconvene tomorrow

         14  at 9:30, I am going to formally close the public

         15  portion of Land Use 445, Manhattan Community Board

         16  #1, which is a designation by the Landmarks

         17  Commission of the former New York Times Building,

         18  and that is in Council Member Kathryn Freed's

         19  District.

         20                 And Land Use Nos. 447 and 448, Queens

         21  Community Boards 9, 10, and 12, in Council Member

         22  Thomas White's District, which is applications

         23  submitted by the Department of Citywide

         24  Administrative Services, pursuant to Section 197(c)

         25  of the New York City Charter for the disposition of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            319

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  property to the Port of Authority of New York and

          3  New Jersey, and subsequent acquisition and

          4  disposition to the Port of Authority to New York and

          5  New Jersey of various properties generally located

          6  between the MTA, Long Island Rail Road, Jamaica

          7  Station, John F. Kennedy International Airport, and

          8  between John F. Kennedy International Airport and

          9  the MTA, New York City, Howard Beach Station to

         10  facilitate construction of the Light Rail.

         11                 We will see you all tomorrow at 9:30.

         12                 (Hearing concluded at 5:50 p.m.)

         13                 (The following testimony was read

         14  into the record.)

         15

         16  Testimony of:

         17  Warren Kogan

         18  Executive Vice- President

         19  Subcontractors Trade Association

         20

         21                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         22  testify today in favor of the Port Authority

         23  AirTrain proposed extensions to Jamaica and Howard

         24  Beach, Queens.  I encourage this Committee in the

         25  strongest possible terms to vote yes for this
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          2  airport access plan. This project is essential for

          3  the future of JFK as well as the economy of Queens

          4  and our travel and tourism industries.

          5                 My name is Warren Kogan and I

          6  represent the Subcontractors Trade Association of

          7  New York.  We have over 325 members in the

          8  Metropolitan area.

          9                 I share the concerns of the other

         10  speakers about the competition for jobs and

         11  transportation capacity in the region. With their

         12  monorail now completed and a linkage to their rail

         13  network already under construction, Newark Airport

         14  is well ahead of us.  That facility now carries

         15  22,000 people per day.  It will soon be a lot easier

         16  to get to this airport than to JFK, even from

         17  midtown Manhattan.  I'm sure many of us know the

         18  sick feeling in the pit of your stomach one gets

         19  while sitting in rush hour traffic on the Van Wyck,

         20  hoping to get to Kennedy in time for a departing

         21  flight.  Once the AirTrain connections are

         22  completed, much of this traffic congestion will

         23  disappear; travelers will have the option of

         24  reaching JFK by rail in less than 45 minutes from

         25  midtown regardless of traffic, weather, or time of
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          2  day.

          3                 It is unusual for a project to have

          4  the support of both management and organized labor,

          5  but the AirTrain plan has this backing.  The members

          6  of my association employ thousands of skilled

          7  tradespeople who need the jobs created by this

          8  construction.  All the unions in New York support

          9  this project and have testified at previous hearings

         10  to this effect.

         11                 We need your help to develop a first

         12  class airport access program that will help JFK and

         13  enable our economy to continue growing.  This

         14  project will cost out taxpayers nothing, it is

         15  funded by Passenger Facility Charges and Port of

         16  Authority dollars.  It will improve transportation

         17  in the region and provide employment opportunities

         18  to New Yorkers.  Clearly, it's worthy of your

         19  support, and I urge you to vote yes to recommend

         20  approval to the full Land use Committee and the full

         21  City Council.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 5:50 p.m.)

         23

         24

         25
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 1st day of June 1999.

         19
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                                   ---------------------

         24                          PAT WTULICH
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          9            I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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